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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders,
Marfin Bank S.A.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the financial staterents of Matfin Bank Romania S.A. (the Bank), with registered
office In 90-92 Emanoll Porumbaru street, District 1, Bucharest, Romania, identified by unigque tax
registration code RO 10556861, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December
31, 2018, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements,

The financial statements as at December 31, 2018 are identified as follows:

= Equity RON 290,413,212
¢ Net profit for the financial year RON 10,501,233

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Bank as at December 31, 2018, and its financial performance and Its cash
fiows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union ("IFRSs") and National Bank of Romania Order no. 2772010 for the
approval of Accounting regulation in accerdance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union, with subsequent amendments, (“Order 27/20107).

Basis for Opinion

4.

We conducted our audit i accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), Regulation
(EU} No. 537/2014 of the European Parliament and the Counil (forth named “the Regulation”) and
Law 162/2017 (“the Law"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of cur report. We are
ndependent of the Bank In accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), in accordance with ethical
requirements relevant for the audit of the financlal statements in Romania including the Regulation
and the Law and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion.

Key Audit Matters

5

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a2 whole, and:in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Defotte rafars to 0@ or mare of Deloitze Toucha Tohmatsu Limited, a UK pefvite eompaisy limited :;p Ludranter; and its natwork of member fims, each of which & 2 legally

separste and Indqpendent entity. Flease see www delvitte comira/about for a Frimiled oo
firmge

17 legal structure of Deloltte Touche Tohmatsy Limited &nd its mamber
1
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Impalrment of loans and advances to
customers

Nature of the area of focus

How our pudit addressed the key audit matter

Refer to note 3 and accounting policies from
the financial statements.

The Bank applied IFRS 9 - "Financial
Instruments" which replaces "IAS 39 -
Financial Instruments* starting with 1
January 2018. The key change arising from
adoption of [FRS 9 Is that the Bank's credit
losses is now based on expected credit
iosses (ECL) rather than an incurred loss
model.

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank has
booked Impairment allowances of 53.5 mil
RON for the Loans and advances to
customers in gross amount of 874.1 mil
RON.

The Bank exercises significant judgement
using complex models, extensive data and
subjective assumptions over both when and
how much to record as loan impairment.

Key areas of judgment included:

e The interpretation of the requirements to
determine impairment under application
of IFRS 9, which is reflected in the
expected credit loss model.

® Assumptions usad in the expacted credit
loss models to assess the credit risk
related to the exposure and the
expected future cash flows of the
customers.

s The identification of exposures with a
significant deterioration in credit quality.

Because loans and advances to customers
form a major portion of the Bank's assets,
and due to the significance of the
Management judgments applied in
classifying loans and receivables into various
stages stipulated in IFRS 9 and determining
related impairment requirements, this audit
area Is considered a key audit matter.

Based on our risk assessment and industry knowledge,
with the support of our Credit risk experts, we have
examined the impairment charges for icans receivables
and evaluated the methodology applied as well as the
assumptions made according to the description of the
key audit matter.

Our procedures included the following elements:
Testing of internal controls

We have challenged the appropriateness of key
processes and related controls management has
established to support their impairment calculations,
including:

* controls for quality assurance of the source data used
in developing professional judgements and ECL
related models;

* controls related to timely Identification of impairment
triggers, including significant increase in credit risk;

* controls related to debtors financial performance
assessment and estimation of future cash flow

For the controls identified to be relevant in addressing
the risks, we have tested the design and operating
effectiveness of thase controls,

Obtaining and analysing the evidence to support the
assumptions used in:

s Development of the models for computation of the
key risk parameters {12 month probability of default,
lifetime Probability of default and Loss given default),
including procedures on the source data quality;

» Development of the expected credit foss models
+ Development of the stage allocation; and

¢ Development of models to reflect the potentiai
impact of future economic conditions in the ECL
computation.

Test of the implementation of the new methodology into
the ECL computation systems, including:

* Test the general IT controls related to the data
sources and computations of ECL;

* Assessment on a sample basis of the credit quality
and stage allocation; and

¢ Test on a sample basis the ECL computations.

We have analysed the adequacy of significant ECL-
related disclosures for compliance with the relevant IFRS
requirements.




Deloitte

Interest Income Recognition

E}...,._,

| Nature of the area of focus ; How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Refer to Note 5 from the financial We have tested the design and operating
statements ; effectiveness of the key intemal controls and

Interest income represents RON $6.1 mil

RON, the main source being loans to

custorners. These are the main ;

contributors to the operating income of the ]
H

For the vear ended 31 December 2018 the g
!

Bank affecting the Bank's profitability,

Interest income is accrued over the
expected life of the financia) instrument
using the effective interest rate, The |
recognition of fee income depends on the i
nature of the fees which are directly !
attributable to the financiat instrument,
which are part of the effactive interest rate
and accrued aver the expected life of such
an instrument and are presented as
interest income.

Because of the significance of revenue
recognition to the financial performance, a
high valume of individually smali
transactions which depends on data
quality of interest and fee inputs and on IT H
solutions for their recording, resulted in £
this matter being identified as a key audit
matter,

Other Information - Administrater's Report

6. The administrator Is responsible for preparation and presentation of the

focused on;

Interest/fee inputs on customer loans and
deposits;

Recording/ changes of fees and interest rates;

IT controls relating to access rights and change
management of relevant automated controls
with the assistance of our IT specialists.

We performed also the following procedures with

. regard to interest and fees revenue recognition:

We evaluated the accounting treatment
performed by the Bank in respact of fees
charged to clients to determine whether the
methodology complies with the requirement of
the relevant accounting standard (IFRS 9).

We assessed the completeness and accuracy of
data used for the calculation of Interest income,

We evaluated the mathematical formula used
for accruing the relevant income over expected
life of the loan.

We have assessed the interest income by
building our own expectation on the revenue
and compared with the actual results of tha
Bank.

infarmation comprises the Administrator's report which includes the non-financial information
declaration, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon,

other information. The other

responsibility Is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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With respect to the Administrator's report, we read it and report if this has been prepared, in all
material respects, in accordance with the provisions of the Order 27/2010, articles 11-13,

On the sole basis of the procedures performed within the audit of the financial statements, In
our opinion;

a) the information Included In the administrators’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements have been prepared Is consistent, in all material respects, with these
financial statements;

k) the administrators’ report has been prepared, in all material respects, In accordance with
the provisions of the Order 27/2010, articles 11-13.

Mareover, based on our knowledge and understanding concerning the Bank and its environment
gained during the audit on the financlal statements prepared as at December 31, 2018, we are
required to report if we have identified & materlal misstatement of this Administrator's report.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

7.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with IFRS and Order 27/2010 and for such internal control as management
determines Is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statemants that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no reallstic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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1.

12

13.

14,

As part of &n audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responslve to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the ¢ircumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s Internal control.

=  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

= {onclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence abtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going
concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to maodify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditer’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among cther matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internat control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our Independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those mattars
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters In our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes pubiic disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.



Deloitte

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

15. We have been appointed by the Board of Administrators on October 24, 2018 to audit the financial
statements of Marfin Bank 5.A. for the financial year ended December 31, 2018. The uninterrupted
tota! duration of our commitment is 3 years, covering the financial years ended December 31, 2016
until the December 31, 2018.

We confirm that:

»  Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report submitted to the Audit Committee of the
Bank that we issued the same date we issued and this report. Also, in conducting our audit, we
have retained our independence from the audited entity.

= No non-audit services referred to in Article 5 (1) of EU Regulation No .537/2014 were provided.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Irina Dobre.

Irina Dobre, Audit Director

For signature, please refer to the
original signed Romanian version.

Registered with the Authority for the Public Oversight
of the Statutory Audit Activity under number 3344
On behalf of:

DELOITTE AUDIT S.R.L.

Registered with the Authority for the Public Oversight
of the Statutory Audit Activity under number 25

Cladirea The Mark, Calea Grivitel nr. 84-98 si 100-102,
etajul 8 si etajul 9, Sector 1

Bucharest, Romania

May 6, 2019



MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA |
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSTTION
FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

{2ll amounts are expressed in RON, unfess otherwise stated)

Cash and balances with Central Banis
Flacements with banks

.nans and advarices 10 customers
Fianc:al instruments at amortised cost

Curremt tax recenvgbles

eferrad tax

FinanCal assets 3t far value through other
wimprahensive income

Property and equigment
Intanadiie assets

Uther financial assets
Other assats

Total assets

Depastis from panks

Deposds from custamers
Subordinatat ipans

Other Ainancral abilitres

Other iabities

Provisions for risks ana charges
Total Habilities

Equity

Share capital
Reserves
Ratalvied earnings

Total equity
Total aquity and HabHities

Decomber 31, December 31,

Note 2018 2017
10 235,209.032 543,127,495
11 336,896,563 1€3,55:,989
3 820,670,475 834,317,944
) 307,186,317 252,251,855
2,972,170 428,025

13 2,708,235 3.163,604
14 2,376,937 t,416,088
18 7,536,508 8,822,551
16 1,659,794 1,627,211
6 270,119,500 246,178 272

284 1,973 835,35
17 56,744,572 136,225,322

8 1,633,693,432 1,431,815,24
1% . 186,435,649
20 3 586 08% 14,143,102
20 4,274,202 4,203,114
21 569 2340 337,656
1,708,87; 1,833,161,084

22 457,314,748 317 499,748
23 16,309,621 15,378,317
{183,211,157) (192,186,738)

290,413,212 140,674,267

1,999,284,345  1,973,835,351

The financial statements were approved i the Generai Meeting of Shareholdars of May 8, 2019 ard

sighed by:

Thaodor Comel Stanescu
Deputy General Managor

Marilana Epary
Finencial Controd Manager

The accompniwing niies torm ar eyral part of these financial statements
8 :



MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA _
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
{all amounts are expressed in RON, uniess otherwise stated)

Finoncial Financial
year endod year ended
December 31, December 31,
Note _ 2018 ; 2017
interest .ncome -3 06,143,646 50,325,637
Inrerest expenses 5 . _-30,38302 - 32,321,508
Net interast income 25,760,417 17,404,039
Net income/{expenses) wih impairment of toans arig
advances qrarted to customers, 757,062 27,745,117
Net interest income after impairmant of leans
and advances granted to customers 25,003,355 45,133,156
Fee and fee Income 6 3,544,257 3,830,980
Fee and fee pxpenses 6 814,145 _ 3,014,281
‘Net fee and fee income 2,735,132 2,616,699
Net gains fram foreign exchange differences 2,079,327 1,A03,932
Other aperaung income 48,144,146 22 306,414

(B

Other cperating expenses 67,480,727 95,953,563

Profit bofore tax . 10,501,233 5,708,618

{Sxperselfincamea o 1ax on profit - ] - _ -

Profit of the year 10,501 233 706,618
Items that will not be reclassified ta profit or
Differences from change w fair value of Fpancial

mstruments at fair vaiue through other

comprehens:ve income, net of deferred tax. . 410,242 B06, 240

Comprehensive income for tha closed financial _
year ; 10,911,475 6,512,858

Tre firantial stalements were apgioved 1n the General Mesting of Sharcholders of May &, 2019 and
signed by

Theodor Cornel Stanescu ) ‘Marilana Epary
Deputy General Mansgor Finoncial Control Manager

The SCIOMEDY il F6Teas Turth an nedra pa of these Tmang e statements.
-



MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

_ FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 21, 2018
. {@ll amount= are expressed in RON, uniess otherwise stated)

Profit bafore tax

Adfustments for non-monatary items:;
Income from impairment of assets
Depreriation charge

het qains from treasury achvibies

interes; sapenses

Interest incomie

Dividend income

Income from discounts obtained upon repayment

af BaC laans/deposits
Sundry aperating mcome

Expenses/(income) from prowvisions for nsks and

chirges

Expenses with reserve fram revaliation of rangicie.

assets

Operating profit before changes in operating

assets and Habilities

{Increasc) / Decrease in oporating assets:

Decrease wr foans ang advanoes to custoemers
Decﬂaa_sg! {Increases) (n.other assets

{Increase) / Docrease in aporating linbiitiss:

Decrease in deposts and loans from Banks ang

cther financia) institutions
ncrease / {detrease} in customer deposits .
Incraase # (:}ecfea_;e) in gthér habities

Cash fiow from uperating activities before

interest and tax

Interest warned from loans ang advances to
cistomers

‘Interest paid on deposits

Income tax paid

Cash flow from operating activities

Financing activities: '

Decrease / {Increase) of imvastmients held e
maturdy i .

Interast recsived from investmernt activies

Dlyiferds recalved ‘ e

Payments / Collections frem: purchase/saie of
targibic and mtangible assats.

Caszh flows used In invosting activities

The sCcomsmving nates Fore: by mbegral part of those Gnoools) staterman

Financial year  Fimancial yeor

_ended ended

Decembor 31, Decembar 31,

Note _..2018 2017

19,501,233 5,706,618

73 447,821 ~31,35C,83¢

8 7,495,412 4,270,973

5 5,487 801 -4,376,675

5 30,383,029 32.921,598

5 -46,655,545 -45,945,011

7 -27.3%6- 5,283

7 -32,385,873 -11,584,012
10,625,461

8 /8,744 326,279

73 80873

1,064,113 88,525,718

27,079,124 324,126,736

-65,476,550 63,237,361

141,877,190 6,247,113

-5,1 140,340 18,657 436

5,352,140 19,885,512

5 49,658,645 45,949,011

5 -26,142,990 27,227 438

9 2,572,170 -

31,636,

, -55,228,055 48,443,438

5 ' 6.487,801 4,376,625

7 27,396 | 25.263

14,18 3,170,418 561,478

_-51,883,277 284,248

ig

rs,



MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
o CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Financing activities
Decrease of subordimated loans
Cash cohiechion from issuance of shares

Effect of exchange rate Muclyariors on subordinated

loane
Interzst pad

Cash flows used In financing activities

Increase n cash and cash equivaiavts

Cash and tash eguivalents at the seginring of the
financisl year

impact of IFRS 9 as at lanuary L, 2018

vash and cash eguvalents at the end of the

firancisl year

Cash flows from operating activities include:

Imerest received

Interast pawd

Analysis of cash and cash aquivalents
‘Cash and cash cquivalents includao:
Cash

Current accuunts with other tarks

‘Cash available with Central Bank
Deposits with banks

TOTAL

(all amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwisestated)

Financial voar Financial year
ended ended
Dacember 31, December 31,
Noto 2018 2017
-154,139,27¢
139,815,000
-3,646 460 4,777,065
5 4240079 -5594,160
~22,411,269 -917,005
42,657,581 59,974,238
24 614,679,484 524,705,246
-8 (52
24 572,108,995 614,679,484
208 2017
50,232,127 52,640,915
-30.154.258 -33,633,722
._Notz 201 2017
io 35,088,076 32,261 843
11 3,075,457 6,737,811
10 200,140,956 478,865,652
11 233,821,506 96,814,377
572,105,995 614,679,484

The financial statements were approved in the General Meeting of Shareholdars of Moy 8, 2019 ard

sijned! by:

Thaodor Comel Stanescu

Tne accumpanying votes [ora aw reeara part of Mgso foancia dtatomeTts.

‘Marilana Eparu :
Finemcial Controd Manager




et
SICHURRIE (20UBUH ASaN] 10 MRd (PiTate: uB LEae) sy Buikvadiunsse 3y}
iaBeuely joauoy Repuculy mBeuey Riudn Aindeg
naed3 euppesy ) NOSHURIE [PUi0) JopoRy L

rAn vu:a.ﬁ.ﬁcm.ﬁch 9 ABW JO SIIPpLYBIRUS j0 BUTIa (@B T U poANdde Biam SIUALLBIRSS 1eOuRuY 2L

TITETP08L : 3T TR Ty T T ST R SO
BOTTAEET : : L i T es8ac00 jeudes i
o —— T T B _ Owioau) sABURYIdING @)
IpT0TF _ RTINS . _ X€] PRUBIOP 10 (31 ‘PAu0O! LA AUE WD
. a3n ;_..595..%._ BA 2 B ST0AGE TS IEPLEY J0 ANEA AlEE L) abuen LRI NI
790'524 FRO‘se

SBAIGSN 0F SRySUREY
B SAITIBEIDD SIS0
S04 Bajsudybiduioy

s it o s
2302 ‘Y Adenueg 3= e ousey

6 SM4T - SOy u:.&.aﬂ.um 10 SHBUCY WL ay3

4302 "IE DGURORY @ Sniveg

o L ¥R pelaap
11180 TS ILSHINUS U |B3ati) 068 Jo)-HUBieas 1) Thiga 2k, v AbuglY wWwoly ACUTIB T
RIAIHE JUBLN -0 G0 UDNIPTEAD) LGB SeIUBERN0
LIALESEI T SIARSINESY
BWODUL PABUMIDIGRIOD 20030

CD4 B4y 30 301
4102 't Aenuer 1w oouseg

{PRIIS SEIMIBYIO SIBUN ‘NOY U1 POsSaIdRS DI8 GUNDILE Hey
8T0Z 'IE HIBWIDIQ OIGNT HYIA IHL 104
ALINDE NI SIONYMD JO INIWILYLS
VS VINVMON MNYE NIINVW



. MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
“FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER ai, 2018
{all amounts are expressed in RON, unless atharwiae mm;

1. THE BANK AND ITS OPERATIONS

Marfin Bank Romans SA { Mirfin Bank Romama® or "the Bank™) was vegisterad Remama ni 1998 8 2
public Hrrted company Bnd i authorized by the Nationat Bank of Romama to-contuct banking activities.
“The Bank 15 mainly conduct-ng banking activities for natursi or legal persons @ Romania and had a
number of 259 empicyees on Decernber 31, J018 (December 21, Mi17. 253). The bank eperates through
= hiead office w1 Bucharest and Hrough 30 bfam,hes ang agencies {December 31, 2017¢ 32} in Bomamna.

Matfin Bank Romama SA 15 3 Romanan ank, with ds registered office in 90-97 Fmanad Porumbary ‘6t,
Bucharest, District 1, registered with O.R L. T.B. {Trade Registry Office attachéd to the Bucharest
Tribwnat) with no. 140/4436/ 1998, having Sole Registration Number ROLDS556861, and bank accourt no,
371133700 RON opened with Natiora) Bank of Bomania Central Office, fax 021.206.42.83. Marfin Bank
Romarus 54 s also rgg&stereﬁ with the Bank Reqistry anger no. RB-PIR-40-044/18.02. 19949, and
steprding to Law mo. 67772001 i s reqisterad i the register of personal data operators with 1o 632.

The Bank's rogistered office is

Marfin Bank Romania SA
80-52 Emanol Porumbark - 3
ﬁu:hmst, mﬂrict i
Romania

On December 31, 2018 the Board of Directors’ structure was as follows:
Chairmari:-
- Mr. Cleovoulos Alexandray
Membare:
W, gmumos Mouzas
- Mr Georgios Athanasopulos
. Mr. Theodor Ciorhal Stanestu

‘The majority sharehie der of the Bank 15 Barnivert Eﬁtwwises Limfed. Tne reguteced office address s 58
arcr, Makaros 111, Irs Tower, gtz 8, 1075

g3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANY ACCOUNTING POLICIES
.5 3 Basis for ‘ﬂmeinl statemaents

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared w0 aceardance with Natanal Bank of #omania
Ofcer no. 27/2010 for the apgrovsl of the Accounting Requlations comphiant with the Irtematinat
Financial Reportimg Standards, applicable to credt instiuhons with subsequent amendments and’
asgitions (*Qrder 27720407 and with the International Financlal Reportng Standards as thay were
adopled by the European Union {"IFRS") and the interpretations adopted by the Interpational Accouhiing
Stanifards Board (*TASB"). The mawn accounting policies 2ppiied wn the preparation of these Francial
statements are prasented befow (Note 2 jetters £) 1o g)} and have been consistently applied for ail the
perods disciosed. ' . '

The accounting records of the Bank ave kKept 1 Romanian lor {mm, Y cam;:.@nce with the acnourting
iaws i Romama, as well as tho hanking rogulations ssusd by the Netonal 8ao% of Romara,

‘Freparation of the fmansial statements in compilance with IFRS mqaelres the managemert mase
judgrnents, estimaies ang assumplions that offect the appiication of accounting policies, and the repcrted
vaiue of the assets, liabihties, income and expenses. The estimates and assumptions related (o the same
are based on historicai data and ather factors thought as indicative under the cdroumstances, and beir

resylt furm the bas:s of lugments used for determining the book vaiue of assets and liabilries for which
there #re ny other avanlable sources The ac. el sesulits may differ fonm the estimiated. vatues,
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___MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
| FOY THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(st amounts are expressed in RON, uniess otherwise stated) _—

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis for financial statements

Eshimates and assumprions are penodicatly revieweo. Revisions IS accounting estmates are recogrized i
the period i wineh the sstimale s reviewed, If the vevisan afects only that peod, or in the perodd the
EELMALON 5 reviewed and fulure penods if the revisien affects hith the current period and Futiye
pefods.

{rifurmation reiated to these estimates used th appliance of the accounting pokicies that carry 4 significant
effect upon the financial statements, a5 wall as the estimates Linplying 2 significant degren of rcertanty,
are presenied In Note 4. - o ; ,

Tne signsficant methods and atcounting pohces presented below have been apphed cansistentiy to i
pencds presented i these Anancial ststements

8} Going concern .

The tinancisd statements of thé Bank Pave beer prapared in aceordance with the activity contauty
prrcple, which impties athwty putsue on ihe partof the Baok in the foruséeable future, '

4} Bank's position in Romaniz

According to the Decree ssued by the Central Bank of Cypraus; publshesd i the Offival Gazette of e
Republy of Cyprus no, 4645 of March 297, 2013, Laiki Bank tranisfersed to the Bank of Cyprus the
CAmanciig granted 1o the Bank, As a vesult, the Baok van ha longer rely 'on Smancial support froat the
parent pank, hence, it i scarching for 3 potential tnvester that wouid tase over the majority shares

. 2018, major changes gocurred 1 (he bank's sharetialthog, as the owrershep of the former sharehoider
of the bark, i.e., Cyprus Popular Bavik Public Co (td Cyprus [99,535052%) was iaken uver by Barmiverd
Enterprises limited. Thus, by lelter no. FG 235/12.03.2018, the Kational Bank of Romama informed
Nestor Nestor Diculescy Kingston Setersen that it dig' not oginose the pians of Barniveld Enterprises
Limded to hokl a direct gualifed awnership of 99.535052% of the subserbed and paig inshare-capitai of
Marfin Bank (Romana) SA, or the plans of Gem Force investments Limited and Mr loannis
Vardingaiannis to hoid indirect quakfied owrership of 99,538052% of rhe subscnbed and parm . ghare
Lapitat of the credit institution

‘Aso in 2018, the share capital was Woreased by EUR 30 rriihon through the convarkon of the
subordinated {oans i smount of YR 30 million classified ag Twer 2 equity, according o the Dedision of
Ahe General Meeting of Sharehioiders of 26.08,2618. Barniveld Enterprises | seited tonk over from Bank of
Cyprus the subortinated lowns o amount of FUR 30 maliion {8t nonunal vaine) m the process of
suthonzation of the new sharcholder, and full payment was, made from the personal funds of Barmiveid
Foterprises Lomted on 30.08, 2018, :

On December 31, 2017, the balarce of funding was EUR'69 millon, of which EUR 40 milhor consisted of
‘subordinated Inans.

:Gn"ﬂemﬁmgl,i(ﬁ& 3li fnancigs granted Lo the Bank by 1k Bank of Cyprus and Tnvestment Bk of
Greece ware remmbuisad: : s , \ :

Follawing these discount rembursemeant transactions, the Bank recorded as mcome the vaise of the
discount, having a sigruficant posdive impact over the Banic's results and over the prudential ratios.

In the present context, the Bank aimed tu maintair acequats lovels of Hquidity s captat adequady.
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_ MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOY THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

{all amounts are expressed in RON, untess otherwise stated)

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (continuoed)

2.1 Basis for financia! statements (continued)
a)  Going concern (continued)
i Bonk's position in Romanix [continued)

The Bank's main satios degistered adequate levels 2% follows

Ratios/ Reporting datn Dec-18 Dee:17
RON RON

Own funds

Own funadg Tler 281 047 369 130,953,968

Total own funds 261,147 369 314,955,881

Capital sdeguacy ratios

Capital auequacy ratip Tier § 26 16% 14.60%

Totat capitsl adeguacy ratio’ 26.18% 35179

Debt-to-Equity ratio 12.92% 6.650%

Liquidity rotios

Liaudity ratig 2.40 378

Quick rato B3 95% 47,154y

Liguhdity coverage ratin (LCH) 417.63% i <) B0

Profitubliity ration

Return off Assets {ROA) 0.53% 0. 200,

Retuin.or Equity (ROE) 3ed% 4.06%

Toral expenses o total revenues a0.11% 162 3%%,

Ratios on the qusiity of the assals

Konperfarming fnans rabio; 6. 54%, (9.13%

Mrpared recewables!Total credits 11 83% 14, 30%%

Other rating

Graoted wans/atiracted deposits 505.23% 55.93%

Tatal gebt/Total aquily 588 1303

As ¢f September 1, 2018, the Bank colculates its owr! funds accordin

ard invastment firms and NBR Regulation ao. 5/ 20.12.2013 on

snstatutions.

: g o Regulztion No. 575/2013 of the
European Pariament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on pradential regquirements for credit insbtutions

prudentss reuicements for credit

In terms of capital management, the Bank assessns capital sdequacy for risks i accordance with the
"Priicy on the internal Capital Adevuncy Assessment”, NBR reguiations and CRD Iv regulations package

respectvely.

Tne prudentiai fiters for 2017 are taken Into account 3s 20%:, whilé for 2018, they are rot taken ima

account.

The Natiorai Bark of Romama, 2s natianal regulatory and supervisory authority of the banlang system,
matitors the Capital reguiremerits of the Bank within the iimits iImposed by EU Regulation no. 57572013
07 Prudentipi requirements for eredit institutions and rrvestiment firms which provide

. “a hasic capital sdequacy ratio Tier § of 4.5%;
. A ?a’p;tal"aﬁegqa@_mﬁ& Tiar £ & 6%
» & tital capital adequacy r.eit'{c;"a‘fjﬁ"fa._



MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
_NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
{all amounts sre sxpressed in RON, uniess otherwisc stated).

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continuad)
2.1 Basis for financial statemants (continued)

a) Golng cancern (continued}

i} Bank's pesition In Romania {continved)

By Urder 22/20.04 2048, thé Naticnal Barik of Rumana iposed ragimpm capitat adeguacy ratios.
comparea to the standard regufstory Inrits, as Tolows:

» a basic capitai adequacy tatio 1.6 1 of 8.59% ¢
2 3 capaal siequacy ratio Tier 1 of 11 50%:.
. 4 wtal cavital adequaty ratw of 15.46%,

Moreover, as of January 1, 2016 the provisions of Oraer No. 1272815 of the National Bank of Reman.a on
‘tha capital conzervation buffer and the anti-cyclic capital buffer are applied so that cradit .nstitutions.
must meet the requicemants of mantaining a fapital buffer egual to 8 sertan percentage of the total
valde of exposure to gk as follews: 5.625%: app wable i 2016, 1.250% applicable in 2017 ang 1.575%,
auphcasle i 2018 ' ' R o

in Hus context, as outhned ot arlicle 2585 4f the Guidelnes sn Caremon Pravetures shd Methodulogios for
e Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process {SREP) of Credit {nstitutions issued by the Europegn
Bamung Authorily, the Owera#t Caoital Reguiremers {QCR) consists of the TSCR requremens, the beffier
requirements set out in the Capita) Requiremants Directive and the addibgnal own funds reguasments to
Cover macre-prudential risks

Aiso, pccording to the prowisions of Order no. 4 / 09.05. 2018 of the Nationsl Bank of Ramania, starting
30 June 2018, credit wigtitutions must meet the requiremants for mainidinmg a systemic sk copital
butfer in aceordance witn the methodoiogy set out in the aninex to the Grder (2% in the case of Marfin
Banik Romama SA}. ' ’ ' ' o

Cersequently, the overall captal requiremient for Total Tier 1 equity {Tier i ORC) is composed of the
TSCR reguirement for the Tier § ‘efuity ret'o and the Capital buffer réquirements {capital buffer applicanle
i 2018 ot 3 rate of 1.875%, or captal butfer for 2% systermt risk al Lonsolldated lovel as of
30.06.2018).

The Bank registeded & profit of RON 19,501,233 for the finantsl yoar ended on'Denember 31, 2018,
reacthing an acrutmutated loss of RON 183,211,157 The finanoal result of the year ended December a1,
2018 was pustively influenced by the gair of RON 32,295,879 frem the reimbursement of 2 subordinated
Joaron amount of EUR 10 maflion towards the Banik of Lypras. This gaw is not generated by the operating
artivity of the Bank. Linder these cirgumstances, it s #mposed that the Bank perform measuses fo: the
sigmficant improvement of s operatioral performance, -

On Septamiber 26, 2018 the new sharchoider wicreased the sharg capital by EUR 3C miflion through the
‘onvarsan of subordmated lpane of the same vaide taken over from Bank of Cyprus.

Thus, accerding to Corpany Lav mof 31/1990, as républished, at Decémber 31, 2018, the Bank's 7et
assets, calcu'ated @s the difference between total assets and total labilitas of the Bani. 15 miore than hatt
of The share capisl, ' ‘ ) '

In additian, the Bank's management believes that they shall b abile 40 take Sppropriate measures o
erabie mairtaining capital and quidity st appropriate levels 19 continge s activity in the foredenablie
tulure

nerefors, baged on the above, the Management beiieves that the usc of the actwity continuity praciple

W prapanng the finannist statements s appropriate.
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MARFIN BANK ROMANIA S&
_ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

_...Lall amounts are expressed in RON, uniess otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continucd)
2.1 Basis for financial statemonts (continued)
B} Basls for evaluation

' The Bank's financial statéments ave beer prépared an the fustonical cost bass convention, modifed by’
1be revaluaton of mvestmernts. at fair valus thraugh other comprehensive income, trading secunties and
detival ves fransactions al far value through profit er loss.

€) Functional and presentation currancy

The hunctionai currency i the Ratnaman Lau {"RON"). The financial statements are prepared and
urazented Iy thousard Ror, unliss otherwise stated. '

d).  Standards end smendmants eifective in the currant period

In 201%, the Bank apphed all mterpretations of the new standards revised or ssued by the Interatonal
-Accounting Standerds Board (IASB} and *he International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committes:
{IFRIC) of the TASSE, adopted Ly the U, which are relevent to the work done by the Bank .

(Staning January 1, 2018, the Bank spphes the new TFRSS financual Finencial Reporting Standara, which
hiag an wnpact on the classficabon 2nd measurement of financial mstruthents, as wei as for getermining
credit nsk adjustments by recognizing the exsgrected losses, and aiso apply IFRS 15 "Revenue from
cantracts with Customers™ and amendinarts 1o IFBS 45 "IFRS 15 Effectwe Date’ - adopted by tha:
Eurnpean Unjon on 22 September 2016 {apoticable to annyal periods bagning on or after 1 lantary
2018) ' ' ‘

The cifferences i measuring and recording financiat agsets ang habilties arising from the application of
IFRS 9@ were recognized n the retainad earnings of the Bank as at 1 January 2018, For details see note”
5 . . , el RREEADE

The Bank has decided not to atopt any of the Standards or Interpretations befure thew effective date,
whicth were prepared for issue ot the date of anproval of these finarcal statements butl which have pot
yel endered inte force.

€)  Changes in accounting policics and revised / amended IFRSs
YFRS 15: Revanue from contracts with clients

This standard 18 vahg for annwal penpds beginiing on or after 1 anusry 2018, IFRS 15 estabishes g fve
stepmogel that will apply to revenyue from a customer contract (with imited exceptions), regardless of
the type of reveoue transatlon of industry, The requirements of the Standard also apply to the
recgambion snd measurement of galns and josses an the sxle of non-firancial sssets that zre not a
sepduction of the ‘entily's ordmary activities {for example, sales of tangible assels or intangie assets),
Wider disclosures, scluding disaggregalion of total ravenue, are required; performance performanre
‘Hormatien; changes n the assets and labiilies account balances Setween periods and key judgments
and oshunates, - " T ' '

IAS 40: Transiers of Real Sstate (Armendmernts)

The amendments shall be effectve for apnual periods beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2018 with an
vartiar permitled apphcation, Changes Carlfy when an entity mus? tramsfer propees, inchiging
properturs under construction oF development, intc or from teal sstale nvestoents. Charges speofy that
& change » use eccurs when the property enters or ceases Yo maet the definition of vestment praperty
and there is evidence of change in use. A simple thange of management's mentions to use 2 prougty

dops rigt show any charge i ysg
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_ MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
_ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
_ FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
{3} amounts are expressed In RON, unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis for financial statements (continued)
€}  Changes in accounting policies and revised / amended IFRSs {continued)

The IASB issued the Annual Improvements to IFRS 2014-20186, which & 4 packagt of
amendments to JFRSs, The amendments are effectivi for annual periods begmning on or after 1 January
2018 fur IFRS § First-time Adoption of [ntematonst Financial Reporting Stendards and for IAS 28
Investments in Joit Ventures and Mrnt ventures, Previous apphication is permitbed for IAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joink Ventures ’ :

* IFRS 1 First-time Aduption of Intemnationsl Financiat Reporting Standards: This Imsrovemrient remeves
short-term rehefs on the tisclosure of financial nstrurents, employee benefits and iwvestment entities
atighicable far the first me to adaptive users,

» IAS 28 Investments u) Assocates and Jomnt Ventures; Tne amendments clanty that the option to N
Teasare at fair waiue through oroft or loss an vestment i an zszociate or # jomd ventire that i neld
by a1 eatily-that s 4 venture capital or other qualifying entity is avatlable for each wwestment i an
associate or Jint venture on an investment-Dy-investment basis at nitial reengnition,

Wit the exr:a@pi'mn of IFRS O Fiparicial lnstm,m'ents; Remg:ﬁzam aam.-%#summmpamséntedbgbw; the
“Bark considers that the agopton of these standards, revisions and snterpretarions.did nut have a matena
gact on ds.annuad feancat statements '

1FRS 9 Financial Instrumsnts

RS & "Frignoel Instruments” replaces 1AS 3% “Finanicis! Instruments: Recognition ang Measyrement
RS 9 became effective as of § January 2018. it contawns changes o the requiremants jalatug to the
-recogrition and measyrement, mpauTnent, derecognition and tpdge accounting.

Llassdication and Measurement - IFRS 9 intioduces pew approacn for the chassification of finendal .
assels, which is driven by cash flow charactenstics and the busmess model m wigh an asset. is hald. Thes
single, pranaple-dased approach replaces existing rule-based requirements under TAS 39 The pew mods)
also resulls 18 a single impairment mocdel beig appited ta 2k Tranca itstrumBnts.

Impalrient - IFRS O has itroduted a new, expectadloss wnpairment mode! that will reguire more timely
‘recognition of expected credit losses. Spedifically, the new standard rzauires antities to account for
expected crear losses fram whign Knantial instrumente are first recognized and to recognize fuli Wetima
expecied losses on a tungiler pasis, for chients with trigger events wientified, mapped . stage 2

Own cregit - iFRY 9 rempves the voiatility n pmﬁt or loss that was msedbv <hanges m the cragit r&s,k_:
of hatiines selected 1o be measured a! fair value, This change in accounting means that Qains caused by
the dererjoration of an entity's owe credit risk on such fapilities are reloager rocognized 1B proft orloss.

The objective of the impairment requiraments is to recogmize early crodit Igssas throughout the tycie for
#il inanoal instrurrents for which sigriticant incraases in credd: Pisk were registered since (ritisi
recognition, given ali the reasonsbie and sustainable infarmation,

IFRS 3 Financiai Instruments (s an accounting standard with a significant imnact on fisk management nid
the buswess model, IPRS @ intraduces & aew approach tor the. cassificavon of financia: assets, winch s
drven by cash flow characteristics and the business model in wisch an puset 5 heid, '

TFRS & was Implemented as of January 1, 2016, The immlementation of RS § took- plate m 2047 and

Joined the classification and valuatior, impaiment and governance stages of 1AS 39 Financial mstruments,
Recoguition and Mezsurement replaccment project.
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 MARFIN BANK ROMANLA SA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(all amounts are expressed in RON, uniass otherwise stated)

e T U —

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis for financial statemants (continged)

) Changes in accounting policios and revised / amended IFRSs (continved)

SPP] tosts ave been performed for both of The Bark's business struciures: retail and corporate ani

appiization of IFRS 9.mpdels 1n credil nsk management,
The Corparate Department 15 formed of two Lmits:
’ Customers Relations Und - manages reiaons with.corporate chiants and assesses / approves the
- leniding offers for cliemts '
«  Analysis Unit - it charge of verfying and anatyzing the financis! evolubics of custamers, deatifyng

potent:al losses a7id proposing correction achons,
Courparate products:

* worklng tapital facities

- anvestient B@BﬂS

» credit cards

=  ron-cash fathihos: letters of gquarantes and letters of credit

The Reta:l Depariment is formed of two unds:

. Lending Unit {LU) - i charge of analyzing and approving the new lending facities and/ar changing
agisting loahs, managing ant solvag customer complaints

- Froduct Development Unit (POU} - in'charge of developing rew retait products (ioans, saving
oroducts and cards) and revising/upaating the existing portioho

Rata produrts

»  Real estate nvestment igans

+  Consymer tgans

] O\W‘-’Fdl"aﬁ'-ﬁ

s Credit cads

- Othier taciiities: fetters of gugraniee

1FRS & requires thit assessment of the business madel as of the first tme agoption, 1.€. January 1, 2018,

After first-time adoption, the buswess models will be revised/valiated f the Circumstances indwate a
thange of butiness made!. - o ' a '

The busmess mpdéf refers to“é&ewav N which the bank manages its Kinanoe: assels n oraer to fenerate
tash fiows. Thus, the bank’s business model refies on the fact thot cash will fiow to the bank due lo the
rolbacttn of coigractual cash figws,

The nusiness moedel and bank sitategy fur cunrent praducts are to own and cattect prncipal ang interost
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2.

MARFIN BANK ’ROMANﬂ SA
NOTES YD FINANCIAL STATEKENTS
FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
{ali amounts are expressed in Rmi unless otherwise stated)

2.1 Basis for financial statements (continued)

e)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Standerds and amendments to the standards issued by IASB and adopted by EU

Tre bank's business modet and’ strategy for current products consist of holding and. coliecting rhe
snrewral and the interest.

The surhmary of the firiancial impact of IFRE 9 adaption is présemed beimiv:

[ e :‘ T, TEEIT * = F——
- , :Wum }amw@dm Beznaing balenes i
Claspiestion s Classitisation i . I% a0 HDecember | sad other serordanasia IAS
acoordagee to IAS 38 !ancordapee 1o IAS 39 a0 ssiipstimenes au!msesfa
Assots il 1 .. Fou
FCak AT |Camnin TR , EETCH 321D
[Tk SASFAEA R [ Corh andbanres ] WRCTwE, R e I
|Conmaliiam c'@:ﬂ X M. el 17885052 CALTH £y T S
{Facemects ol barb s Elacameres woh barke 01551359 W TR T
THE 3 _-sz' L8ans abe slveaticwste I .
cottoenets comtomess . o Xl WL, L. S W ..o
ST B anc-ﬂmhwmm &7 At P ¢ -
| TS et TRPIEIRNS g e RS Zﬁm&r -
Camrent t remwahlﬂz Cu,;rsmanwwwm e o AR5
Clartaipdtin _.Lafe_mh_a_:gw _|Ovemedica T LT _BMHEAy
Sl e it FRened sorets al"auﬂaa
ntan iy angaty intorpibls ascere — . HBME JABIEE =
[ Propenty and eapien: Propanty and squipmsnt CRAZEgHt B2 I%Y
Ot vnEnols] avsere . Jothas finomei a0 sets BT AR
Othe: wssers Cithor sssets A MEITEDY el AR ETE
Tousl assots Totel assots _ _AIFIETE.I6 798870 L823.Cy8 08t
tist e ]
Depbwrebombicks  |Deposis tombands BRI 105 228 222
Earmnmmm:m . {DepasiShomeustonns tmw 1 1SAR i
[ 5ot nand ic as Buociaisdioane 000 T NG HE G645
Q0vot T dabities Tt Dvatesia [abiips M E LR LA
Ll keblinas. _ $Tthey Ieltios [ $PRENE-
o isions for Rigatiars JPaisnng i bugunons 20035 - NI
N — Prowsiens torishe ndchmgrs | migm B _ wsm
Yata! labl ers Fotal Kakdlsion 1 WAISIRLONe 1480 L33, 48,544
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__MARFIN BANK ROMANIA 5A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(all amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
2.1 Basis for finencial statements (cominued)

f)  Standards and interpretations issued by the IASB and adopted by the EU but not yet
applicatve

As 2l the gate of approval of these financist statements, the tolldwing new stendards wssuerd by TASA and
sdopred by the £U are st effective. -

¢ IFRS 16 "Loases™ - adopted by the ZU on 31 October 201 7 (applicabile 19 annual perods beginting on
or aftgr 1-Januaty 2019} In accordance with IFRS 16, o essee recognizes an asset of the nght of use
arid a lease. Asset-backed assers are treated in tvé same wav as cther ron-financial assets and are
therefGre amortized accordingly. The leass rate is initia¥y measured at the presont vaiue of the iease
Dayments payable over the iease term, updated ot the defaalt rate n the lease If it can be easily
determinea. If this rate can not be easily cetermingd, the lessee wili yse their incrementa loas rate.
-As it the case-of the predecessor of IFRS 16, IAS 17, leasers dlassify leases as being opevational or
financial. A tease is clossificd a5 3 Haance fease if ¢ substantially transfers all the risks and rewards i
incidental to the awnershup of g urderlying ssset. Otherwise, a lease 1s dlassified as ap pperating lease,
For financial igases; a iessor recogruzes financial infome gver the iease rerm, based op a pattarn that
reflects a constard pencaic rate of rétarn on ret investment. A locater recognizes aperating fease
payments as income on a Hinear bass or, i more representative of the pattern 1t which the profit fron
tne ygoe of e undetlying asset is dhmerished, anpther systematc basis, T

IFRS 9° Advances of Early Payments with Negative Compensation lesued by the 1ASH on 12 Dctoper
2017, The amendments modify the exlutwig requirenents 1 IFRS 9 on Lermanatitay vights to aliow an
assessmnt nf depreclatec costs (o, depending on the business mode!, other comprenensive iicome 1
even in thi Case of negative compensation payments. In accordance with the amendments, the sgn of
the prepayment is irrelevant, 1 &. Depending on the interest prevailing at the hine of termanation, a
payment may be made to the Contractmg Party making fhe garty repayment. The zalcuation of thus
rompensation must be the same in the case of an early répavmaoit panaity as well as 1 the Case of early

repayment .

» Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of & enterprise issued by the IASB un 22 Cctaber 2018, Changes
Fave peen miroduced to improve the definition of a business. The modified definition emphasizes that the
_production of an enteronse is to provide goods and services to customers, whiie the previows delinibon
has focused on returns i the form of dividends, reduced cos!s, o other aconomic benafits to investors
‘and athers. Ir addition to changing the text of the definibien, the council has provided additionat
‘guidance, R ‘ ' ‘ ' '

Vit the exception of IFRS 16 - ipase Contracts, présented below, the Bank expacts that the adeption of e
these standards, revisions and interpretations will not have a maternial impaet on s finanriat staterminls
‘duning the mitig! penog pf application

* Amendments to the different standarits resuitng from the IFRS 3 (IFRS 3, TFRS 11, 1AS 12 and IAS

23] "Changes to Diiferent Standards Due 1o Improvements to IFRSs (Cycle 2015-2017¥, prepared by %
IS8 Decemper 12, 2017.) First of 3, it order 1o slimmate the incensistencles and clarify the forms. The
amendments cigtify 1hat: Arertorprise reassesses its previousiy held interest in a joirt operation when
obtains control of the-busmess (IFRS 3); a ecompany dees ot reassess its previops interast v a jomnl
venture when It a0Guires Joint contrp! of the enterprise {IFRS 11}, a company 2ecounts for aYf the income

tay ronsecuerces of dividends m the same way (1AS 12); and a usmpany treats any loan originally made

tc develor an asset when the #sset 1s ready for intended vse or sale {IAS 23} undor the genera! luans.

:w;'th‘-zthg exception of IFRS 16+ Lodse Contrarts preserted bataw, the Bank expects (hat the adophion of
thesa standards, revisions and interpretations wili not have 3 material impact on s Gpanoal statements
durihy the initial panod of apphication S ' '

Al 1he date of approval of these financial statements, the following niew standards issued by the IASB and
adopted by the EU arc not yet i force: ' .
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
2.1 Basis for financial statemants (continued)

f). Standards and interpretations issyed by the TASB and adopted by the EU but not yet
applicable (continuad). '

IFRS 16 - Leases - Impact of appiying IFRS. 16 Leasing

IFRS. 16 provides a comprehensive mode: tor identifyig rertal arrangomunts ang accounting treatmant
n-financial statements for both iessees and tenants. ' B '

IFRS 16 become effcctive as of 1 January 2015 and JAS 17 “Leases”:and rélated imrerpretations: 1FRIC
4, SIC 15 and SIC 27, : .

- The purpose of the new Standard s 1o fackitate the Cormparahitity of financial statements by presenting
bati financial and operating icases i the financial of atements of the lessee and providing informaton to
users OF Lhe Tnancial statements about the rsks associated with the SO ERmInts,

The date of mutial apphication of IFRS 16 wid be January L. 2019. The Bank wif riot retrieve comparative

The impact of the naw definition of 5 lease

IFRS 16 provides 4 new definition uf the leuse, However, the Bank will use the practical benefits avalabie
Lo L transition 1o IFRS 16 (a0 order not to ré-cvaluate whether s ¢ontras 15 or contdins a lpase,
Consequently, the definition of 3 lease under 1AS 17 and IFRIC 4 wili continue to apply to thoso laases
farce before 1 January 2019, o

Phe essential element thet diffirentiates the definition of & fease udder IAS 17 and IFRS 16 (s the cancapt
-of control. In aceordance witn IFRS 186, 3 contract s considéred 3 lease IF it Lransfers the rghts to control
the use of 4r asset wleotfiea for a diven period 'r.return for consideration, Csnteol is deemet o the chent
has: " ' ‘

*  the nght to acquire substantially @il of the eroramic benefits from the use of an identined assat:
ang

= the nght 1 direct the use of such asset,

The new definition of the lease and the related BuiANNEs set out i IFRS 16 wili apply to all ieasds.
entered oD or amerded on or aftar t Janyary 2019, ' ' '

I preparation for the irst-ime adoption of 1FRS 16, the Bark nas compléted an impiementation project.
Tne profect has revedled that the new definition o IFRS 16 witl nut significantly changs the scope of
cuntracts thet meet the defnition of a oase.

Impacr on lossee Jocounting

The new standard breaks the distinction hetween operating and firance leaves in the igsses’s records and
requires recogmition of the nght to use as an asset and the melated lsace lLability for il of the Jessee's
contracts, extept for short-ternm lease contracis and low value contracts, which are subject ta.
exepiptions.

Unan pytiai appication of IFRS L6, for lesses praviously cassified a5 operating feases, the Bank wiil
recognize the ngt-of-use asset and the rsase Latdities as hamiity in the bank'g finangl positubn

In acdision, for cach separate lesse, the lease labildy will init@fly e measwed at the présent viive of
the remaning lease payments . discounted using the incremental gearing rano. In this respect, 1he Bark
nas decded to usé discount rales on iTases Lonatracts with simiiar featur es, #is0 raking ko Actpurt the
iease lerm 28t N the contract; I ' '
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
21 Basis for ﬁmﬁai'_mw {_:mﬂﬂuﬁfi-}'

)  Standards and interpretations issued by the JASB and adopted by the BU but not yet
appticabie (continued) - |

Impact on lessée accounting

upor initial apphcation of IFRS 16, the nght-of-use assets of all ieases (except those that fall under the
exception} will initlally oe valued at an amount egual to the lease Labitly adiusted for the amount of al
tease payments paid s advance or related to such contract, recogmzerd n the statement of finsncial

posdion brimedistely proi to the dgtg of utial sppﬁca,t;!qﬂ:

e are no cases of a'luwsncas for the nght of use recognized as ar asset 8 the date o mitial
spptication A e ‘

Costs related to VAT obhgations witl be excluded trom the right of yse, _ .
Bubsequent to initial appbeation, the Bank w recognize the deprecianon of right-of-use agsets and shterest

o izase abilties in the incame statement.
- Amgants. pa-wil mnﬁsi of principal {presenteid «n the statemernt of £ash Nows as Financing actwities] ard
rerest {presented i the statemont of cash Nows 35 operating activities,

N chaniges will be made to the sceounting for operating leases which at 1 January 2019 wili have a rental
cperod-af L2 months or less, and in the case of low - vaiue lrases. ' ' '
Estimates in the application of IFRS 16
The Implementatioh of IFRS 16 requifes the use of Jdgment to mexe cortpin estmates and assumptions
U2t meas.re the finance lease and avadable-for-use assets, These include, amang cthery:
+  determination of the remaining lease period for lease cantracts conciutted before 1 January 019,

s determination of the incremental interest rabos ta be appiigd for the purpose of redocing fulure
cash fiows; - : ik ikl ‘ g

* determmation of the period and the Gmortization rate for the right-of-use asséts recognized at 1

January 2019°
Financlal impact of the adoption of IFRS 16
The mam aspetts considerad ' the sdoption of JFRS 16
+ prospective approach to-be used as of Janvary 1, 2019

s for cantracts subject to VAT, the related VAT wilf be traated separately as cost when ¢ will be
eligible al the tme of receipt of the nvoice (e.g. Pioiesti, Musiior, Brafia ard Pipara, But jess thun
1yeary. - i)

» the cash gusrantees concluded for some feases wilt not be wchided in RTU (e, Plozesti, Sept 17,
‘Baia Mare, HO & MB and AM, which s hawever less than 1 year)

« KTy witl be calculated in local curroncy (RON), whie LL in EUR, as stipuiated in-the leases {ali
cxcepl the one in RGN - Plowest branch): this will generate an open EUR-BUR posslion of
‘approsmiataly EUR 6 million (depending.on the ultimate 'wvel of the giscount factur)

» thediscount factor used for EUR-denominated contracts witi be quoted 1 Romarvar govarmrment
bonds (RGB) publihed on Januacy 3, 2015 or those ssued whenever new contracts are.
consiuged:
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continusd)
2.1 Basis for tinancial statements (continued).

f}  Standards ond interprotations issued by the IASS and adoptad by the EU but not yet
-applicoble (continued)

Financial impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 {continued)
»  the discount Factor used for RON-denardnated contzsets wili be quited w Romamian govermenent
bonds {RGB) pblished or January 3, 2018 or thyse wsved whenever new contracts ace '
ranciuded ' o B ' '
* PGB maturities wifl be'matched on the matunty of the (ease

= the exchange rate used Lo conver! the Right-of-Use will be the RON / EUR exrhange rate
avaliable on Yanupcy 3, 2R or the one issued wienever new vontracts are conriuded

o RYL depreciation wil be on & stosght -hipe besis

‘+ for ail lease cuntracts concivded at the date of adaptian, iFRS 16 wiil.appiy, except for those with

a term of 12 months or iess {€.g. Mgm accommodation contracts}.

= alt rent@l cortracts Wit iese thas wrig year tertn will be ;.;;afd;q:séﬁar;a;tek_vﬁi?eﬂ!y'a’g fease Loty

(e.g. Mgm, BCP, Prpera)

*»  locus G substance gver Form in the case nf Clguses on the termy of the itases (the comtractual
cause - “uniateral torminstion by one of the parties, through s six-month prar potics”)

Each contract has one artiche related to the terrminabion of the iease, which shpulates 25 follows. the lease

-may be termipaten in the following cases:
«  expiry of the lease
« mutusl agresment of the parties -
«  either party’s cefault on the obligations assumed
. :unge.staéaé rerminatsin by ary of the parties, sudject ta.a prior notice of six manths

taven the Tegal aspect, the six-manth térm stipulatied in the cantracts, sithough apahcable as an exteption
to the standard (leases of 12 months or fess), the economic sspect was deemed more refevant, given the
date of the inttial cantract, and the F;q that the lease of branches 14 yeasanably certaln for the gong

cerEtn pringiple,

Tnee surmmerised finsncial impact on the adoption of IFRS, 16 13 presentad below:

inttie! spplcation

‘ Ismm trom sdosting RS 18 { RON} 2.01.2815 ;
lexchimgs rate RONJEUR 4.6639 |
‘Righ of use, out &l which 41,976,985 |
‘brench offices ond hecdquaners 41,847,318 |
ATMs 109,667 |
Lesst ebligator, out of which 41,556,985 !
;'ii}ﬁ conirasts ;éi.ﬁli,ﬁﬁ-i

LROMN conttacts . A3ia5e ]

As 5t December 31, 2018, the Bank has a number of 35 teasey, of wiich: 30 e tonclugded to iease
spaces needed for the activily of the bank's branthes and head offize, 2 for the accommosation of the
bars's offizers and § Tor the lease of ATMs.

‘Out of tre 35 contracts, 4 are conciuted 191 less than 12 manths, thiss they wera eiciudes Fros the
calculation of tha eight of use.
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_MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
_ FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
2.3  Rasis for financial statemonts {mnﬁmwd)

f}  Standards and intorpretations issued by the IASB and adopted by the EU but not yet
applicable {continued) | o

Financlal impact of the adoption of IFRS 18 (continued)
Out of the 35 coritracts taken mto aceount, only one is concluded m ROM, and the FOMmaning are

concluded in EUR, thus the redse liabiiity will be regatered in the contractual currency. Shis aspect wish
generate an exchange position i EUR In amount of EUR 8,924,612,

The estimated «mpact on the buni's fmancial position at e gate of mmai applicat:on 18 RON 41,556 985,
at-the exchange rate published by the NBR at the date of witial application (4.6639), )

The estimated impact on profit af togs m 2019 is the decreased Operating costs with leases and Incresse
ot expenses of deprecabion and nterest,

9)  Standards and interpretations issued by IASB, but nat yet adopéed by the EU

At present, 1FRS as adopted by the EU 06 not significantly differ from regulations adapted by the TASE
excepd for the following new standards, amendmarts to the existing standards and nterpretabisns, which

-were not-endorsed for use it BU as at the authorization of these Snancial statemers:

*  IFRS 14 “Rogulatory Deterrol Accounts® (stfective for snnual perlogs beginsing on or after |
January 2016} - the European Commission Mas decided not 0 3unc the endorsement process of
lds imer: standarg ana to wai, for the hinal standard, o

» IFRS 17 "Insurance Controcts” leffective Tor annual periods beginting on or after 1 January 2021;,

*  Amendmonts to IFRS 3 "Business Combinutions” - Defintion of d Businiess {effective tor
businss combinations for wowch the acquisition date is on or aftor the beginming of the fest
anmual reporting penod begwmng on or after 1 Jarusry 2020 and to assel acqis-tons that pecLr
onor after the beginmng of that pened), ) o

¢ Amendments to IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financiyl Stutoments™ and JAS 28 “Investmants
in Assoclates and Jolnt Ventures™ - Sale or Cantribution of Assets between an Investor and s
Agseoiate or Joint Veoture and further amendments {effective date deferrad indefinitaly st the
research project or: the equity methnd has been concluged), D

*  Amendmonts to TAS 1 “Presentation of Finencial Stutements® and IAS 8@ “Accounting
Policies, Changos in Accounting Estimates and Errors” - Debiiton of Materiat {effective for
annual periods baginning on o after | Jancary 2020),

s Amendments to References to the Conceptusi Framework in IFRS Standards (eftective for
aniual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020, ' '

The Bank ddes rot expect these standards, rewsions and interpretations fo have a-substantiai effect an-
its annual Pranca staternents when they apply for the Rrst time,

2.2 Actounting for the efiects of hyperinfistion

Frior to January 1. 2004, tne adjustmerts and reclassifications of the statutory arvounting records for
complance withthe International Financial Reporting Standards inciuded restaternent of hatances ang
transactions i proer to reflect the purchasing power of the national currency, in acoordance with FAS 29
{"Firancial Reportng Standards in Hypednflationary Economies). 1AS 29 require that fimancal statements
prepared n the currency of & hypermfiationary economy-be displayed ip the currency rate at the balsnce
sheet date, On January 1, 2004, the Bank dd rot apply the provisigns of 1A% 29, a5 In the Remiaman
Economic ervronment the nypeninfiation teatures disappeared. Accordingly, the amounts in the present
currency, on December 31, 2007, were presented at carrying value o this finanoal statements, The
retrachon was based on the copversion factor: Consumer Price Tndex (CP1Y v Romania pubiished by the
Neatona: Btatistics Commassion o o ' '
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e ¢ i

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTENG POLICIES (continised)

2.3 Foreign currency

Trarisactjens deromynated in foreign currencies are transtated into RON at the official rate of excnange of
the lransaction Jdate. Monetary assets and nabiitles it forsign Luirenicies at the balante sheet date are
deranvraterd in the functional currency at the exchange rate of the day,

Non-monetary asséts snd (abiidies thel are meastred at historical cost in a foreign currency are tansiated
using the exchange rate at the transachon date. Non-monetary assets and aabilties derominitod m torggn
aurrencies that are measured af fair value are recorded in the functionat currency at the exchange rate at

the-date the Fair value was deterrmined,

Revaluation diferances are presented in-the wigome statament, except for dfferences arsing from the
revahaation of aveliable-for-saie equity mvestments, which are incluged In the reserve from the change
faw vatue of these financigt instruraents.,

The Bxchainge rates for the man foreign rurrenies ware:

Ducersber 31, Pecambear 31,
Eurg (FURY 1 RON 4 .6639 1 RON & 5507
Us Bedar {USDY 1: RON 4 0726 1+ RON 35,8915

24 Financial assets snd fabilitles
2.4.1 Financiz! assets
a) Cassification

The Bank tlassifiox ity financial dssets in the following categores: Tinencill assets at fair vatue througn
profit or loss; loans and receivables; financlal instruments at amortse:l cost; and Hinanciai ausets A fair
value through other comprehensive income. The management determings the cassification of its
investrents at et recogration. ' ' ' . '

Financiai assets af 1air va'ue through profit or loss

“This Category compnses tws sub-greups. tinanclal assets held fof trading, and those designated st far
value through proft or ipss at incoption. Financai assers are classifieg m thes category «f acqured
prncipally for the purpose of sehing in the short term or if %0 desiguated by management. The Bank taes
not surreatly have financial assets at fair value through profit or foss. Derwvstives are also categoriged as
“heid for trading uniess they are designated as hedges. S ' I

{ij,  Loans and recenvabies are fipn-derivative ingncial assets with fuced or daterminabie payments that
are not fuolted 11 an active Market, other then: (a) those thar the Bank intends to soli immedsately
a1 the short term, which are dassified as held for trading, and those designated by the Bank as
fancial assets at imtial recoanition at fair value theough prafit or Joss; (b1 those that the Banx
gesignated on imtial recogrution a5 measured at fair value through othzr comprrhensive i deiigl B
() those about which the holder may not recover substantiaby the iitial investrment, ether than

bocause of the impamment losges. -
fu}  Financiat snsteuments at amortised cost are non-erivative knanciat assets that are quotod 1y an

#ctive market with fixad determinable payments and fixed matarities, which the Bank's
misagement has the intent and ability o hold to maturity. In casethe Bunk decides to'sefi a
synficant porton of these secunties during the cusrent financial year ar this took place during the
twa preceding hnsncial years, the entire categary would be reclassified to available-for-sale

financial asscls.
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2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [cantinued)
2.4 Finandial agsats and liablfities (continuod)

2.4.1 Financial assets (continved)

2) Classification (continued)

(w1t Finantial assets at fair velue thiough other tomprehensive income are represented by avestrents
the banx mlends to keep for an indetinite perod, and that can be sold as a result of the nead for
liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or stock prices.

'anancm_a'!"assets.m’fa':rtvafl‘s_é_ tRrough oihar compretienisive income are measured at market valus.
inferest income related to avarlabie-for-sale financial assets (s calcutated using (he effective mterest
method and recognided i profit o loss of the year. (M '

Dividerds.or squity mstruments at fair value through other comprehensive incorhe are recogmaed 1t the
enme statement in the year when the Bank's night to collect them is established and it 1¢ probabie that
the dividends be cailected. AN other elements of changes in far vakue are recogmead n other _
‘corppretensive meome untl the investment s derecognized or impaired at which tirme the cumuabive

gain or loss is reciassified from tntal income in the profit or joss of B year.

Agreements for sale and purchase of securites. Thi sole and repurchase agreements of securtips
(Trepu”™) thar provide the lender & profit, are treated as secured financing transachons, Sevurities sofd
dndes these types of agreements of sale ang repurchisse are pol derecognised. Securities are eclzss;fiag
i the statement of Fnancal position only if the transferce has the right by contract to sell or pledge the
stcurities, in wiich cise they are reclassified as ropucchased raceivables. The corresponding lability 5
-presented inthe category af gepossts from banks or loans from banks angd other financial mskiutions

Secusities purchased undar & chmmtmant to resell {"révirse repn”) that provide a profit vo the Bard, are
recorded an loans and deposits at banks or i0ans and advances to customers, as appropreste, The
gifference between sale snd repurchase price, adjusted with interest and the dividengs income collected
by cthir banks, 13 treated as interest ncome and estimated during feverse reps agragments by using the
offestive mtorost methad ' ‘ ‘ ‘ B

b}  Recognition

Fnancial assets are imtially measured-at fatr value pius, m the case of financia! assels ather then those at
Tair value thepugh proft or ioss, the directly altnbutabie transaction costs.

The Bank iniaally recogrizes loans and advances and Saposis assignes ok the date they are intidted. Ad

other finencral assets (including those desianated at Fair value through profit or 1055} Are IRty recognized.
or the settiement date. Derivatives are recognized when the parties pecome partles i the transpction,

¢) ‘Derecognition

Thuz Bark therecognizas 3 financial asset whean the contractiua rights to roceive cashfiows from that financial
assel_expue, or when the Bank has transferred s rights to receve contractual cash flows attributabie to
tial financial ssset w8 transaction in which it has transferred substantially 2l fisks and benciits of
ownerstip of the fnancal asset. ' - o _ _

4}  Reclassification

Upon transition to TFRS 9, the Bank ook the irrevacable decision to dassify financial assets at fair velue
through gther comprebensivd incame.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Financial assets and labilities (continucd)

2.4.1 Financisl assets (continued)

2) Offeets

Assets and firanclal iabiitiés are offset, and the net result Is presented in the statement of financial
pasition only when there 15 a iegal nght of pffset and thers 15 the 1nteabon of thar settiement o 2 net
nasis, or f I ie ntended to realae the asset and the extnction simuitaneously,

Revenues ard evpénses are presented on a net biasis only when peérnitted by the accatinting standards,
or as gar 3and loss arising from & group of sunilar transactions surh s the trading activity uf the Rank.

1.4.2. Financia) Habilities

The Bank Ras financial nabihiies st far vaie Irough profit or toss tirichating finanoal labilities held for
tradirg and those designated at far walue through profit or Ines} ard finantial labilibes at amortized cost.
Financial Iablities are derecogmsed when they are extingwshed - . e when the obligaticr s deleted,
canefied or when they expre, '

a)  Financial iabilities at fair value through profit or foas

This category compnses two sub-groups: financial habllities hefd for raing ang those designated ar far
value thraugh profit or ioss. Finantial iabities are classifien m this category of they are obtatngd
primandy for the purpose of sellng in the neas future or if 50 designated by the management, Currently.’

~the Bank does not have financial habibbies at Fir vaiue thraugh peotiy or toss, Dervatives ara also
categorized as hald for Lrading uess they are desighated as hedg:ng instriiments:

b)  Other liabllithos of amortized cost

The f:nancial liabilities not at fair value through profit or-joss, or those that arc not dassified in this
tategory are measured at amorteed rost, Binancial ilabilities at amartized cost aze deposits from orner
-banks or from customers, debt secunbes 1 question for which the tar value and suborginated debt
-eption 15 not apphed, ' ' ’ )

2.5 Principles of assessment at faif vatus

The fair vales of guoted investments in activé markets 2re based 5n tid price i the case o bends and
on the average price in the case of dervatives. If the markel of 3 financat dsset 1s not attive {uniisted
secuntes ahd derivatives), the Bank estabiishes the fair value by usmyg valuation techriques and maodsls
deveioped internatly. These mclude the use of racent transactions with objective price and discounted
tash Pow analysis. ’ o o

2.6 Derluptives
Dervatives are inhally recognized at fair value on the date a derivalive contract is entered into and are

subisequently re-measured at their fair valuz. Fair values are abtained from quoted prices ir sclive
markets, moludmg recent market traiisactions, as well as based on evdiuatmn'tachmq’ues_mﬁluﬁmg’
discounted cash flow models Al dervatives are recordud as gssers when far value i postive and as

tabibties when fair vaiue 5 negative.

2.7 Intcrest incoma and expanse.
Interest wome and expenses are recorded in the proft or loss for ali mstrumients messured ar amortizes

<5t using the effective mterest methad. Inkarest wmeome includes roupons refated fed imcome
investrient secuntios, discounts and premiums eamed Srom breasury certifizates.
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2, SUMMARY OF SYGNIFTCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continuad)
2.7 Interest income.and expense

The effectve mterest melhod s @ method of caltutating the amortized ¢ost of a fnarcial asset or a
financ.at obligation arg afocation of incume and expehse over the relevant perod, The effective interast
rate 15 the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or recents through the expected
Irfe of the firancial instvwment or, where appropriate, a shorter pariod to the net carryng amount of the
financial asset or finanoal iabhbily. In salculating the effective intevest rate, the Bank ectimates cash flows
tonsidenng sil esntractual terms of the Ainsnoal instrument {fur.example, paymant optiens beforehand)
but there are not considered future gradit insses. The calculsbion incudes 21l fees and amounts paig or
rectived between parties I the contract {hat are on irtegral part of the effectwe interpgt rate, transackion

costs and other premiums or discounts,
Once the value of an asset or group of firancial assets has been decreased due to an imparment 1oss,
isterest nCome 15 recognized uting the tnrerest rate usea o distount future cash flaws 1O measure
nrgarment loss;

2.8 Income from fees and commissions

Gereratly, fees and commissiing are recognized an #n atcrual basig at the time of service: Loan
onginziion fees with the possiity of withdrawat of amounts are recogmizeo 3s acorued income as
adpstents 10 the sffective yield of the loan, ‘ ‘ '

Fees and commissiuns comprise maimnly the fass charged for the actvity of amounts transfer to
customers, trading seturibas and foreign exchange transactions, issuing Ietters of guarantes and letters
of cradit ana fees on the current actoumts. ' '

Income from the Bank's fees and comimissions also mciude fees from msurance companies For insucance
brokerate oporations. Revenues related to these services are recegnized m the penodin wieh services
. are providéd and the meome receved. : :

2.9 Dividends
Bevuderds on orinaty shares are recogrzed in other comprehansive Income i the pened they are

approved by the Annual Genersl Sharehoigers Mecting.
2.10 Controcts of sale with repurchase clause

Sccurities sold under Eantracts of sale with répurchase Hiause ("repos®) are classified in the financial
statemerts as financial instruments at’ amortised cost sndd the counterparty obligatian is included ir
amoLnts due Lo customers and banks. o : S _

Tne diferenre between the sale and repurchase price Is considered as interest and recogrized over the
fe of the cantracts of sale with repyrchase clause, using Yhe effective vield method.

2.1 Ympairment of financial nseats

At gach Lalance sheet date, the Bank assesses whetficr there S objective evidence that a Fnancigl asset
o group. of finsncial assels is impaired. & financial asset or group of Minancal assets is impaired and
imparment losses are recorded o, and only if, there is ohiective evidence of IMpaTMent a5 & result of
ore i mane ewents that eccurred after the imtial fecognition of the assel (a loss event) and that loss
evant for avems) has an impatt on the estimated future cash flows of the financal assel pr group of
Trancial assets that car be refiably jredicted.
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MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 _
{alt amounts are expressed in RON, uniess othérwise stated)

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICYES (continuad)
2.11 Impairment of financiat assets {continued)
@) Assets measured at amortized cost {conlinued)

The rriteria that the Bank uses t6 determine whetner there s objective evidence of impairrnent loss
ificfude.

. breachy of conteaétual wbiligations for reiated payment of Gredit or interest;

. cash fiow difficuities experienced by the debiar;

. breach of ioan agreaments or cordiliong;

»  smination of bankruptcy, soivercy o+ enforcement proceedinias,

«  detenoration of the debtor's competitive POzt

* duteroration of coliateral value;

. smpairnent below the acceptable risk for :wesimer&i; '

- over 30 dé_yﬂ‘ést_ dug; or

. ‘restructuring activities exposure

The Bark estimates the penod between the bme the Ioss cecurs and when + is identified Tor each
wdentified porifoh

First, the Bank sssesses whether objective éviderice of impairment exists indi vicuglly for Bnarcual sseets:
that are indvidually sigmficant, and collectively for Francial assets that gre ot individually sigaificant, ¥
thie Bark determines that no objective evidence of impairmem exists Tor an mdivilually assessed financiat
assel, whether s.gadficant or not, the asset is included 18 a group of finantial assets. wiith similar chedit risk
characteristics, being calletlively assessed for impairment identfication. Assots iInrdnaduaily assessed for
mpaernert gnd for which pr impairtment Joss 15 or continues to de récogmed are not ncluded in a.
Coilective assessment of impaarmant,

Tre amount of the loss 15 measured as the difference between the asset's carryig amount snd the
‘presedl vatue OF astimated Futyre cash flows (excluding fiture credit iossas that kave ngt yet been
‘regletered) discounted at the original effective mtergst rate fingncial asset. R

The carrying amount of the asset 15 reduced through use of an impairment aliowance accourt and the
amount of ks 15 recorded m profit or i9ss. Where 2 Joan o ivestment at ameorhised cost has a vaniabie
Intzrest rave, the discount rate for evaluating the impairment 585 5 the current effective interest -are
-determined under the contract.

Lalelanng the present value of futare cash flows for financial assets refiects the cash flows setured
‘which rauld resutt in tess vests fr obbamning security adjudicahion and seiling the collateral, whether
enforcerent proceedings 15 ikely oF not . ) ' '

For the avaluation for imparment identification, financial assets are grouped on the basis of simifar credic
‘nisikcharactenstics (1.e. based on the typa of chent, type of product depending on securties). These ,
characteristics are retevant to the 2stimetieon of future cash Rows retated to groups of such assets, heing
tnd:cative of the debtors’ abvity to pay aff amounts due according to the contractuad terms for the assets
being avaluated,
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MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
_ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
{ail amounts are expressed in RON, uniess otherwise stoted)

2, 'SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (continued)
2.11 Ampairment of finencial assets :('mﬂnm_d}
8)  Assets mossured at amortized cost {continued}

The segmentation of U porifolia according to the codes existing in the Bank's software 1s the following:

fF KON REVCHLVING UNSECUPED
PF NON REVOLVING SECUREL
'PE REVOLVING UNSECURED.

P] NON REVOLVING SECURED

P] REVOLVING UNSECURED

P} REVDLVING SECURED

Future cask fows related to a group of financ:al assats with a vew to identifying impagment are .
estimated o the basis of the contragtial cash Tlows refated to the assets of the Bank and on fustercal
‘085 expenence for Asseks relate to simiar credit sk charactoristics. Historical loss expenence 16
adjtsted on the basis of guantifiable infarination current to refiect *he effects of current conditions that
did not affoct thie period on which the historical lnss expenence is based and to remove the efferts of
concihons i the lstorcal pefiod, these tonditions re ionger vaid. '

- Estimates of chapges i fature cash fows for groupe of agsets should reflact dnd be consistent with.
‘guantitable miormation changes from one penad (o anetler {for =¥ample, chenges »v uremployment
tates, property prices, payment stuation or sther factors mdicating changes i the probabitty of incurnng
fosses in the group and their magniude). The methadology ang assurmphions used for eslirmating future
tash faws arc reviewed regularty by the Bank Lo reduce difforopces Detween loss estinates ang actual
8% FXpETIency.

It; durihy subsequent period, the amount of the impairmient loss técreases and the derrease ¢an be
related objectively to an event accurring after the mpairment was recognized (such as an mprovement
in-the debtor's tredi rating), the previousiy recognized smpmement loss 1s reversed (o income by
adjustmng the gliowance acceust in the icome statement. '

i scordance with 1FRS 9, in some circumstances, an entity does net have reasonable and sustanable
srformation that is avaitable witnout undue cast or effart to measure estmatad fifetime loss on an
mihvedual bess. In this case, the tfebme expacted credit j0ss is racogrizet on a collective basis that
considers camprehensive credit risk iaformation, This comprehensive credit risk information shauld
‘nclude not onty past information, but aise afl retevant cradit infarmation, inciuding future macroeconnmir
information (GOP evulation), o appraximate the outcome of recogrizing lifetime expacted credit foss
when there was a significant intrease in credit risk from imhigl Fecognition at ingividua! leved,

Prstructured ioans are considersst Impaired for at lerst 12 months of restructuning, iF upon restructuring
they were nonpatiorming.

It there s ohjective evidorce that an impairment inss on loang his securied, the amoynt of fogs 15
getermined a4 the dfference botween the carrying value of loans and the pregent vaiue of sstimated
future cash Sows {excluding future credit losses that have not occurred) discounted at the onginal
effectivie terest rate Of the financial asser (1.e., the effective interest ratz computed at ipitias
tacognition),



MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
{ail amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise : stated}

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNYING POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Impairment of financlal assots (continued)

a)  Assets measured at amortized cost {continued)

Write-off joans {continued)

The carrying amount of credits can be reduced efthér directly or by usig an allowance account, ‘Fhe
carrying vatue uf impairad (oans is reduced through an aliowance acoount tor ioars that are Aot 100%
‘provisighed. o

For loans tnat are 100% provisioned, the Bark shall diréctly reduce their eilue, congurrontly with the
registration of such debis in off-balence stieet accounts. The subsequent recavenes from ioans off-
_balance are recorded in the profit or foss account in "Net expense with the wnpairiment of the pans ang
advanres granted to Customers” o

b}  Assets classified measured al fair value through other comprehensive income

At gach balance shset date, the Bark assesses whether there 1s shjective evidence that a hnancial Jsset
OF group-of tinancial assets 1 mpaired. For eauity investments class fag s measured at 3w vatue
tirough other comprenensive income, 1s consdered signlficant or prolunged dechng in the Far value gt
the investment below its cast in determining whether they are impaired . '

AF any such evidence exists lor financal assets at tair value through nther comprehensive income, tha
aciunnnstad loss - measured #s the difference betwaen the acquision tost and the current fair value,
1265 311y tmpatrment 1oss on thet finarcal asset previously receqnited w profit or loss - s termaved fram
other parts of the iesult global and recoonized m profit or loss, If, 1n subseguent period, the far value of
@ debt Instrument classified a5 meastrad at falr value througin other comprehonsive income increases
and the Increase can be releted objoctively ko an evem oceumning after the impsirment loss was
recagraozed m grott or loss, the impatrment (oss is reversed through profit ar inss,

2.12 Guarantees recovered.

Guarantees recovered represent non-financial assets recovered by the Bank from customers for overdue
account. Agsets are mbally recognized at fawr vaiue st the tene of recagrihon i the balance sheot and
#re ncluded iy property and ezuipment, other financia! assels by stocks ¢ other nerefinancial #ssats,
‘depending on thair nature and the Bank's intention regardirg the vse of these assets, These assats ara
subsequently revajued and accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies for these categones
of pspets. ' '

2.13 Intangible assets

Software Heenses acgiuined ere capitalized at acquisition costs and value M'tﬁstai}mg programs. i hese
costs are amortized based an the cstimated useful hwes, which s rormatly three years.

Costs ausecated with deveicping or maintaming Computer applications are recoghized as an BXDENSE 35
ncvrred. Costs that are directly attributalile to the production of idemifiable ang g software. _
applicateons under the control of the Bank, and which will probably generate economic benefits sver casrs
ot production for more than one year, are recogmzed as wtangibic assets. Dird ¢hsts include costs with
personnet dealing wth the deveigpment of computer applications and an apprapriate share of relevant
geneEral costs, - '

Comptiter software deveiopment evpenditine recogiized as assets are amertized using the straght line:
method over ther uselul ife which s goperally three years
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MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENYS
FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(all amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise stated)

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued).
2.14 Buildings and equipment

Tangible assets {hudtings @nd land} sre stated at revalued athount less accumutated depretistion and
pravisiar for impairment insses. Qther téms of property and equisrnent are stated at cost inimgs the
actumuiated depremation and the provision for impairment losses. Tangibie assets in progress are
cacdatized and amortized ance the asset is 1nto use, S ‘ '

Land apa buttdings are subject o sufficiently regularly revaluation to ensure that the CATTYG Srving
dors nat differ materially From that which would be determined usicig fair value at the end pennd. I* there:
I 05 tormparison foe market value, & will be estimated using dricounted tash fiow methcd. lncreases in
the carryin amount srising from revaluation are credited to other comprohersive income and ingreases
the revaluaton reserve in equty. Dacreases canceliing previous increases of the same assot are
recognized wy other comprehensive income and decresse the previous'y recagiced revaluation reserve,
al! other decreases are recoanized in the profit or loss of twe year. '

Repairs and maintenance experses are recorded when incurred, The cost of replacing major parts or
companeits of groperty and ecuipment s Capralzed and the repisced patt is scrapped. '

Gains.and fosses op disposals determined by comparing procesds to the carrying amount are recogrized
in profit ur loss, '

Impairment

Land s not impined . Amortization of ether bulldings and equipment = caiclates using the straight-ine
method 1o aliocate the cost of thelr resdual value over their estimated dverted.pened. .

Vseful lite in yoars
2018 =0 2017
Burldiigs 50 50
Furniture L3 15
Means.of transport. 5 5
Measuring and contrai devees 4 e

The res:dual value of 3n dsset is the gstimated ariount that the Sank will Dt 4 its disposal after ey,
dedurting the estirmatey costs of disposal if that asset atready had the nocessary Ufe and was already i &
the estimated usefu! life end. The residual value of an asset 1s it if tho Bank expects-to use the assat

wnit the emt of its physical penod. ' o ' ' ' ‘

Assets residual values ang useful lives are reviewed ang adjusted, where appropriate, ot each baiance

215 Impairment of non-financiol asscts

Assets that have an ingefipite useful ife sre not amortized and are tested apnually for \mpairment. Assals
that are sutect to amortization are reviewed for impairment losses whencver events or changes n
creumstances (ndicate that the carrying amount may riot be recoveratle. '

The trapairment 10ss 15 the difference between the carrying amoyunt and the recoverabie amount of the

asset, Recoverable amount is ths greater of the asset's Tair value minus costs W sell ang value 1 use. In -
caiculating e impirment, assels are grauped at the lowest fevels Tor wehuch there are identitiatde cash

fiews independent (cash gennrating units). Non-firancial assets other than goodwili thot suffered

Hepairment are reviewsd for possible reversal of the imparment at each reporting date.
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_ MARFIN BANK ROMANTA SA
_NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(ail amounts are expressed in RON, untess otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cantinued)
2.16 Liabilities from finance leases

where the Bank Is the lessee under a iease agreement b which the Bank assumes substantally al! the.
fighs and rewardy of ownership, assets Inased are capitaized i burddings drd aquipment 3t the (ntisticn
of the lease al the lower of the fair value of the ieased propesty uhder and the present vatye of the
Piimum lease payments. Each lease payment = allucated between the Eabiity and hnarce charges st as
5 acheve 3 constant interest rate during repayment. Obtgations related to rent, net of tuture finanice
chizrges, are Included in borrowings. ' ' o '

Interest expenses are vecorded in the profit and loss ar:munt during the contract using the efective’ _
intgrest method, Assets acquired unger Bnance ieases are depreciated over the usetui hfe or the shorter
contract period of the hank 5 not veasonably certain that o wll obtain ownershup of the asset until the end
of 1he jease. -

The total payments made dsdor operating ledses are recogruzad i profi of sk ufl a3 strasght ine basis
over the iease penod. o - ' '

When an operating lease s terminated before the tease period Has expired, any payment required to be
frade by the person who obrained the icase as @ penalty is recognizer as an expense in the: periog m
witich the conciushon of e cuntract sgcurs.

2.18 Cash antd cash equivalents

For oreparation of 5 cash flow statoment using the indirect method, cash and cash BOUIVEIents nthude
batances with a maturity of less than thrze months from. the date of purchase 1o, cash; 1o unrestricted
balances at ventral banks, including snimun reserve rétiuwements, tragsury ard other ehgibie
certificates: joans ant advances te banks as well as shot-term bonds, I '

- 2.19 Provisions

‘Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a legal o constructive obligation srising from past evems,
when the settiement of the obligation 1s requred an gutfinw of resources embodymng echnomic benefis.
and when a rebable estimate can be made regarding the value of bonus, Where there are a number of
s«mlar obilgations, the Liketihood that an outflow will be required in settiement s determined by
congdring the whole category of obligations. Provisions are rocognized sven f the lteahhood refatod to
any ltem inciuded 0 the same class of obligations may ke smalt. Provisions are medsuced at the current
valye of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obhgation nsing a-pre-fax rate that o
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to'the eblgation..

2.20 Financizl collateral contracts

Finantial guarantee contracts are comtracts thet réquire the issuer to make specific payments o
reimburse the beneficiary a loss suffered by it due to the fact that a particular botrowes Kag ot mate
‘payments on the due date in scgurdance with the tarms of the debt mstrument.

These firances quarantees are granted to banks, financial insututions and ether bodies or benalk of
rustomers to guarantee foans, overdrafts and other banking faciities,

Financial guarantees are initially recognized n the financial statements ot fair vislue on the aste granteq.
Subsequent to imtal recognitien, the Bank's abigations under such guarantees are measured 3l the
higher of the wutial measurement, less amortizaton atculated to recoynize in the ncoms statement fes

Ancome earned or: 8 straight Lne basis over the life of the guarantee and the bost estimate of the
expenditure required to settle any financiat obligation artsing & the balance sheet date,

These estimates are determined based on expenence of similar transactions and based on the hrstnry of
losses, pius the management's juegment.
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MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
__ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
__ FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 |
} {all amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Performance bonds

Trie perigrmance bonds are contracts providing compensations if the other-party does e fulhi s
Tontractuai obigatians. These kind of contracts transfers the nisks of non-Bnancial perforins with the
credd risk, The performance bonds are intially recogrised at the far vatue, which 1s formaily evidenced
by the amount of the recoived commussiens. This vaiue is amortized u%ing the hnear methos dunng the
entire duration of the contracr.

At the end.of the reporting period, the perfofmance bonds agreements are recogruted 3t the highesy
value between: {1} unamortized balance cerrasponding to the initially recognised value and {ij} ke best
estimate of the necessary expanses in order to comply with the agreement llabilty at the end of each
reporiing penod, uixlated at the market value. If the Bank has the comratival nghi te sue its customer
for Lhe recovery of the ameunts paid for the seftlement of the performance bongds COMIacts, tese

amoLMs stiall be recognised as loans and bonds at the payment time towards the bonds’ nencficiary.
2.22 Other loan commitinents - off-balance sheet clements

The Bank, in the marmal course of business, enters :nto othcr commitments intluding loan commutments,

and letters of crecit. Adjustments are miade for other credit commiments where the Bank has an

obligatwrn unsing from past everts, when the settiement of the obligabon roauires an outfow of

resoprces embodymng economic benefits and when # relisble estimate cen be mage regarding thie amount

of the abligation. o T ' '

e Bank evatuates, 8t smdvidual fevel the impairment of the balance sheets hatulities, depending. on the
financial performance, gebt service, iniliation of legal procedures and the coverage dogree of livg i
warranty exposure. P
The impairment provisions are calculsted based of the conversion factor in talance sheet expogure

guring the time when loss can be identifed.
'2.23 Pensions and othor post-retiremont benefits

TheBank, i1 the normal course of buisiness, makes payments to the Romanar state pension funds for its R
empioyees in Enmania, for pension, heaith and unempioyment. All emplayees of the Bank ore intluded 1n

the state proson systam..

e Banrk does not opeiate any other pension scheme and, thergforo, has ne funner obigations
regarding pensicns. The Bank has no ather obiigation to provide funds to current or farmer employess For
thelr services, S ' ‘ ' '

2.24 Income tax

®)  Currentincome tax

Tne Bank records 5 net incoms: tax expansa on financial statemnents in sooordance with accouitmg
fegulations and Lax legisiabion in Romania. Romanian (ax legrelation is based on a finoncial year anded.

Decamber 3. For recosding both current tax and deferred tax for the year ended, the Bark caiculater
e annuat tax expense based on Romarian tax ingistation in force at the balance sheet date,

b}  Defcrred income tax

Dnfferencies between firancia! reporting under Intérnabonal Financi! Beporting Standards and the
Rurnantar; tax regulations iead o Gifferences hetween the carrying amount of certain assets,ang hapiiftes
and debt. . 8

Deferred tax asset item s retogmized o the extent that it 13 probablé that fulure taxable profit wil be
avaliable so that the temporary differences could be ubiwed. *
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MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(alt amounts are expressed in RON, unluss otherwise stated)

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Income tax {continued)

Deterred tav is provided using the balance sheet hability methog on tamporary differences avising
betwaer the tax bases bf assets apd labitities and calculating their CETFYING amounits in the finehmal
statements. Deferred income Lax s determined using tax rates {and 18ws) that have been wngemented
0f substantally implemiented at the balance sheet date and are expertad 1o be applied when the defes red
tax recovered i redlized or the Jeferred tax abiigation is seltied.

2.25 &ormmngs
Barrewings are recogrized qmibatly 8t net of transaction costs fair value. During subseguent perads,
borrowicgs are stated at amortzed cost, any dilference between pruceeds pet of trensechion costs and

the redemplion vahue is rerogrzed | the mcame statemant gver the term of the loan based on the
gffactive intorast methad,

1.26 Comparatives

‘Comparative arngal financial statements have been smended, whére appropriate, canmistently wik the
Cufrent year presertanon method ' ‘ ' o

Finarcial sk management 1s intertwined with the dctivities of the Sank. Management, jn order o
aintain statuhty and dusiness conlintnty, gives a tugh priority 1o the phiective of mphementaton and
sominuous impravernent of an effective risk management framewark 16 Mminimize the possible negative
mprct on the financisl results of the Book, ' o -

The Buard of Directors of the Bank 15 responsible Tor estabhsning and memtoring rnsk management
framework. At the Jevel of the Board of Phirectors oF the Bank has been established a Risk Management
Lomnittee in order Lo couedindte and address 3!l risks n ativance; This Committes responsde for
impeeenting and monitonng poboes and principles related to financiai risk management, Risk
Maragemant Committes meets guarterly and reports its achivities to the Boariy of Directors.

Both principles and existing risk matiagemerit policies have beert cevaldped to 13eéntify early risk analysis
undertaken py the Bank, setting lirits and appropriate cantral systems a5 well s systematic nisk
monitoring and ensuting compliance with estabhished Hmits. ‘ ‘ '

The Bank annually reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk- management framework 1o ensure
that it keeps pace with market dynamics, changes In banking products offered, and the best international
practices

The Rizk Mapagement Department of Marfui Bank Romanis operates a5 an mdependent Lnit, assigneg
with excoutivy responsibility for the planaing and HnrEementing risk mapagement.

Tﬁe; Bank systematically monitors tisks mentigned 185y iteéfmm yse of fnrzanc:a? wrstrurents - vredil risi,
market risk, lauidity rsk, and operational risk. B o '



MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
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_ FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
{all amounts are exprossed in RON, unless otherwise stated)

i

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contitucd)
3.1 Credit risk

Barfung.ard Bank profits ace closely reiated 10 creast risk taken: Credit sk = the nsk of a financssl loss
for the Bank that accurs when borrowers are whable to meet their contractual/ transactional thhgations.
Cregit sk o considered the most mportant for the Bank, and s effective monitoring and management .
are tap prories for management. Baok's overall expesute to credit risk mainly resdits from the appreved
credit vimits and corpurate idans ang retad firancing, investment nd Urading activities of the Banks
trading achivibes 1 donvatives msrkets, and the settlement of financiaf cnstruments. The leve! of risk.
assotiated with any creit exposure depends on varous factors, Inchuding the deneral and prevasing
market conditions, the financal rondition of horrowers, the amount, type and duration of exposure and
tre oresence of any quarantecs: ' o o

Implementioig @ credt policy which gresents the principles of credit risk rlapagement, ensures an-
effective and unrorm credit fisk monitodng. The Bank appbes & undurm policy and practice on credit
- assessmont procedures, approval, renewal and monitoring. At credi bmits are rmoviowed at least orce a
year and approval powers are based un Class size and total exposure to credit risk assumed by The Bank-
for sach dabtor or group of debters that are in contact (one primary debror). The Board of Direttors of
tne Bank has assigned executive respansibility for credit nisk management 1o the Risk Management:
Comimitiee. The pijective of the Commmttae is o evaluate and approve crada Lt for Bank customers
and to :motiterny the proper applicaticn and pokcy management funchanaity for credit risk.

Reliatle assesarment of crao sk is a mador priotity of the management framewrk of the Bank's credit
nsk The centinuous development of infrastructure, systems and metandalogies aimed &t guantifying and
assessing credit nisk 1s essential in prder to provide timely and efflacrive support to management and.
busness units i relation to decsion: making, policy formulation s supervision regurernents
Lumnglance: ) i ' o -

a} Loans and advances

-In measiring credid sk of loans and ativances granted by the Bank to a onunterparty: (i) the chent's
cregitworituness and the probatibty of defagst s systematicaly svaluated, L) the Bank's curment
-Bxposare 1o credit nsk.resulting from imoaired loans is menitored and { 1v) recoverstility rabe on
tefeulted cbiligations ix estimated based on guaraniees and secusties. The three parameters for
messiring credit risk are incorporated into the daily operativns of the Bank.

Systematic evaluation of the mi-s.wetr'ham' of customiers and the kkelinond of défa‘_ult

Thie Gank evaluates the creditwortteness of s borrowers through the application of approgriate mocels
tar tlassification of loans through specal festures. These modeis have heen develnped mternaliy and
arent firancigl-ang statistical anaiysis speciahst advice given by those responsilze, Whenever possisie;
thes2 modes gre tosted through a comaarative analysis based on external infarmatior avaiabie.

According to the Bank’s policy, each borrower < gvaluated when the crodit it is determined imtiaily

and thareatter, they are revaiuated at least once ¢ year. Assessments are also updated where updatsi
intormation that can have 2 significant wnpact on the leve! of credit risk is avatiable, The Bank reguiarly
tests the predictive ability of creditworthiréss evolution and valuation models used for both corporste and
for retad loans, thus ensuring the potential to accurately describe any credit risk and enabling bmely
inplemeéntation of measures address the problems that arise.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)
3.1 Credit risk (continued)

3.1.1 Credit risk assessment (continued)

3} Loans and advonces (continued)

Corporate loans

Regarthng carporate loans, the loan classification madet appliod depesds oo the finoncal standing of tre
Clert, nayraent delays and existence of tutitaal procepdings. The system applied is 3 classification
systern developed internaliy.

The detitors of corperate chents sre classdiod Mg’ categaras, whith corréspend to differett fevels of
credit nsk and arg related to different classifications with regard to the probability of default, ailowang rae
ferermination of expecien 1oss. ' '

Retail loans {retail bonking)

Regarding loans ta individuais {rerail}, the Bank focuses ont the ‘applwation of moderr methads o

assessing credd rsi and fravd prevention, using alsa the scoring madels customized fior the retafl wan

portiolio profde f Martin Bank Romama. Thus, the approval & only possible the score caltulatesd for the.

applicant exceeds a censin thresnold, to ensure eomiplance of the retail loar portfolo with the rish. !
strategy and the bank s profile. Specific score 18 calculuted based on 4 set of features. The Finat ‘
classifcation into § categones s given by ihe financiai standing of thw Chient, payment defays and i
existence of wdicial proceedings. - ' ' ' N

{i) Monitoring Bank currént exposure to credit rak

The Bank: moriitors creont ek exposure for s foans and advances 1o custorners based o thisse notwnal
amgunt.

(i} Possible recovery based on n}stmg collateral, securities and associated guarantess
During the establshmeat/revision of reait tmis, the Bank takes inta actourt the rype of otiateral for
exposure. v

The Bank assesses loss for the financizt instrument st an amount equat to  3-msnth expected credit loss
{Stage L} o, as al the reporting date, 1he credit nisk of 2 financiat instrurment has not increased
sionvicantly as of imitial recogniton,

I¥. on the reporting-date, the tredit nsk of a finanial instrumant has ckessed sigrificantiy since initia;

recogit:on, then tne Bank wii assess the loss for such financial instrument at ar equa! value to TTE
expecied credit losses {stage 2). ‘ o '

For exposures t nor-financial mdidual and legat eftity clients, the Bank yses for clestification i the
following stages indicatars that revoat a significant incresse in creait rigk:

Quantitative Indicators:

¢ Peyment.deiays - imore tham 30 gays overdua Nom reporting date;

¢ Risk class - downgrading by at least one risk class 25 ‘at the reporting date compared to
orgmation, ‘ ‘ gt S : :
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Credit risk {continued)

3.1.1 Credit risk assassment {continued)

8) Losnsand advances {continued)

{ii)  Possible recovory based on oxisting collateral, securities and associated guarantees
Qualitabve indicators

*  Restructured exposure during the trit potiod {farbotne);

According te IFRS 8, exposures to banks and pubhc admimstrations with a iow default nsit (1nvestment
arade) drg ranked 11 Stage © snd are sttrbuted a 12 month probability of default for ECL computation,
Bank ang soverggn exposures that do nat have a lpw defaull rek {non-investment grades are ranked to
Srage 2 and arg attrrbuted a TTC probabibly of default.

For classification s Stage 3, tné following cateria - définition of defsu't - dre Considered:
Regaraless of the valtie of the expesure:
i For corporate cionts:

& Clents in various stages of insbivency;
B, Clients with morg than 90 days payment delays;
w Cinonts in forced execution;

d.  Cliends that register st least gne non- performing facility at the restructuring date, o the frst
restruciurng year; . - ,

2 Cescs a which It 15 considered that, n the absence of an @nfarcement of the sscurity, it Is
uniikely that the debtor will pay its entire credit debts, reqardless of the any overduc amipurit
ur the number of days past due: '

n. For metad clients:
a.  Clients with more than 9t days payment delays;
B Chenis i foropd execution;

€. Chents that reqreter a1 leasr one non-perforng facility at the restructunag date, in rhe tirst
restructunng year:

d Cases in whicli it 25 considarad that, i the absence of an enfoiroment of the secunty, it s
uniely that the debtor wil pay 't entire credit delits, regardiess of the any overdue amourt

or the rumber of days past due;
€. Clients wio have seit applcations for datioin-solutum To the Bank
ECLs are calculatec using the EADS cbtamed hased on Ehe exposute schedule. Therefore, the hgriest
‘avafiadie frequency rwst be apphad w1 the computation, such as monithiy #D, We assume that the defauit
‘oucues ar the begiinng of the perod: Yor éach mtra-year cash flows the formuta considers the EYPASUTEs
Al the beqinniing of the penud and the EIR discount rare EIR must be used as of the second penod,

The Bank has not «dentified any assets that sould be classified as POCL.

39
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continucd)

3.1  Credif risk (continued)

3.1.1 Credit fisk assessment (continued)

a}  Loansand advances {continued)

() Possible recovery based on existing collataral, securities and assocjated guarantees.

As regards the probability of defsult (PD), for exposures to banks and public administrationg (Sovéreigny,
the Bank uses a simplifad aporoach dased on foreign credit Tatings. For exposures to banks ang pustie
administrations. the Bank uses the fited PD associated to the rabing of the 10-vear sovereign/earporate
migration matrix. For exposures to barks ang pubdic admunstrations, the PD is caiculsted using an '
e¥oorential tunction based an the reting awarded by the three agencres, separately forthe soverrign D
ani the corpurate PD. Also, B maximium PD between sovereign and corporate is consideted when )
determining the corporate PD. Far expostres i RON towards the NBR a mil PO is Zunsidered., If there are
more ECAL ratings avaliable for the same counterparty, the lawast rating of the highest two ratings is
used. If the wsuer IS not & rated entity, then the rabing refated tp thi country of incorporation {teritninnf b
used. Also, no counterparty is assumed to have @ higher rating than the rating of the country of
nearporahen [orgml, ' ‘ '

Far non-financial chiants, the Bark uses the conditianal probanifity. of default (CPD}. The CPD is 3 meature
For the mobabity that a delagit arurs throughout 4 certain peviod of time, provided it survives up to
such date: 1Y months from the followsng ragorting date for Stage exposures and (hroughicut the oyl
for Stage 2 exposures. ‘ '

CPDs have been sshmatet hased on poitfolios agaregated on ghient types and pn product types. The
BPPTOXCN was to use the ratings migrations for the setai segment, a5 wek as for corporate segment,

In drder to obtein 3 stable mration matrix appropeate to the avaitatie aata and the rating model ysed
withits the haek, the cohtrt approach was used. ' - '

The cohort approach for budding o Tugralian matrix estmates the teansition probabiities througn the
storical transition frequencies, A cohert includes ail barrowers who hald & given rating at-the: beginming
of 4 givers period. Inthe cobort approach, the transition matrx s completed with empirical transition
frequencies. Typcally, a transilion matry (5 cstimated with dota from muitiple periods.

A eﬁmmoh;_wavr' to rake an average of transition frequencies per period is the weigited avgrage of
borrovsers, which uses the number of deblors in & cohort a5 weights

Dne-year rmigrabion matrices based 6 & one-year window from & givan snapshol were. built.
Transition matrices were calculated ansually from 2017 1o 2616 for a 12 -month pened to caprure 12-
wienth default rates for cach manthly smapshat tor MistGrical régression analysis 10 estimate the
Parameters for the matrix equation forecast in the next 3 years. , o

In order 10 estimate the prabatilitics for transitions 3fter the forocast weriod, the 1ast macr-adusted.
transiton matnx (3rd vear) /s converted to multi-pened matrices. Transitmns are sUPPOSEd (o bé
independent over the years, ' ‘

Through this rule, matrices were gonerated over horizons icnger than the forecast period.
The marginal PD {incrementall correspands to the (uncanditional) protabilny that 3 gefault perurs
exactiy m & given penad {11,
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (comtinued)

3.1 Credit risk (continued)

%.1.1 Credit fisk assessment (continued).

a}  Loans and jdvances (continted)

(it) Possible recovery hased on existing collateral, securitios and associated guarantees

Usang Curmulative PD and Marging) PD, conditional PO (CPD) cormsponding to the non-ample probability
1 the periad ¢ was calculated, with no imptict value hetween ¢ 0 3nd the heginping of the periad 1.

In accordance with-IFRS 9, i+ some crrcumstences, an entity does not haye repsarabie and sustainatie
informagon that s avasdable without undue cost or etfort 1o measuce estimated Iifetine foss on an
indwidud! basis. Irs thig case, the expected loss on fifetime loans is recoanized on a tollectve hasis that
cons:ders comprehensive tredi nisk informanan. This cemprehensive credit nisk information should
include not only past infortnation but also ail relevant credit information. Including Fulure macroecnaomic
wnformation. to aporoximate the sutcome of the recognibion of expectea lifetume Losses when a significant
increase of cregit cck fram witial secognibien at indiidual tovel,

Inorderto integrate future infopmatinn mto the probability of default, twe sete of foracasts from the
‘Natioral Progriosis Center (CN®) and Eurostat are used - Lwa scenanss with three-year forecasts

Loss given default {LGD) « a factor that deternunes ihe aravity of a probailty of defauit. Bracticatly,

LD s the amount of the tarat exipusure that the Bank expects not to recover in case of 2 1oan
impairment.

Foi barths. avd public sdmnistrations, the cecevery rates are Instorical averages of security BrIES N case
of oefauit, &3 pubhished by Moody's: 8% for high default risk exposures (non-inyostment grade) (beluw
Baal, BRB-, accerding to the hwerarchy of rating agencies) and 44% for inw default risk exposures
{investment grade). Tharetore, for non-investment grade expnsires, a &2% LGD ratio s apphed (100%: -
38%}, and for investment grade exnosures. & 56% LGD ratio 1s apoiied (100 - 46%) except # other
adjustments are (ndwigually regured, o o

For non-financia! clients, o calculate the LGD, the Bank uses the unsecured portiss of the Specific ,
portfonn, based oa the market value of tha security, by using the praper adiustment ratios. The Barik
‘decided 1o use the recovery rate from securties because the sgficant portion of default exnosures wes
recovered by anforong the Securittes (enforpement proredures and bankruptey).

LG 48 :éictﬁamzi separatety for Infvidoals ard legal entines depending on the risk class and e type of
faciity {revoiving/rion-revolving) and securties { secured/non-secured). ' o
)} Securities

For measuring and dssessing the credit risic arising from debt secuntes and othér certificates, externat
svalpaticds from rating agencies ke Moody's, Standard & Poor's or other sipuiar organizabons are used.
Tnig value of the Bapk's credit risk exposure caused by debt instruments and other certiticates (s assessed
‘based on the market value of exposures and/or batance sheet or off-balanca sheet positiens.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)
3.1 Credit risk (continued)
3.1.2. Management of credit limits and risk m%ﬁmm tachnigues

Marfin Bani Ramanle sephes credrt brats 1 order 1o manage ang control ity exXposure o oredit nsk.
Credit iinits define the makmum scceptable risk for sach counterparty, by product, by sector ard by
fountry. Tn addition, imits are set and applied o exposures regarding finarica! rrstitutions., Total
exposuce of the Bank to creoit risk of borrowers, including financial smstifubions, f& cantroliea by applyng.
sul-hmits and off-baiance sheet exposures, as well 85 dally posibons of the portfohp of Ainzncat
mstrumernts such as foreign exchange forward contracts.

To.determine chent bmits, the Bank consylers any warranty that reduces nsk. The Bank classifies crege
risk based on the type of the assocated coligteral and the epporturntty of ther Yguidabicn. Masimum
Lredht imits which may be approved for each risk dass are determyned by the Bank.

Within the Bank, 3 loan s not approved by 3 single persan, as the procedare generally reguires the
-apgroval of at least three suthorized persons, except for the consumer loans ang credit cards, The
Autharites respansible fur the approval of Joans are assianed based on the level of risk exposire apd
thewr eole . coitnbuting te the guatty of the Bank's total loan pattfolo ¢ partcuiarly sugmiticant,

Credit imits are established with an etfective guration of up 1o twelve months andd sre subject ko annua!
or even frequent revews. The responsiblp sothortios may, under special condioons, set a perod skorter
tran twetve months. Qurstanding batences and their corresponding Himits are monitored daily and ary

S EXCESS iMet 15 12P0ned 1t a bmelv manner ard resolved accordngiv.. ‘

The fallowing peragiaphs describes the techniques applied by the Bark to control gnd reduce credit risk
@) Guaranties

The Bank abtairis guarantees for loans Yo customers, thus summizing the averall risk oF eredy and
ensuring timely repayment of debty. Ta this end, the Bank has astablished categuras of acrepiable.
collaterals and inCorporated them nits oredit policy, the man typas heing: ' ‘ '

. pledge on cash deposits;

«  Dank guarantee letters;

*  piedge on financial instruments SuCh 25 Stocks or shatas istea on the Stock Exchange;

. morigages on reai estate: .

5 pledge on real estate; or

. ssssgomant of receivables resulting from promisscry aotes, chiecks ans Invoices.

Crisdit (mked guarartess are sutiaiy messured during the rredit spproval pricess, hased on thew preseat

vaite or far valse, and reassessed at reguisr intervals. Generdily, 8 warranty for exposura to fingnaial
nstdutons 15 not required, except where it relates to sales contracts with repurchase daise Mrinpes”y o

similar activities. The Bank genteratly does not require coliateral for investments in debt nstruments,
&)  Derivatives

The Bank systematically. monitors and comrols the expesure and diration of s net position apened in
derivatives markets, Credit exposures from denvatives markets posdions are part of the overasl credit

ety set for any counterparty and are taken into account during the spproval process.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENY (continued)

3.1 Cradit risk (continued)

3.1.2 erant of credit limits and risk mitigation technigucs (continued)
b)  Derivatives (continusd)

Guaramees or other securiies ane rol generalfy obtained for exposures t fervatives, unless the Bank
teciures the appiication o* 2 safety mergin trom the counterparty.

Credit risk arises also fram the sctt’ement of Lransections and dervative froduits. The Bank has
established and systematically soomtors dary irmits of settlement for transachans with derivative
progucts, which are inciuded m the overall credt ki of any counterparties. ' o

¢}  Loan commitments
The primary purpose of these Instruments is (o éngure that fuhis are availabile ta customers on roguest,

Guarantees and standby letters of credn - which represent irravacatie commutients that the Banic will
make payments if the custormer cannot rheet its ooligations 1o thire partigs - carry the sama crodid risk as
lbans. Commearcial ana documertary hetters of eredit - which are written underiakings by the Bank pa
behall of a customer authorizing a thid party to collect rates by the Bank to aa amount specified
according to specific Lerms and conditons - are guarantead by the shipped goods to which they ralate
énd, therefore, present less nsk than a direct toar., ' ' ' '

Commitments related to credit extension represent ynused eredit inmits parties under form of toans,
Guarantees ur letters of credit. Concerring te credit risk of extended credit cornmitments, the Bans
-expoased to.a potential 55 In &0 amount equa! tothe tetal amount of urised cormmitments,

3.1.3 Tha muximum exposure to credit risk before considering callatorni or othur credit
The Bank's maximurm exposure $6 credit risk & referted In the carrying amount of financial assers o6
reported in the statement of the financiat posion. In respect to letrers of gusrantee jssuad by the Bank

anr the tredit commiments, the maximition exposure th eredit risk 15 represented by the value of these
cormmidments mctie 7). Credit tisk 15 mitrgatad by existing gusrantees

The rable below shows the maximam EXPOSHTE 10 Lrecht risk of the Barik as of Decemtber 11, 2038 and
December 31, 2017, lnans.to customers, as feported in the statement of financiat position.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Credit risk {continued)

32.1.3 The maximum sxposure to credit risk befm considering collateral or ather credit
increases {continued)

The Bank aiso momitors Sredt tisk vy fielts of actvity. The anaivses of cuncentraton of credit risk by
felds of activity gt tw reporting date Is prosented below (nef amounts of allewances for imparmant}-

Tot:) retall loans
Credit cards 1,803,087 -§9,889 1,713,128

Consumer loans / personal foans and. _

averdrafls 171,457,425 41,218,710 110,298,715
Mortgage / Real estate ioens 215,963,618 FABP3TCR. 233,089 915
Total carporate loans 33,821,4 -38,292,728 495,628,717
Total SMEs e 346,313, 756 »37,156,378 409,157,378
Comimrerce 140, 766,866 6,448,798 134,318,067
Industry 57,065,164 7,853,271 59,411,893
LConstruthion an reai estate 143,861,123 --‘N ,328,903% 329,532,220
Agriitire 6,629,771 23,964 5,605,807
Lease 21,881,025 =353,051 21,527,974
Others 66,100807 8348390 57,763,417
Total corporate .. B87,607,69¢ . -1,136,350 86,471,339
Commerce 24,200,138 -320,036 23,880,103
Industry 51,668,090 ~ 788,558 50,879,538
Canstruction and rcal osvate - 5
Agricuiture - B -
Leuse 1.131.619 -15,508 1,116,111
Others _ 10807836 . . . -12.247 10,595,588

Total [oons and advances to customers ___ 74,145,505  -53475030 820,670,475

Ax at nefember .a} 2018 the shara of i*aar‘s 16 custorners m ﬁuma% i the toial loan ﬁcﬂfmm 5
$2.23%.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1  Credit risk {continued)

313 memmewunwcmmmbmwmwﬂﬂm coliateral or other credit

inercases {continued)

Total retail loans

Credit pards

Consumer loans ¢ persenal loghs and
ovordrats ,

Mortgage / Reat estate loans

Total corporate teans
Totol SMEs

Commerce

ingustry.
Construgtion apd real estate
Agricuiture

iease

Otherg

Total corporate

Lammeme

Indusrry

Censtruction and real estate
Agr muﬁure

Yotal loons and advances to customers

195‘[23&

1,660,011 1,754,781
143,066,174 -10,220,840 132,845,334
192,385,106 -3,701,906 189,683,200

543,460,313 -33.425.684 510,034,629
86,795,825 -31,707,921 75,087,605
84,223 921 2,964,591 81,259,330

269.541,700 -11,364,828 258,176,872
1,158,753 B39 1,157,914
22,738,690 - -30,811 22,707,879
24,184,683 686,65 27,497,987
4816730 663398 44346742
1,787,815 -1,191 1,786,625
32,021,562 647,547 31,384,015
10,827,262 -6,752 10,820,510
170,100 14,508 155,592

880,773

As at December 31, 2017 the share ﬂf isars to customens in Bucharest In the total loan portfoio s

680295,
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(alt amounts are expressed in RON, uniess otherwise stated)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continucd)
3.1 Credit risk {continued)

3.1.3 The maximum expasure to credit risk before considering collaterat or other credit

Incresses {continued)

Information about guarantess as st December 31, 2018

Socured loans.  Unsecuréd loans. ‘Tokal loans
and advanoes and advances _and advances

Total retall loans 266,641,569 340,224 060
Credit cards 171,484 1,631,533 1,303,017
‘Consumer fopns / persoral fpans ang . _ 4 )

gvergrafts 86,550,066 34,507,359 121,457,475
Mortgage / Real estate loars 179,570,019 37,442,592 216,363,618
Total corporato louns 328,673,972 205,247,473 533,921,445
Totat SMEs 295,991 673 150,322,083 446,313,756
Commerce 103,658,722 37,108,144 1410, 758, 85
industry _ 42,602,499 24,462,665 a7, 0% 164
Construct:on and real estate 104,702 580 39,158,623 14z.86:,123
Agncylture - 5,814,20¥ 815,569 6,629,771
Leasing 71,226,122 14,654 903 21,B8).025.
Others 31,987,628 34,123,179 64,108,807
Yokl corporate 32,682,200 54925390 57,607,689
Commicrce 7,253,364 18,944,569 24,200,138
Ingustry N 14,834,209 | 36.833,887 51,668,096
Constriction ang real estate : RS .
Agricuttisre 3 .
Leasing el 1,131,619 1131818
fhers _10,504,52} 13,318 10,607,838
Total lnans ond advanses 1o N = : :

customers 595,315 541 278,829,964 874,145 505

Ve farr viue of the security teKes into account oRly real guarantess such s
letters of bank quarartze, mongages over real estates ang pledge tver mova
mentioned information represent e minimum vatue batween th

pledges over cash deposits;
bie assets The above-
£ ngt carrying amount of the idan

balance ani! the value of the guarantee; the TEMaInitg uncovered part 15 presented in the colunie of

ungerured Icans and advances.

LT
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)
3.1 Credit risk {continued)

3.1.3 The maximum exposure to credit risk before considering collaters! or other crodie
increases (continued) - o

Information about guarantecs as st December 31, 2017

Total retall loons.

Credtcards 197,027 1,662,584 1,860,011
Consumer foans / personsl loans and L ' _ T
overdrafts _ 126,208,754 16,857,420 143,066,173
Mortgage / Real estate loans . 1788964 322 ‘12.420,?84_ 192,385,106
‘Total corporate lodns 507,704,857 35,755,45 50,31
Total SMEs 467,403,688 _
Commerce 78,781,141 8,004,685 86,795,826
Infustry _ 7BITBATS 5,953,742 84,223,921
Construction #nd res! estare . 261,414,469 8,127,230 89,541,700
Agricuitire 1,141,601 12,152 1,158,753
‘Leasing 122,738,690 _ L 22,738,690
Others 25,047,607 , 5,137,077 34,184 t6q
Tots! corporate . 40,301,169 = 4515570 44,816,748
Commerce 1,787,815 , 1,787,815
industry , 27,515,992 4,515,570 32,031,562
Construction 3nd real estate’ 16,827,262 - 16,827,262
Agricolture : 170,800 i 170,100
Total Joans and advances to ) ‘ _ _ _ ‘
customens 814,074,560 55,638,644 880,771,604

“Frabres contaim the IRC correction ar the gross exposura Hat cutrenily was transferred to the expected
losses,

Prosantation of Inans and advances to customers by class and cotégory:

Loans and advances to customers nethar past due nor itnpairod ave vans and advances to custoriers
classifed (o Stages 1 and 2, which have nd days past due and are not imoaired, i

Loans amd advances to customers past fdue but nut impaired are loans and advances to customers
tigssfied 1o Stages § and 2, wiich have days past due ang are not :mpaired,

impaned loans and advances to customers are 1635 Sad advancs e customers dassied to Stage 3,
which have indicators of impairment, ' '
The employment of glaims {princiwal, attarhed receivables and amounts amortized) on each position s
petforred a% the level of credit Tacity for exposures dassified to Stages 1 and 2 and 0 terms of tota)
axposure per customer for customers classified fo Stage 3, hoth for borrowers individuals and tagal
entibes



1LY 1E TG 908" HT T FEE'Eép'e. 4 £-540 RTTPeag
SEV L8P 1L P66'0RG'0Z LSF E0F 6T £heepe’y O T2TE SHAFL ¥ 4]
LI0'CosT (3041 BEY'EY L05°01E {2 ¥4 ET1'BSH

- - SUB0[ MEIA J83Y / BeiiON
SYRIDIFAN PUE SUR RUCRIE [ SUBON ERuNSU0Y
SRS P

sueol (1382 0L

saouBApe N ‘anp Jemd shaueAPE PUE SUSDT  385EY Jalian SOOUCAPD DUR SURDT -
BTOT rE saquieing W Sy

{penupuea) SasEAIU} 1P IDIRO 0 [EIITHOD HULDPISUE BI0JER yuTs HBRID 6] DINSOAXR WMLIXRI YL £'TE

(farunues) ysu upesy  1'E

{panunuod) INIWISYNYI ASTY TYIDNVNIY 5

(peiers espmssiao ssoqun “Nod ul Pessadx Bie sUNOWR (e}
8T0T IE ¥ISWIDAC AIANT HVIA IHL L0
SAINIWILY IS TYIINYNIS OL STLON
VS VINVIROM NNYE NISEVMW




ap

SZP 049028 _ _ _ Ty BOCPOLTE ECOBRLPEE
TR T Ha0 TR b OCTenT- TN T 7R ITAERAT
TRSHTSS  OPCLOCET  BeC RS UEVBLTER = 7 17
Ry T ” o3 SRS TR
TRCTATR o Bl IET"Y
SRR LS . BiEET CETLBEE 1S
SE1°00'¢? 1L RGT . LOPELLTY
206"z _ X BICTS z BLETERE

T

LA A TP RSSO T GesTER T T
LEUIRR"TZ - _ SO T8 [T
1wty - BEUBLEY €60°01¢ YES'UrL 'S
(XML 43D TR 656" 1 B ure'sy £9E'DRT'Y GRR'NTYZE wER' L E'DS
bl 'non' 1y LLE'PIEST 60'952 BUET18', BG4S {7 10v'ag
BHF W Ot hl'0e0'9T Fou'TZR'S ZT6T92's ESZBAL'Y Frrtos'eot

ESMUGIEAD 0} SOMURAPE FUE Sieo] [ATL

SET% FRTIFCAT

WIBUOISN 6 S0LLARR pur SUi) (839,

R
Buseay
Asisaipuy
FLRILHT

ayeracdior

R
fisea)
X T B
SR R DUR LIRS
Asgsnoiug
e

SIS
-SUO] Wirsadion (e

{PINURLOT) SHSRRONY IPBID LRI 40 IR0 BuiepSUCY B10j0q X812 YPRI 03 anSodxs WNWIXGW B4L £ T

(POnURU0S) ANINBYNYI NSTH TVIDNYNTI

B r— e o VUE———

(PayEis aBIMIBINO $SBIUN 'NOY U} PISSRIGRD Sit SIUROWE gu)
B10Z ‘TE MINWIDIQ GIGNS BVIA INL 104
SINAWILYLS WIDNVNIS OL STAON
VS VINVINON SNNVE NISUYW

ntnanﬁnaﬁ_xut.«_%ﬁu e
E

e e = ——



T, "S55

YL

T6LEe e
‘ AV LLLIPE

0OTYIY

BT LT
T LrE'm
296 TEU'LE
S18°28'1

) B ] POF LTR'OT
EVESNE ERCER

SETEED
) R’ 284 T

OPLSTR Y

74743 ETETePTT

A
069 '8¢ *7
FS2'a5i
WK TPE 50T
T1Z6'ETZ'v8
PR 99

EY £95

T EESGETET PG OB STH T

S UBYBELRE
ECLRSTL
P91 BE
H91'L6Y'EY
DET'BEY £5

GG IE
SEPZORNT
e T Tl A

s el

86T TER'SK

CREWGE'Y
e .. IR L5 \HN

GOV CHEZ6L
LTI b
TI o'l

TLPE/aTRa
SECEEYHE
FET°90C4

TALTS
B AT
SIE'ER7

B96'LOETG
S5 P RY
FER0

BV

o0 pp 3 Joxpyeu
ABJURAPS puE IR0

“poajedi

SROURADE PUE £UBGT ,,
‘SROUBARE DU BUSOT

%ﬁuﬂ %ﬁ:ﬁa ue&uzna_ uunb._..
SIDMIOISND OF SIIUBADL PUC Suoo| sosd jegol
. © BTGy

- AIRIEA VBB IR YONDILSHY.

_Ausnpuj,
UMY

EFEH e

CisenT

_ . My
AIEYER e DU WDINASUGD
Aigsrpuiy
ERTEITIT

5IWS 1oy

. TIPRIEIIp—

o suBt; MBS R £ vhebiLion:
SHRIRRIAD DB 51US0) [EwGSidhl [ SURD IMUnsUnT
. mﬂ.u..uu. PN

SuBe) Jerad o).

iLT0T 'TE ARMHNDIMG Je e fo&mﬁu PUE SHUD A SJ3UIDISND 0) SAOLRARR PUR SUBO| JO UDIRILISIIY

{PonuRUC) SoseaIu PAID JOVIO 45 (EIBIEHDD BupDpIsues si08q N5H NPAIS 63 BANSOHKS Wi eyl £°T°E

e —

STO0Z *TE NEEWADAO QIANT UVIA FHL 404
SINTWILVLS WIONVNIS OL SRLON
VS VINVWON HNVE NIJNYN

(

(PR3e3s SEIMIBII0 SS9(UN 'NGY U] POSSE.dNA MR SunoWe By T

(Ponunued) RS PR3 TE

PINURUOS) INTWIDYNYM ASIH WIONYNIE



6T TR0 5P8

- SPELELI6Y

W dSet TRl

EeERITEeT

AT
] TR
190° b6 [ e

P A 1
HRBILC S

FEEGEEE BHE ZEDT
e e B 1 LER'YEG' 1L

1EH kﬁnuﬁus” __fHamnsuny

{paieys ASIMIBIR0 SSaun

W ey
SSU] PEYIINNG (0]
$5048 1004
¢ ofiegg Jau jmi0y
¥ abuig s50 popadng-
¥ 851 10904
T ren
9% AR -
ASU MY
2 MEmy
¥ ofis Jou puo
T 9B 5501 PR
3 oBe3S Im0;
A by

RL AR
A8L 28]

836Z 1€ saquisang

A5 PRSI IS APEDB 343 0F UONEIZ) W PG PRIEsAI S4B SIBWIBIENS OF SATURADE DUB SUP0; Bi)

CERDURARD puB SUNOL pasradisg anp o sed dbypmN
SIURAPD pUR EUNOY ¥'I'E

(panunued) ysp apary 1€

{pROUTINCD} INTWASVNVI NSIH IVIINYNTS

SINIWILVLS TYIONYNIY OL STLON
VS VINVIHWOM JNVE NIJUVN

_ S{N 'NGY U} PANBRIERS 1 SuNowe |12)
ST0Z "I£ HATWADAQ GAANT UVIA IHL 104

(e

®



25

amgr_rgﬂvgﬂﬁswu Eﬁmwﬁu w:ﬂﬁ«_” .wﬂ..,w.ﬁzw -y m.mmax

PIRDUEISANS, U UDNEARISGD JaPuD, S PRYISSHD SuRe) WSLING Y wunipow
APIRDUTTS, SE DaINSSEN SuRt) WALy B MO

“BuiMONO) Y3 840 5aDRIB /0GR SW) JOJ iiASN BB B

BnI0dRD 9N

967 28e- BT R T xR - eees T . Clausssasse,
| AR 0T RRESD, E.!.Eﬁn:t LEY D) Al

VBT LI
82V 15201
612758 Be

03 SEABAPE

fsurcy (i)

‘WEYL9Y'EL

(PR P e N.M.wumm oG ) - EURU-Y
THECHLUTE - T=T N ] GEL7 280"y FE T 1% HEL LAY
ERV09Y' Ly 631728155 SL6'PrL el D't Sl My

rﬁaﬁoﬁ Faows VTS _ upBIy.

hﬂnn 'IE Jequsaag

{PEnuULD) SATUCADE PUR SULO) PBUIITIL) Sap J0u Jsod JouyaN (e
{panugues) sooueape pue sisoy it

{penupuoo) XSt upasd g

(PonuRUOR) INIWASYNVIN #STH TIINYNIS '€

——— —

(P2IE15 RSIMIDNIO SERIN "NON U1 POSSBIEND 910 SUNOWE =$
8102 "I AFAWIDIIC ATONT HYUIA ML 104
SENAWALYLS TWIINYNIS OL STLON
VS YINVWON NNVE NISdYW



£5

He¥™ 1304

COPESE e GRCHLVE-

_ rma.mw& .m: .

YIS

TEH P L

BIZ'E7L -

A T2 ERR T var T

o onea mey  pogaardug

..

fili =R

Heges
8501 Jpaud
papaing

- AWEUEST  puslicsc wazere

SEDEY BYE's

BICETFT OG0T

FEHT BT

SuEG) apsy
ey f abeliuoy
Y4t pue
Bl peLes a7
SUEDE JBLINEULT
SRR BORID

W R TR

R

e
He oy,

oydn
Supuerzang

OHORMOY

(POIEis O8Im0 TR ‘NOH U) passoldne s
8T0Z "I€ ¥IGWADTG GIANT BVIA IHL 104
SININILVLS WIDNYNIL O4 310N

VS YINVIWOU XNVE NE4MVH

S10T ‘1€ Jequiedeg

ERueApE pug suRo] padedut Jou Ing anp Jmg - (g,
{panunuos) sadueape pue suesy pr'E
{PonuRuos) Yoy Mpasy  TE

(PRNURLDD) INGWIDVNYI NS IVIDNWNLE

SIURotiE fgr)



¥ HEZG ard’y BT . €SS B45'878 6LL'gTY Auspiig
RGNS CHZREED LT IS T T b TEET T WsTTTERMC UEWMIE LT oo
HOE'D2G . QER'T BET 62T s e o - - N JEB'T- BEV'BLL'T BELGE winiwEIEY
CRBSETEZ pua'nél UNVETEE pLETEOT NLZRER'G? RGuYT9Y : CBEEORET®T  CRMETtu ZOFUSLNL E9E95Z'2T nmmﬁwm
i : i _ LGHIMASIED,
RASIOETZ Bel'SB gbe'ewm’y BRANIe nitese SL0RSC b L HBLBE - ASE'TIST:  SETTIGY Rdgstipy
SIEBEHUL.  ZISS:T  GUBPRDRT el WBRILSL. 8wdliq) SLC0R0Y  Ea0'Se9’) 08758 GEATs lEl9s araung
Ry
B B YE5aE  SAROE . oussueg
o PRy o) o3 dn .
anjes 84 o Buspiesng:
{Banunuo3) saouRApe pue cusol poawdis) 10U ing Snp 18ed  (q
{panupzuas) Faaueape pue tuney yrg
(parupues) wss upesy  ve
(PonuUoD) INJWIOVYNYM NSTH TYIDNVNIE £

(pore1s 3siminipo ssajun "NOU v) possssde sie Gunowe ge)
BI0T ‘TE HAAWIIIQ GIANT HVAA IHL 104
SINIWILVLS TYIINVNIZ OL SI10N
VS VINVWOY JNVH NIJHYH



&5

B R % T T T L R

PO LS ZES

B4 A — A R YK S T T Y (T

EZC A B G RIBUION

SRR =t tk”. : ...”n j ”...,....,mﬁ . ég

{PanuRuon) ssouRApE pUR SUEG) PaRdiLY J0U 3Ng Snp 16ed (9
{ponuljucs) SooURARL PUE SUSDY V'Y'E

{Panupuod) ysi wpaiy 1§

{POnuRUCO) ANIWIAGVNYI NSTH IVIINYNESE €

T lpeueas onasino sER1UR 'NOY Ui DASIOIGXS BIE SWRGWE §B)
STOZ “T€ UIEMITIA OION HVIA JHL 104
SANIWILYLS TYIONVYNIA O STLON
VE YINVHOY INVE NTINYW.



TOEVSBL

.r:,.m.vmw,n ‘

35

SULDY O 3B (9304

LK A% o= BTy A Cma s i BT SUBY| {3 Uiy
TSVCRBEIE  ZiRWED T BYEEVOE  ZZLDLCET  SOVERTE ——ERERIEE $u0; Haas S50 1L -
TSR T E L A T 7 BEBEETT | suey Sty wuy / afivbiop
LA 7i5°0e9 BEG'ZBH'T LRELIS'E ZLH06:'S 2HGRSE'ST 2RTTHE SHELFA R Suem

_ . e ’ levosaad / sie) JEmnsuay .

BIEESE EESR 95 0Z'rLE  SPIED ppasy
SUED} |Ia
LT02 ‘1€ soquinsag

(PaiEis SMMIBI0 SS31Un ‘NG 11 PEFESIEND ain S3UNCWIE 116)

{penunios) sodueApe pur suro) posedug Jou ing anp Jsed (g
{PORURUGR) STOURAPE pUR SURD] ¥ T'E

(Panupues) dou ypsay  1'g

(POrIRUOD) INIWIAOYNYM NSTY TVIONYNIS '€

e e —— 2

BINT '1E MIGWIILG GIANT HVIA IHL LOd

SINIWIALYLS IVIDNYNI4 GLSILON
VS YINYHOM ¥NVE NISHYW



£5

BOP' C99'R o LUYE ARSTiRH]
A3 TR - _ - B
B - Nws0dion oy
4 L OETOEY T T S0
o . . SRy

O1'v6l 60T u(’8e - 058’6 CBEREMR'L BOW TSI 695 TLV RGN 865'639' Tt BYEE2 JRad PHLY HOTNHEUGT
862 1R By 9n% LY 520897 PRS0 SEATN AT Ansnipu]
THE'VHE Y - TRTBNRE EeEoT CELR'209'T TSI TN BOLHL)
I5§ CSTLLE  EVWBBE i oy : SINS (EWAL
nerodia)

X e . e g.ﬂ.g .

Supucisng - _..usmesga

{perms S_Eaﬁe BSOpn iﬁu Ul passasdixy 310 sunowe )

(Panupuos) saourape pue suro| posipdus) JoM Ing anp 198d  (q

{ponuniea0) saoueApe pue suey '1°¢
(ponugues) wsis wpeay 15
(PonuRuod) AINIWIDYNYW NSTH WIINYNIY  'E

BT6L "TE YASWIAIIQ AZONT UVIA ML 104
SANIWIALYLS TYIDNVNIS 04 SILON
VE VINYWOH NNVE NESNVW



TIELPPE

ZBRGI0DT L “BIUCINNG 03
SUOLRADD: DUES LRy 3O o)

T rpe LIS
, 4 SBRIEADR DU SURG] LOSIADIE

) SIDWHEND
01 SONBADE UK Sueo] 1304

SUCR] 2Iod0) 3o jmyoy

STTEbe i SUBCH 31EKLIET WIHSsAtiag
TR ~XEs oy g - _— T : - .

S IONE

SURO| BFIOKL03 S8 o)

muﬁazﬁtsw EDMRADR PUR SuRG) PoJIedw 304 Jng s G
{penununs) seoveape pue susoq yrg

(parnmues) ssu ypous - T'g

{ponupuocs) LNINADYNYM WSTH WIDNVNIY €

 (PoImE SEimsanio sSajun “NOY w passaulxa il Bunowe je) — —
BIOT ‘TE HIVWIDAQ OIANA UVAA IHL 104
¥S VINVIHOM JINVE NIJHYN



MARFIN BANK ROMANIA $A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

. (a1 amounts are exprossed in RON, uniess ctherwise stated)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continucd)
3.1 Credit fisk (continued)

3.1.4 Loans anﬁaémnm{mnﬁnund}

). Impaired loans and advances

The impaired lnans catagory includes ail the exposuras classified to Stage 3, regardless of the valug of
the expasure, which filflf, cumulatively, the following cond:itions:

. Far rotpiorate clisnts:

: o :emn, it vatious stages of m&awmw.
n.  Chents wih more than 90 ﬂays ‘payment delays;
£ Chents m forced execation;

d. Chengs that ragtste? Bt fpast one mr»pe#armng_facrigw at the respructaring date, in the Hrst
restructunng year (category 3m DATABANK ciassificdtion for forborne exposuriesy

5, Casps.sn which # i consideres that, Ir: the absence of an epforcement of the securty, it s
‘unhikely that the datter will pay lts entire Cradit debis, regardiess of the any overdue amouat
or the pumber af days past due.

- F‘m "'emil Eligpts:

& Chenrs with maore than S0 days pavment ﬁeia?s. -
b. Clrents m forcad ERRCHLION;

¢ Chents that register at least ane non-performing fasility at the restructuring date, in the first
restructuring year {cateqary 3 in DATABANE classificetios fup forbiorne expasures)

. fases in which (4 s considered that, in the absence of an epforcament pf the security, 115
unlikety that the debtor will pay its entire credit debts, regardiess of the any Gverdue amount
or the nimber of days past dug,

& Customiers who have sent ponshcations for ratie in solutum to the Bank,

-Also. for clagshealisn 1o Stage 3. the Bank w.is assess the separste matera: EXPOSUTES fur wmch inggers
“of ﬂe*ault ecm.tred '

Tre Bank defmed the toltowing irpairment evests:

»  the dettoi operates in.real estate:

o the debtor nvokes serous fnancel difficuitles; .

w ‘paymient default of more than 60 days for corporate ohents and more than 30 days for retait
LhEnts;

- &l lgast oneof the faciities granted to the debtor was replaced i the past 12 months;

* the deotor's Angncial performanics is rated €, pxtept for clients ranked » such cakégory for faiivre
Lo present the latest finsncial statements,, but which had been previously rated in a better

La!teq:aw.

s wndication on thﬂ Wkelikood of tankruptey or other torm of reorgamsatmn of the a&btm Wy Sase of
COrporare Liwunts.

Exen i at least one of the tnagers of defaull mentioned above orcursed, the Baivk wil assess Separately
‘the exposure of cach dentor s to whet'ier there is objective evidence of imparment,

59
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. MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
_ FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
{all amounts are expressed jn RON, uiifess otherwise stated) i

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

3.1 Cradit risk (continued)

3.1.4 Loans and advances (continued)

¢}  Impaired loans. and advances {continued)

The effect of the guaréntecs on December 31, 2017 is as follows;

Total retsl loans .80,1 446,108,404
Credt cards 1,574,484 14,500 185,527 1,122,941
Consumer icans ; personal _ \ _ ) .

{oans and overdrafis 40,404,572 23,547,152 102,661,802 208, 704,690
Mortgage / Real estate foans. 58,997,724 56,576,939 123,387 383 236,280, 764
Total corporate loans. 74,454,941 38,699,485
Total SMEs 8,312, 8,072,196 -

Commerce 15,0607 401 8,002,716 70,788,425 123,895 147
Industry 18,834,056 12,880,314 (65,389, 8585 124,804 073
fonstructian ang. real estate 18,573,574 18, 4446, 344 FH0.968, 1268 A7IRi18,0623
Agriculture 17,152 : - g, 141,601 1,580, 164.
Lease _ : | 22,734,650 51,834,038
Gthers 15,879,899 6,742,822 18,304,785 37,764,572
'Nat balance ‘Fair valuc
Total corporate 5,442,850 = 627,280 . 39673881 69,697,683
Commerce _ - ‘ 1,787,815 6,351,174
Ingustry 5,142,859 827,289 26,888,703 48,950,862
Corstruckion 3ne réat astate s = 105,827,262, 13,897,904
Agriculture. - 370,300 4978/

“Total loanc and advancas
to customors

185,534,721 695,239,883

L1,241,806,714

The far value of the resi estate and collateral securnties {equiprient o storks) at the ena of the reparong
peniod was estmated by yncreasing the amount determined ky the svaluaticn department of the Bank,
with adjustment elements depending en the security type, date of the last secuvity evaluation, the legat
condition of the custorers, the place of the security, execution cests ano the appraisal duration.

Startng May 2014, the Bank ofsers luans to custormers by directly raduciig ron-recovecable luans fully
tovered by depreciation adjustments. The Bank no longer has reasonable expectations regarding the.
generation of tuture cash fiows from the respective loans, including the Bows that could be obtainesd
the iega; execution procedures. The Bank's managemen” does not consigor that these recevables moest
the critend for derecognitaont in the Bank's docounts, o ' '

At 31 Gecember 2018, the srount of off-balance-sheet loans at gross value 15 511,891,871 tei (2017
453,745,984 fei}.
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__MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
.. FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 33, 2018 |
{ali amounts are expressod in RON, uniess otherwise stated)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Credit risk (continued)

3.1:4 Loans and advances (continued)

d)  Restructured loans and advances

A change w1 o hnancal ssset occurs when Ihe contractual tlauses governing the cash Fows of & Lnancal
assel-are renegatiated ur otherwise altered between the initial recagrition and the miatunts of the

fimangcia aseet, A chaoge attects the value ang / or Urung of contractual cach flows eittar immed ateiy or
at a iater Gate:

Tne Bank renegobiates loans to customers n financial distress i mavimize coilection and mimmize thie
sk of default {festruciuring); A postporement of payment is granted i cases where, aithough the
borrower has made aif reasonable efforts to pay under the inftial 2ontractual terns, there if 3 sigh risk of
default and the barrownr s expected 1o mept the revised conditians. The revised YOrms 1N mast cases
Include an.extension of the maturity of the loan, changes i the timing &f the cash Hows of the loan

within the initia? contractual matunty, refinancng sutstanding peincipal and mterest, The Bank nas a
resteucturing polity that apphies tn s corporate and retad ctients,

. 31.12 2018
Extension of matirity 55481,078.28  18,683,346.50  36.797,731.74
Reftnancing | 18.420,388.63  2070,865.85 14,346,537 98
Rescheduling within contractuat raturity . 35,109,151, 34 3837,232.83 317191852

Total restructuring sperations

Type of restructuring Gros post : : )

Extension of. matinty | 117,217,708.9¢  16,588,666.75  100.629,042.22
Refinanting _ 25,179,046 3 6.441.768 16 727259
Reschedulirg within contractual maturity —S7Q71,148.26 = 8.777.645 48.253.504
Total restructuring operations 418 3 099.71 167,659,804.47
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MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
__NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
~ FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
{all amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise stated)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)
31  Credit risk {continued)
3.1.5 Securities pertfolio

The table Oeluw presents the analysts of the nvestments sacurites parifetio as 3t December 31, 2018
and Decembar 31, 2017, bases on the Standard & Poor's ratings or equivaients '

Décembaer 31, Decembor 31,  December 31, Decembar 31,
- 2018 2017 e, 2018 ‘ 2037

Investments at o e

amartsed cost {,1 7,186,317 252,253,855 BhE- BEA
Franaal assels at e ‘

vare thraugh otiter

comprenansive _ .

wgme (1) 3,708,235 3,163,604 A B BE fA-3

(+}  The investments at FMorhised cost Jve secarites issied ay the Romaman Governmient and have a
iow credit risk. As at December 31, 2018 ang Decembar 31, 2012 the cradit catirg for Romama
was BEB- with fheed parspective, o '

{#}  The finmancial assels af faw value through other mﬁmﬁensﬁm ncome regresent the Bank's:
participation m Wisa Europe Limsted and the Credit Office

3.1.6 Placements with banks

The table beiow presents the analysis of e placements with banks by evahiations: parfarmed on
Pecemper 31, 20318 and December 31, 2017, ‘Dased on the Standara & Poor's ratings or-equivaleny:

fati
Decomber 31,  December 31,  Decamber 31, Docember 21,
2018 L2037 2018 2017
 Total  Total Long/ short.  Lohwg/ short
balance balance . torm term -
Currant cccounts
Inyestment Bank of Grizece 80,648 212,202 - -
EFG Eyrobank Ergasias 2,994,808 4.425,410 88 CCCH/C
Pleconments with banks _ _
ING Bank Roman:a 35,029,736 AtfK L A4 fA-1
Uricredit Romana 5,837,591 Co- '
Exanbani n 55,947,650 -
First Bank 54 40,014,454 : R -
Piragus Rank Athiens. 22,575,359 B-/B
Investment Bank of Grouce 160,352 638 E
Rottachild Bank AG 71,148,508 -
acgean Baltic Bank $A 29,729,449 - -
Total placecments with - - -
banks 336,896,563 103,551,089
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MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
_ . FOY THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(ull amounts are expressed in RON, unfess otherwise stated)

2.2 Market M

Tiw market nsk rapresarts the possibildy of seme sconsruc losses resuftnd ot of the venatitns of the
maraet prices and rstaliments, mecluding equity and prices, as well ag, iterest rates #71¢ 0f the axchange
rate, The market risk may affect, ¢ generat, bott the pasition of the Anzneial instruments pertfolio. and-
the barking antormediations portfoha, as wel as assets and abilities clerments of the balance sheet, The
bank dpplied generally accepted-tochives for the evaluation of the marker risk. such as the Irmes '

analysed depending an the rsk and sensitivity ingicators,

As mentioned within the Strategy reqaraing the management of te sgoiflcant risks, the éa}cczave‘reéategi'
ta the nsks of the interest 1ate and the cxchange rate arg 1o mainfain those parameters at a merdium risk
igved, fow rsh level, respectively. ‘

Earing at Risk {EaR) indicator expresses the sensiivity of the net icome resulted from the siterest rate
at-the stterations suffered fara pre-vefingd perod of time, ususliy one year. '

The decrease of the economvz vaive of the Bank (fung time discrepanty) measures the atteration of the
value of the econamic potential of the Bank due tu the rata interest varations gulside tha finarical
instrurmants surtfoho.

The globa! exposure of the interest rate risk from the activities outside the trading portfeiio m 2 |
Larrences and ail due dates shoutd not be over 209 af the nquity reyylated by the Bank atter applying #
paralrel standard shock of 230 basns puints, ' ' \

The opjechive for the management of the mterest rate A5k 18 1o obtain a maximam Jecroase of the
mpact wver the econwmc velue of the Bank, as a corsequance of spplying the standard stress shock,
Lnider B%: of tha equity of rhe Bank. The Bank 15 considfering o mantan a low medum level regarding
the inlernst ate rek.

48 tar a5 the exchange rate risk is concerned, the Bank éstablished manmiim yimidts of the ppened
positions for each currency, the maximum being of EUR 3.5 mii., 2 maximum level of dady VaR of EUR 50
thousand. fapatii ; e

The Bank shall maintain a level of 2-4% of the tutal currenty posLion i cempanison to the oquity to be
framed wahin the mediuni-low risk category. Under the level of 2%, there shall be considered low nsk

arufre, while over 8% there shall be 3 medinm to high nsk leved, ponting ot the nees to decrease the
Lirrency postion,

3.3 Currency rigk

The Bank is expaseﬁ G the efedds of the exthange Pa_tes"ﬂuctunﬁans i foree averts financial positions
ang avercash flows, The Bank establishes Lmils regarding the exposare level accardig the currancy far

e overmght and intra-day positicns, winch gré monitored on & daily bass.

The tahies below summarizes the exposure of the Bank al the mxcnange rate risi on Cacember 31, 2018
ard December 31, 2017, Tha table alse includes thie Tinancial gssets ang labilitics of the Bank &t they
cArryi amaunr, classfied aecording 10 the currency.
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MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
__NDTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
~ FOY YHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(o) amounts are expressad in RON, unless othurwise stated)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Interest rate risk

The interest rate visk régarding tne cask fow is the risk that tne future cask flows of @ financia
nstrument fluctuates due te changes of this 1nterest fate on the market. The interest rate nisk regarging
‘the Faif vatue is the nsk that the value of a financial instrument. ro fiuctuate due to changes of the
rterest rate on the market, The bank 1s exposed to rsks regurding the effects of the flucluation of the
wterest rate i the market, both 8s far as the fair value 18 concerned and.the cash flow. The interest
marginis May be increased 33 a consequence of such changes, but they may decrease or create losses 1+
there is any uniforeseen movement

The gbjectves estanfished by the risk profile are performid, mainiy, by constant manitaring of the
mdicators for the witerest rate riek {relative GAP, the level of the return in compunction with the averags
Interest level, the dWference betweoen the medim active interest of the bargign currency oredit and the
costs of the sources cumulatively attracted with the risk margm, gy, ' B

The hank determinies ang monttors on a quarterly/monthly bas«s the idicator "petential change of the
economi value” a8 a consequence of the change of the interes! rates ievels, by applying serme sudden
and unexpected clianges of the imerest rates - slandarg shotk/shocks of 200 basis peints mi both
drections. regardless the currency.

&8¢, tor the prevenhion of ingonsistenciss regarding risk tolerance and thé risk taking profde, the Bank
mamtors the dynemic avolubion of the assets ahg Sabilites of the Bank sensitve &t the vanation of the
irtevest rate, makes assumplions, scerarnos and “streds testng” simulations, '

The internal regisiations regarting the market nsk are presenwesd for approval towards the Board of
Luractors . '
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_ MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 _
_{a!l amounts are expressed in RON, unloss otherwise stated)

e -

3;  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis
Effact on profit or loss |
Decembor 31, December 31,
. 3018 017
RON 1,343,183/-1,349,183 +2,853/-2,853
ER +5,678,746/-5 676746 +7.864,72%:. 7,861,729
sy ot 546,939/ 546 939 +834,889/-834 380
TOTAL Interest rate (£ 300 b.p.) )
Volaltility  Stressed currency .. Yownfunds ___  profitorloss  profit or loss
ntorval _profile N 2018 20a7 . 0 2018 .. 2017
‘Sbusmess  turrent level 0,41% © L23%. -142,347 451,871
days - dAvErgge - ' -31.067.378 -1,588,007
average -high % -1.494.329 1,223,209
_ - high C 15% -4.202.135 4,764,020
1 busiess cureant level DA% 138 % 220,737 &11.963
days. average 85, ~1.432.91%9 -3 ORS 408
average-tigh 7% -2.006.087 -2,919.571
nigh 15% 4,298,758 6,256,223
Highest chafiges in the foreign exchange rates in the last 10 vears
interval EUR usp: aBp _CHE
3 business duys 7.86% 14.64% 16.58%: 22.68%
1% business days 5.9%% 8.42% 13.B4% 20.42%

As-at Decembar 31, 2018, f the irderest rate on the market had been 200 bp tugher and the other

varizbies had been maintamed at a congtant Jevel, the net profit of the feilowing year would have been

RON 7,573 thousardd higher (2017: RON 8,699 thousand tighers ..

On December 21, 2018, i the exchange rates had negatively fluctuate 8 3 vaiue egual to the maximum
registered in any 10 consecutive buskwss days in the jast 10 years (the other vanables beina maiteined
at a constant ‘evel} the net profit af the year would have been RON 221 thousand fower 1201 7: RON K12

thousand iowerd.

Parameters for calcuiating sensitivity

The: sensitivity towards the mierest rate: calculation based on the measures equivatent to the guration
presented withit the IR Gap report. Taking into considerabon the fluciuations of The interest rated from
the previous year, a5 well as the anaiysis and assumptions of the Treasury Departmont, & 18 sonsiderso

that 200 basis voints represent a reassnable estimate of the intergst rare movemeant,

&5



MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOY THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
_falt amounts are expressed in RON, uniess otherwiso stated)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Intevest ratc risk {continued)

The seesilivty towards the exchange tate: coiculation based on The open pasitions in foresgn currency. at
the 1eporizng date and stressed positon torrespending to kigh sk profiles. The axchange ratc : _
fluctuations are deterrmred by caltulating the maximum vanation of forawgncxchange rates in any 5 / 10
consecutive busisess days in *he lagt 1 vears. It its estimated that an extremely fugh open position rrigy.
be ciosed in -2 davs” time, but extrome intervals of 5-10 days are used in which Ip estirnated that the
currenty pasition Wil be droppag 3t the level assured i the pek profile. The effects on profit or loss, the

agditional capital required, the change of solvency ratio are calculated.

Liglarty risk stidicares the current 8t future nisk of adverse suteome f the profits and share capdas,
deterrmined by Yy Bank's incapseity to Raifi ns dabiities o1 due date, takmyg nie sonsideratios the
vaistiity of the deposits which ensure, mainty, the funding, pecause cectain craditors arc more sensitive
Ty hid mariet events than others, ' '

1he Back 15 exposed to daily requirements regarging settiement )1 cash Geposits with | day maturity
date, current accounts, drawdowns of Inans and guarantees. The Bank does not keep monetary excesuve
respurces in order 15 be abie o honour 3 these kablities, the expeterice mdicaling that @ minmem fevet
of reinvestment of the due founds may pe provided with 2 hiph level of cetbihuae. The Bank establishos.
hmits regarding the minimum levei of the necessary funds for honouning such requirements, whah must
be avallable ta cover withdrawais at unforeseen reguest levels.

a)  Coshiflows related to non-derivative financial instruments.
The table below presents the cash fows which must be paid by the Bank. m acxordance witts the financal

“habilites unrd the contractual dae dates at the Batance shest date and tne expected paymert date. The
finarcal Iiabilities presented witmin the tabie represent net-updated contractual cash fiows. The financlaf
assets presented witthn the table represent non-updated contractua! cash flows correspoming to.
rerevablos registered a8 ot the baiance sheet date. The Bank manages the hduidity rish, o the batis of
the estimated undiscogning cash Hows,

BE
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_MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
___NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 208
{all amounts are exprassed i RON, unless atherwisc stated) —

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continund)
3.6 The fair values of the financial assets and Habilities
The analysis of the far vaie scale of the financial istraments measured At the forr value.

Level 1 - inciudes instrisments isted-on the actoe markets for identcal asscrs or labilties.:

Level 2 - nchudes instruments whose fair value is determined using nbservable wformaton for assets or
Hatdties. dirertly {such as prices) ar indirectly {such as prices denvatives); and

Level 3 - indudes instruments whose fair vaiize is determined using infermation which are not refied on
observable market data {unobservable entnes).

Assets and Habilitios messured at fair vrioe as at December 31, 2018
Aeveld Lovel 2 Lovel3 = Total

Finsncial ossets

Qtirer financial nxsets
Finanvial assets st fair vaive
through otiver comprehensive
RCoine. -of which: .
- Parteigations - 3,208,235 3,708 235

Total assets ststed ot fair value — i 3,708,235 3,708,335

Assets and liubilities meagured at fair value a5 ot December 31, 2017:
Levell  tevel2 ~  Levei3 Totat

Financial aggets
Availatie-for-sale financial asséts,

= Participat.ons: - - . 3,063,604 3163604
Total assets statod at falr value - - 3,163,608 3,163,604

Fin;ndﬁ! inctruments which were not presentad ot fair vaiue within the balance sheet

he table betow summarizes the fair vatues of the linancial assets snd habiities which are not preserted
&l the fair vawe withun the Bank's hatance shest The purchase prices are vsed 8 the sppraisal of the fair

vaiues of the assets and the sale orices are applied for itabilities.,




MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
‘NOTES TO memz. s'mrmsms
FOT THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(alt amuum are mmmd in mn unm mhemm stated)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)
3.6 The fair values of the financial assets and liabliities (continued)

Assats ond liabilities whose falr value is presented as at December 31, 2018:

Level § _Level 3 Level 3 Yotai
Financial assets
Cash ang balances wirh:
_wentral banks 238,209,032 o 235,208,052
Placements with banks 336,896,963 336,886,963
Loars and advances to ' . _
customers - , - - B18,811.299 818,611,299
itvestivents at amortised cost 405,537,029 - = 305,537,029
Other finaricial assets - - 1,659,794 1,659,754
Totat financial assets 540,746,061 820,471,003  1,698,114,117
Level 4 Levelz Level3 Yotat,
Financial Habilities
Bank depoets - 65,748,373 - 66,748,371
Customers deposits - 1,833,893, d32; - 1,633,693,432
Supprdinatad loans = o - .
-Other finandal liabibties _ - 3,;_ 586,083 3‘,_;:‘_;3&,{389 ‘
Total financial liabitities - _1,700,441,804 3,586,088 1,704,027,894
Assebs and flabilitias whose fair valua is presented as at Docember 31, 2017:
_Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial ossets
Cash anu baiances with e ‘ i
-central barks 511,127,495 - - 513,127,495
Placements with banks 103,551,989 - 103,551,989
wuens and agvances to _ I
-custeners, : O - 834,119,15¢ ¥34,119, 15¢
Investments ot amortised cost 250,200,026 : e 250,200,026
Other finanie! assety ' - ¥ 1,62 ?,31’1' 1,627,311
Total financial assets’ 763,327 835,746,470 0,625,980
_tevely _tevsl 2 _iovel 3 Total
Financial Hobilities o
Bank daposis - 136,235,322 = 136,228,322
Custormers depusits -~ 1,491 815,24} - 1,491,816,241
Subrdinated (oans s = 1EG, 435,644 186,435,649
Other financial habilities o - 1&,)453,133‘__ 14, 143 J;{.‘z
Tot finuncial Habilitios - 1,628,041,563 200,578,751 1828 620,314




MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOT WE"!_EAR ENDED DECEMBER 3%, 2018 ‘
—{all amounts are expressed in RON, uniess otherwise stated)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.6 The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities (continued)

a.  Recewablés from tredht msttitions

The recivables from coegibinstitutions include inter-bank placements and gmounts pending settiement

The fair vatae of the placements with variablé ntersst and avernight deposits is representod by therr
earrymg amount, The estimated fajr value of the fued interest depusits «< based ¥ the updabed cash
Flows, -usig the inte-est rate on the oretary market for lainites with a similar credit risk aan matirity,

Taking oo consideraton that the products' prices are based on vanatie interest rates, there are ng
sigaificant tifferences between the fir vatue and the carrying amount.

b Perewvables from custiprmers

The lozris ang advances to tustomers are calcufated rat of the impairment provisions. The estimated fan
value of the loans and advances represent the updated value of the futire tash flows estimated o be
recaiver, The estmated cash Bows are updated 2 the market rate in urder to establish the far vaiue,

Taking ints ennsideration that the praducts’ pricee are biesed gn variatie interest ratas, there are Ao
significant driferences hetwpen the fair vatue and the E2trying amotint, ' '

. Beposits and cantracted loars

The estimated far values of the deposits winch do net have a3 specified maturity, wiich inClude deposits
with no intersst, are represented by amount reimbursed on request. The estimated far value of the
HAeposits with ixed interest and of othar icans without a mariet prioe is based on the upgated cash flows
wusing Lhe intersst rate tor the new habilities with sirmtar maturity.

Tek:ng ko considerstion that the products prices are based on vangble interest rates, there are Rg
swgnificant differences between the far value ong the tArrying amount., - B

g, Investmeénts at amertised cosi

Tre fair value of investments at amortised cost i determuned by bsing the price mentioned. in Did- ask
margi, the most sepresentative being the fair value under the reigted ciroamsiances, the nrice taken mig
cenideration py the managerment baing the fas? price of trading at the reporting date,

e FHinanpal assets mieasured at farr value through other COMPrEnensive wicame - Participations

The equities held for sale include secunties which are not traded an an active market. Due ts the nature
of tre local capital markets, the market vilue for these securities cannut be obtaned.

The asseis are pot rated aed recert values regarding thoir trade Drice are not accessibie for the pubhc.
Themanagement goes not itend to sell these assets within the near future, The hank has determines]
the fair valie for them using the net asset methog based-on the published hinanciat statements

£, Fipanciat assets =nd habilites

The Bank's management. consideredt that tha Falr value is the same with the carryinig amount, taking into
cons.derabign that these financiyl assets anc Habiiltios #re pstimated 10 be settied within 8 manth nrare
without & Fiesd maturity, respevtively they are-on short torm and the carrying amount is not significantty

different from the fair value,
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.6 The fair values of the financial assots and liabiilities (continued)
g. Reai estate

On the basis of the analysis of the changes on the real-astate market as at December 31, 2018 {in
~omparson with the analysis performed an Deceriber 31, 20173 performed by evaluation team of the
Bank and by the ANEVAR accredited evaiuation tesms, the Bank's management copsutered that the vaiue
of tne lands and buddings as at December 31, 2018 and Decermber 31, 2017 represents a correct

appraisal of the far valve atthe reporting date,

During the year ended December 31, 2016 there ware a0 mapor changes in the penodic fair vaie
statement within the valuation techpigues regarding level 3. '

3.7 Caplital management
Starting January 1, 2014, the Bank calculates s own funds according to Reguiation No. 575/2013 of the

turopean Parliament angd of the Counch! of June 26, 2013 o prudentiz! rEqLrements for cregit |
mEtautons and investiment firms and NBR Pegulation no. 5/ 20. 12.2013 on prudtental requlrerments for
credat ashtitions, : T ,

The prudential filters and the coresponding tax for 2017 are taken ints acreunt a5 Z0% whide for 1048,
are no luhger conSidered, ang the ynrgalizad gans resulting from the fair vAlug MEASUrement as 45%,

The National Bank of Romania, as regulation and supervisory authority of the panking syster at natiorial
tevel, monitors the equity requitements of the Bank within the Himits imposed by EU Regudationiong, *
37572013 o6 prudential requirements for credit Instlut:ong and mvestment firms which prowide-

*  anequity ratic Tier 1 of 4.5 %;

” Bri @quity ratio Tier 1 of E%:;

*  an equity ratia of 8%.

As at Dacember 31, 2018, the reduest for equdy was s foliows:

& & basic copial adequacy fatio Tier | 6F 8.69%;

* 4 capital sdequacy ratc. Tier 1 of 11.59%;

*  atotal capital adequacy rativ of 15.46%.

1In terms of capital managemant, the Bank assesses capital adequacy for rsks in uctordance with the
"Pubcy ¢n the Internal Capitat Adequacy Agsessmont”, NBR reguiations ana CRD IV regulations package
respeciively, ’ ' ' ' o

The tabie befow summarizes the capacity of the ragulation capitai and me..md'mtdrs tor the financiai yoar
ended o0 Oecember 31, 2018 and Decemper 21, 2017, ' ' o
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.7 Capital managoment (continued)
December 33, December 31,

2018 2017
Capital Tevel | LA .

Total capitat level 1 _ 261,047,369 130,953,966

Capaal level2 |
Total zapiaf gvel 2 183,998 915

Total capital 52 8
Total credit rsk exposure . 983,275,539 775,661,336
Total risk weghted exposury oo dD74,822482 896,830,161
Equity ratio level 1 e 26.18% 14.60%
Total equity ratic — ... 2616% _35.12%

-On September 28, 2018 thete was a capital increass through the conversion of subordinates 2ans m

amount of KUR 30 mthon, acceraing tothe decision of the General Meeting of Sharehiolders of
2B.08.2018, wiich seturaid adeguate ratigs of the bank’'s equily.

On December 21, 2018, the Bank requtered oth a level | equity ratio, and s total equity atin of
26.16%, above the minimum fevel \mpesed by the Nationsl Bank of Ramaria, namey 12.565%, and
19.335%. y g | , _

4. BASIC ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS FOR ACCOUNTING POLICIES
APPLICATION

the Bank makes certsin eshimates dnd adopts certain theones affecting the amoums whers the assers
-and Hapiities are registerad during the noxt financial year. The estimates and SERWTITHONS BTE B5SL3SET
canstantly ana are based on the tistorical exparience and oo other factors, induding the pxpactaripns
regarging ihe future svents considered reascnably under the givan cirtumstances.

8)  leyparment dosses on foans and agvances

The bank reviews ity loans portiolio on & morthiy basis ' ordor to evaiuale the impairmen:. The ,
mpErment navision shail be done accuraing te the policy reganding the evaluahion of the risk £ADOSUrEs
approved by the management. In orier to-establish whether a impairment foss must be registered within
the peofit ordoss scount, the Bank makes assumplians regarding the exstence of some obvicus
taformation te indicate a caiculable decrease oY the future cash fiows estimsted from a loar portfole
befare the time when the decrease couit he associatad to a certain luan from the respective portialio,
These avidencas may tnclude obvioos information indicating an urifavourable charige in the statute of Fha
debtors within & group of economic conditans at econgmit National or lacat level ta be eonnacted witn
the impairment of tie assets of the Bank.

n planming futare cash flows the management uses estinates bascd on histerical 5% experinnce tor
Assees related to sinutar credit tisk characteristics and obfective evidences of the Impairment semular o
the portfolo, The methodoiogy and the assumptions used in the apprassai of oth the value and the
calendar of the future cash tlows are roviewes eonstantly ir srder ta reduce the differences between the

estimates tegacding the fosses angd the real iosses registered.
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4. BASIC ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS FOR ACCOUNTING POLICIES

APPLICATION (continued)
) Futare tes fosses

Accorting to the Roman«an tax legislation, tax fosses may be carmed forward for & perod of 7 years
generaing deferred tax when the relgtan tax benetits, by Future taxable profit, is wobabie. The geferred

income tax assets related to the tax ‘osses reported are re
profits s possible. The future tasable profits and the benef

cognised «f the Ascat benefit by tuture taxasble
its-of the deferreg tax credit probable in the

future ure based on a busness plan prepared by the management. The business pian takes it

cursideration a positive and steady evoiution of the income through an oryaric
of mediuni nisks, stnct control of the costs and increased efficiency, as well

adequate level of capitabisation and a firn position of the linuidity leve:.

norease and assumplon
#s the maintenance aFar

The managorent of the Bank eatimates that the Bank wili register sufficient profit in the future penod ot

tiine.

€} Finanual assets at amurtise cost

According to IFRS 9, the Bank tiassiies o part of its financial assets which &
wilth fixed or estimable payments and fixed maturites as financial assets at
Tats o ihus, excepl for sotme specific irtyrastances, such as the sa'e of an

to pisturity, ¢ should reclassidy the entire category &% tinancial assets held tor. sale,

5.  NET INVEREST INCOME

Intervst income: _
Current accounts and deposds with banks
Loans and advances to customers '
Investments at emorfised cost

Totol

Intorest expenses L
uarrert account, loans ang deposics with banks
fLustomens depesds

Suboriiatod loans

Total

G4

re nol.devived instruments
amortised cost. If the Bapk
insignificant amount or close

2038 2017
2,999,671 149350
46.555,974 44,455,762
6,487 801 4,376,625

56,143,846 50,375,637
12,176,459 4,728,670
22,566,531 2498, THE
30,383,095 33,631,598
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6. NET FEE INCOME

Fee income

Irter-bank rransachions faes -

Lustomer procvesds ara paymernts fees

Custamer credst feas _

Fees, feom loan commitments #nd issuée guarantes htters
Asssstance and consuftancy fees

Muans of payment foss

Othier fees

Total

Fees axpanses

Inter-bank transactions fees

Customer operatiun fees

Means of payment fees
~Other foes

Total

7. OTHER OPERATING INCOME.

Opurating income from:
Dividends o

Sungry income from operabing achivities

Gans from the deposit reimbrrsement to tha-

Bank of Cygrus (i)

Sefe depost boxes _

Seting the repossessed assets S
Nt income From aliowances far sundry operabinns

Net income from impairment aliowances of repossessen assets

Net income from other prowvisions
- Other inegme '

Total

2018 201867
25,911 22,608
987,706 909,598
21,760 241,201
280,388 323276
221,074 260,101
1,989,891 1,908,487
22,527 25516
3,549,257
2017 2016
419,508 -450,637
58,508 -5§,73%
279,032 407,387
_-56,989 -57,530.

ms 2017

27,396 28,263
10,525,451

43,295,879 11,554,017

40,315 41,136

- 2,361,412

- 357,808

4,849,136 7,476,662

305,859 490,212

48,144,146 12,306,414

{11 The gains from the deposit 1simbirserment (9 the 8ank of Cyprus, in amount of ROk 32,295,879,
ragistered 1y 2014, represents the discount received, agreed after Sing the contract regarding the
advance paymieat of a subordinated foan received from the Bank of Cyprys.

fu) Against the background of the repayment, at & discount. of the subcroiated ioan in amount aF L

10 mdlion, the Bank regestéréd m Septermber 2018 an extracriinary IncOme i amouat of '
Sppraximately EUR 7 mdlon, wnick generated profit at consohdated iovel
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8.  OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

. . 2018 2017

Operating axpenses, of which: :
Hents L e 8,750,181 8,825.005
Employees’ banefits - 28,093,299 -22,669,73%
Sovial comtributions ‘847,035 -5.060,45%%
Deposit Guarantee Furd Contributions -772,628 3,422,812
Other fees amd taves -1.818.207 1,712,300
Supplies _ Q57,766 -bOg 268
Maintensnce 3nd repairs -5,947,291. ~5,255,240
Litthties -{,408, 144 ~1.482,71%
Post office and 1elecofmmuanications 2,843,447 2,992,320
Collaborators and brokerage “SE7,622 770,247
Distocations, sacondments, transters -54.2,4%4 ~246,716
Other servites perfeamed Dy third parties 7,035,133 6,856,465
Protoent 265,705 360,690
Pubhcty and advertising. ~183,548 ~&31,276
Net loss on mrspping of fiked agssets ~A16,427 ~2£1,8 1%
Deregistration of the sold repossessed assats {1} 2,776,430 s
Amuortizaben/depresiation of tangible and intangible assets -3,176,968 -4, 250 057
Met expenses with adstments for receivables from sundry

Bperations. S o 426,878 .
Net expenses with other provisions 196,715 C32F 2T
Other operating experses. -518,682 -631,658
Total 87,860,737 65 853,563

Ling "Other third party services™ alse ncluties thie taxes paid by the Bard to the Ratutory Audnor fur the
-audit of the statutory financia: slaterments for 2018: RON 346 254 (70 17: RON 349,234}, No additonal

nen-audit services were provided by the audit tirm.

{111 2018 Banca sold properties halid furthir % the enforcement of ton-pererming ioans n amount of
RON 36,005,762 {017 RON 43 775, 265), which were registered at @ book value of RON 38,790,163
(2017 KON 41,413,852}, wcurnng & loss of RON 2,770,433 (2017 profit of RON 2,361,442

9.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The incoma tax before tax registered by the Bank differs Trom the theoratica: value which shoUid result as

a consequenice of the use of the basic tay rate

L2017 2018
Profit hofora tax 12,501,233 5,706,618
Thesreboal icome tax expersefiincome) calcutated at the iy o
provided rate of 16% : ~1,580,197 513,059
The tax affect ofi o .
Non-dedudiibie expenses. -1,937,130 ~1 441 &}
Assimulates income tems: ~LOTF a6 -
‘Cther doductions 592,847 725,683
-Nan-iaxatde incormes cleménts. 1,657,956 1.689,670
Use of reported and unrscogmzed tas Joss &, 444,670 =60, 327

EL
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE {continued)

The cirrent tax is calcuiated by applying a 16% rate (2017: 16%) The defarred income tax 's caicuiater
for aj the temporary aifferrces based on the accrual principle, sig @ fax income rate of 16% {2017
%),

The accounting proht before tax registerad by the Bank in 2018 in amount of RON 10,521,233 was
adpusted for the calcilation of the tay inss by KON 4,777,952, resyiting from nan-taxahie ncome,
assimnilatad income items, non-deductible expenses ang ather deductions. The tay profit generated by the
Bank i 2018 inamount of RON 15,279,189 reduced the tax losses carried forward from provious pehote
' amount of RON 234,419, 293 wee added. o - ’

Thus, as at December 31, 2015, the Bank reported o tax foss carrted forwartl of RON 219,140,609 whicn,
acenrthing Lo tne fiscal legislation, tan e used within 7 years from {5 realisation. To this tax loss. '
corresponds a defarred incomie tax as roceivatie in amount of BON 35,062,457 On the hasis of the
Bank’s prospects relating future wicnme, the Bank recogrised within the befance sheit a receivable with
the deferred tax on December 31, 2018 m amoum of RON 18,948,417 (2017: RON 10,948,417},

The Bark has a potentisl anmmﬂma&-mé tax asset rot 'fémgn‘t_zed in'me statement of finanaal
HOSIL'ON fram winsed tax losses carred forward in amount of RON 24, 1 14,980 {2017: RON 28,814,635}
The tax losses carned forward expire 33 follows: '

___3mg 2017
The tax losses carcied forward expire on: ' ) o
Decembior 31, 4018 ‘ 1%,514,348
December 31, 2019 9,092,075 12,856,916
December 33, 020 853,284,639 893,284 639

December 31, 2021 116,763,890 116, 763,890
Total 19,

Tax recognised
. Tax rotogniced in other
Decamber 31, in profit or loss comprehencive Recember 31,
2017 exponsc/ (loan) _income 2018
Tax loss carnied forward 10,947,417 - - 15,348,417
Tax pifect of the o '
differences caused by the:
change of the far value
of the financial assels at
fair value through othor
CoMmpretiansive mLome - . -
Net tax offoct of the
temporary non-
daductible/ (taxablc) _ . B
diffarences " 10,948,437 - _ 2 10,948,417

Deferrea tax assats are recognised for the tax ioss carried forward i # 1s probable to reatise the related
tax benofit. o ,
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10. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

o 2007
Petty cash | 35,.068.076. 32.26: 843
Cutremt seaounts with NBR 200,140 958 A G BGD.6452
- in RON 122.695.033. 137.686,751
- nEUR _ '??.445.923 341178901
Total 235.209.032  S511,327.495

Eerrmmamame o o e e N . et A Sl i B

The currant. gecount et fulfi the mandatory requirements regarding the nunimum recerves imposed by
the Nationat Bank of Romarnis. This reserve represents a medium fmimum deposit on & montk period,
pased on the resaurces raised i the previous month . The batarces with the Central Bank at the renoring

dare fulft} these requirsments.

In 2018, the interest rates vaned between 0.09% and G.23% (2017:
in RON, and were set at §.02'% for reserves heidin EUR (2017: 0.0

0.08% - 0.10%:) fur reserves held
2% - 0.05%), |

Ali these bulances have been included :r cash ang cash equivaients (Note 24),

311, PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS

2018 2047
Corresponden: 3cooLnts {NOStrG} 3,143,517 6,757,811
Sight placsments. 36,314,389 5,837,541
Matunty plscenents 257,617,539 90,976,787
Expected (o5 —ci7B, 487 _ Z
Total 336,896,963 103,551,988

During 2018, the interest rates with the USD placements varied betwsen 0,70% and 3.80% (2017
0.65% and 1.48%: ) ard the ones with the EUR placements batween 0.495% and 1.30% {2017, 05and

0.30%). Thi interest rates with the RON placements varied between 0.75% and 4.35% (2017: (.25%

ond 2.50%),

In 2017, there ware ne registared provisicns as tray were calcutated as of Janwary 1, 2018 since IFRS 9

becarne effedve,

Alt these balances have: been incluced n cash and cash &g

maturity under 3 months (Note 243.

12, INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COsT

uvaients because they have a contractual

_ 018 2017
Bonds issued by the Refmantan Govermment . B . -
- i1 RON ' 219,395,485 228,129 933
- ELIR 23,729,068 24,053,827
- in USH 2,064,760 -
Tosal 307,186,317 253,353,
Bands issued by the Goveriment of Romania - gross 307,558,720 252,253,855
Experted loss. 13&_3;1523 ] -

207,186317 253353958
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P iy i e —

12. INVESTMENTS AT AMORYISED COST (comtinued)

The interest rate for the bond portfalio issued by the Romaman Govemment In RON. fluctuated between
2 258 and 5. 75%, (2017° 2.25% and 6.75%), and for the EUR bond portfolio 4.875% (2017: 3.875%)
and for USD 6.25%. In 2017, there vias rg bona portisdic s USD,

Yhe movements i the mvestments at smartwed cost are presentad betow-

Yool
Balance on January 1, 2018 282,253,855
Inputs (purchases) 140,807, 382
Qutouts (matured} -80,000,000
-Colfected Irterest - -12,018.001
-Artrtidabon discount / premivm: 6,487,801
E¥change rate differences L2388
Batahce on Docomber 31, 2018 307,554,720
Balance on January 1, 2017 300,607,693
Inpts [purchasesy 73,854,066
Qutputs (sold or matured; - -115,000,200
Collected interest . ~12,310,802
Armertisation giscount / premiim 4,376,625
Exchange rate differences . 536,273
Balance on Decamber 31, 2017 252,253 955
Movement of the provision related t aRartized Cost Nvestmonts:
Total
Balance on December 31, 2017 e .
Effect of coanges in accounting policies . -205593
Balance on January 1, 2018 | -295 593
thipists: 107,564
Outputs -180.374
FX differences — - -
Salanca on Decemtiar 31, 2018 -368,403
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13. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREMENSIVE INCOME

2018 2017
Participations ' o ' .
i PON L4332 33,961
1 EUR (1) 546,003 545,511
- USD ) _ 3,130,800 2,588 632
o . .

(-3 - As visa Eusope Limuted ("Visa Europe” and Visa Inc. annnunced on Novernber 2%, 2015, Visa Ing
agreed tn purchase Visa Furape, under the cangition of recewwing the approvat within the regulation’

tramework, Taking inta accourt that rhe Bank is & prneipal menher of Visa Furnpe, the Bank 15

part of this transachon. ' - o

In 2016, the smount of EUR 1,367,592.75 was confirmet arid pad n tash, representing the

completon of the cash transaction, mcluding tne sale of the FUR 10 share of Viss Eurgpe.

in addition, the banlk received 496 prefecentiai shares Seres € n Visa Ine. ang cash pro rata with the
0.0105373516% noiding Yo receive after the third anniversary vatuen at EUR 11 7,070..

The movements « the finenoal assets at fair value through other comprebensive incame are presented
as foliows: ‘ o - '

Total
Balance on Yanuary 1, 2018 3,163,604
Bamy(iosg) from the aiterations of e fair value . 844 53
Balance on December 31, 2018 3,708,235
Balonce on January 1, 2017
Gams f¢m changes in fair value . BA8,7%
Balance on December 31, 2017 | 3,163,604
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Net carrying amount as at Jepuary 1, 2018

Inputs

Transfers

~Cartputs

Arnortization expense o ‘
Arcurulated amartizslion for putputs

Cost N
Accumiulated aftprbzatgn

Net carrying amount

Net carrying amount as at Janvary 1, 2017

Inputs

“Transfers.

Uutouts

Aortization expenses

Accumuiated amortazation far outputs

Net carrying amount as at December 33, 2017

December 31, 2017
Cost _
Accumulated amortization

Net carrying amount

L

ﬂsoftmm

1,931,858
1,826,480

-971,009
1,826,490

2,376,937

B.051,268
-5,674,331

2,376,937
. %269,608

419,055

~LA02, 615

1,416,088

7,945,899
-6,529 811

_L416,088
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16. OTHER ASSETS

2018 2017
Valites to be recovered 28,458 318,915
Various debiors - net 1,292,110 975,255
Incomes to be recewed - net 339,226 . 433141
Total _ 1,659,794 1,627 311
Other non-financiat assots B
Inter-bank seéttiements 560, 858 900,712
Advanees ta personnel 1,508 863
Deductible/recoversble VAT _ Rt 448,989
Other receivatles regarding the state budget 77,264 434,287
Repossessed assets 265.45] 615 241,502 487
Fapehses registered in advance . *3.,33§_,2ﬂ8 2,801,434

Total . 270,119,500 236,178,272

December 31, Décember 31,

Nature of the agsets _ 2018 : 2017
Various debtors - gross 1,730,421 1,821,201
Provivign ; 438311 _ 85,046
Net value 1292110 975,255
Gross incomes ko be receved. 432,701 408,135
Provision . B3840 74,985
Net value ) e 339,226 333,141
Grpse repessessed assets- _ '34E.06D,341 ©327,050,349
Provisien fur assets impairment . ~90,508 726 85,457 862

Net value. ... 205,451 615

Repossessed assett are recognized os stocks of assets a5 per 1AS 2, held for sale in Bhe tourse of
usress: In the sale process, the camying amount of the EXPENSE 18 recogmed (s profit or loss as the
Telated revenues from sale are recognized, Repossessed assets are stated annually at the fowast of cost
and net, realizabie value, According to the NBR structions, the revaiued amount of resossessed assets is
checked by un ndépendent valuer srahicatad by the NAR, o

The movement in the portfolic of repussessed assets was a5 follows:
Pecaember 31, Becember 31,

2018 2037
Inflows (gross value) . 57,800, 184 13,225,315
Durflows {oross vaiuel . 38,790,193 41,413,152
Price raceved “36,019,782 #3775 265
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16. OTHER ASSETS (continued)
The moverrent of the provision for varicus deﬁté_:-rs % as foilows:
December 31, Decembor 31,
2018 2017
Opening balance 46,046 1,285,000
Inreascs 392,285 -
Dacreasss : -1,238,963
Closing balance 438,311 46,048
The movemert of the pravision for income o be received is as follows
December 31, December 31,
. 2018 2017
Opening balance 74,995 250,854
Increasas: 18,480 .
Detresses . 215,859
Closing balance 93,475 74,995
The moverment of fhe provisien for repossessed assets impairment representing assets schieves ax a
sansequence of foreclosure of receivabiles & as foliows:
December 31,  December 31,
—— ADLE . 2017
Opemng balance. 05,457,862 92,934,524
Incegases £645,557 1,093,245
Decreases -7,494,688 8,569,910
Closing balance 80,608,726 85457,862
17. DEPOSITS FRUM BANKS
3018 2017
Carrespondent accounts fiorci 29,054 52&.&?’3.,
Sight deposits 15,001,146
Maturity deposits 53,718,173 = o
Coliaters! deposis. o 135,699,633
136,225.322

‘!’at;:;f

1n 2618, for inter-banking deposits drawn, expressed 1» RON, interest rates vared between 1.35%: and
3.52%. In 2017, there are no deposits from banks in RON, For mter-bank dapasits denommated iy EUR;
the wterest rates varied between % ang 4.25% (2017, 1.38% and 4.25%).
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18. CUSTOMERS' DEPOSITS

| 2018 2017
Current accounts 221,554,504 142 405,326
Sabt deposits 10,713,957 16,233,429
Maturity deposits 1,381 812,526 1,326,633,858
Coliaterat deposits 13612451 12541528
Total 1,633,693,432  3.451.816,281

The internst rates regarding customers. deposits h 2018 vared between 0.1% and 4% 12017 tetween
0 1% anid 4%} on deposits aengminated v RON and betwaen 0% and 4% (2017 between 0%, and 4%
on deposity deasmmated m EUR.,

19. SUBORUINATED LOANS

2018 017
‘Subordinared loan for an indefinite term _ _ 186,435 649
Total .. .. 186435649

The Bank contracted-a subordinated loan of EUR 10:000.000 in 2006 from Marin Egatis Bank SA, The

'0an has 4 variable interest rate (Eunbur at 3 menths + 0 6%) quarterly pavable and it has an ndefinrte
raturity. The suburdinated doun contract does not compnises the financia? ndicators 1 be fulfilied by the
Bank, \ Ad .

1ne suborginated ican has bean ransferred starting with March 29°%, 2013 from Masfin Egnatia Bank SA
‘owards Bank of Cyprus (Note 2.1 b,

In 2014, the Bank nas made 2 Lonversian of the fixed-term deposts from Bank of Cyprus into two
sunorgmatid loans tor an indefimte panod, of EUR 20,000,00C in Septerber 2614 and FUR 10,000.000

mn December 2014 at fixed intevest [2% for the first year, 3% for the second vear, 4% for the fourth
4.25%. for the fitth vear) and vanabie intevest starting with the sixth vear {Euribor at 3 months + 4%},
Quartetly payable - - '

As at August 31, 2018, the amounts drawn trom credit institutions consisted of subordinated loans (E4R
10 muifion from Bank of Cyprus Pubhe Com pany; EUR 30 mithon from Barmiveld Enterprises Limited,
priorty purchased from Baok of Cyprus Public Company).

On September 26, 2018, Haaﬂn Baok _if?n_mamé}' SA increased ds share taptal by converting the _
subordinated joans in-amount of EUR 30 milficn from Barmiveld Enterpsises Limited, and the subgrdinated
wan from Bank of Cyprus Public Company was repaid at a discount of 70%.,
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20. OTHER LIABILITIES

2018 2017
Other financial Habilitics _
Otner due amounts 1,032,199 13,295,560
Sundry creditors 2,170,936 637,940
Expenses payable _ 382,854 205,607
Total .3:586,089 14,143,102
‘Other non-financial Nabilities -
Collecled/ pavable VAT 33,534 &1.03%9
Salary wititholdings dus to therd parties - 473
Othrer payabie taxes and social Denefits 1,543,915 1,630,870
Income registered & agvance . 95,728 628,531
Provigions for the empioyeas’ perafirg 3. 702,687 1,635.904
‘Other reguiatory accounts and differences _ i8,338 86297
Fotal : 4,274,202 4,203,134
21.  PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES
2018 2017
Provisions for loan commitments, finantial guarantees and’ 540,264 |
ather qiven commitments - 137,350
Lggation provisions i 28,778 , 200,306
Total . ...569,840 = 337,656

The value ot the risk pravisions takes wite account the best estimate of the neressary amount fof the.
settiement of the ubligation, Yaking into.consderaton the assocatad rsks.

Once the Company adepted IFRS 9 as.of January 1, 7018, it calculated sddiianal provisions. according to
the metholodogy mn forre, as Follows: '

Provisions for Jending commitments ~ RON 182,630
Prowisions for fimancial guaramees - RON 143,181

The litigaticn provisians are recognisest for afl the sduations where the foliowing conditions are met: there.
15 3 leyat o construchive obligabion as a conseGuence. of a past event, the possibliity that arf outflow
mearporating economic benefits necessary for the settlement of the obiigation s more likely than the
possibility 67 not being necessary and a resiable estimate may be dovie ragariing the value of the
obigaticn. . - -

The thanges in the provisiens for rsks and charges are presenten belgw:

2018 2017
Balance at the beginning of the year e 337,857 214,739
Increazes 1,161,145 313,836
Decreases ~1,118,212 ~193,121 .
FX differances 188,450 4,213
Balance at the end of the year 569,040 337657

Litigaticn provisions sre dug to the eiamma’iﬁm of rigks marﬁihg tﬁe_is'tifga_ﬁéﬁ‘ ory abusive Clauses (risky
Crelated with increase of the interest rates and charging Lommussicns for grarting, maneging and

regtracturmngh.
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22. SHARE CAPITAL

2018 2017
Shared capital registeres with the Trade Reg stry 421,142,290 281,328,790
Adiustiog the share capts with mflation (IAS 25) . 35,171,458 36,171,458
Share capital according IFRS e 357,314,748 317,499,748
Shareholder . 2018 2017
(%) {%)
-Barawveit! Enberprises Limitad 99.6% :
Sharghnlders - egal entitiey (]S &)
Sharchoiders - ratural persons E 0.12 0.48
Fotal . .0000 _100.00

The Ban«'s share capta: consists 6f 4.211,432,900 (2017 2.813,252,500) ordwary shares stiocated and
paic 10 il 10 the Amuyrl of RON 0.4 each share (2017: RON 0.1 eack). Svery SNATE TEPrESents a vole;

'23. RESERVES.
\ 2018 2017
Legal raserve ) 6,872,948 6,347,886
General teserve for banking -rlsﬁ_!'s _ 7,568,083 7,568,063
Regarve from the re-evatuation of the assets 622,515 E27.57%

Differerces from changes i the fair value of fnancial sssels
 at fair value through other comprehenshve ncume ~ cradit o
office. ' o 25,056, 27,679
Differences from the sitesahions of the fair valye of inancial
assets at far value througn other romprencnsive income -
Visa ‘ ‘ 4,215885 802712

1m 821

Total

The changes it reserves are detaed s totiows for each reserve eategory:

Legal reserve _ 2018 2037
Balance ot the beginning of the yeor 6,347,886 6,062,555

Transfer @ profit altocation 525,062 285,331
Batance at the end of tha yesr ___&872948 8,347,885
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23: RESERVES (continued)

Goneral reserve for banking risks 2018 2017
Batante at me-'oegazﬁmg of the year 2,568,063 7,568,063
Batance at the end of the year o 7,568,063 . 7,568,063
Reserve from the reasseusment of the asscts . 2018 2017
Balanca at the beginning of the year 527,575 538,702
Incraase of the fair value of fied adsets -
tiand ang bubidingy _ , =, I 90,823
Batance at the end.of the yoar 827,575 627,575

24, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2018 2017
Cast anc batances with the Central Banks (Note 10) 235,209,032 515,127,949
Placements with banks (Note 11) y 336,896,963 103,554,989
Total 572105995 514,679,484

25. OTHER ASSETS
Differences from channes of the fair valua of financial assets ot fair vatue through other

tomprehensive income
Batance at the beginning of the year 830,792 24,552
Registering the differences regarding the fair value L 410,242 .. 806,240

Balance ot the cad of the year

According the Ramamian fegislation regardiog the bank nstituhions sng bperations, the Bank must
istribute the proft as dividends or Lo perform a transfer it tho reported! vesult (feserves) based Bn the
finanial statements cenciuded (» actordance with Order 27/2010. The transferred amounts i the-
reserve accounts must be used for the purposes defined at the time of the transfer.

According the Romanan bank Iegisiation, the Bank has the obligation to créate a legat reserv of 5% of
the gross income, urtil the total reserve reaches 20% out of the issued and fully paid share Capital

Aceording the ig‘gcsmiare regulated by the Natonal Bank of Romania, in the past the Baok had the
obl:gation to créate 8 gereral ceserve for barking nsk. out of Y gress sncome. This reserve may be used
to cover losses from ioans. At present, the reserve is not used untl 2 clarification 18 issued regarding this
requiation by lhe National Bank of Romania, - o

The amaunts transferred ki raserves must be used for the purpose défined at the time of Lhe transfer:

According to the national isgiskstion, theso reserves annot be used for giher Purposes.
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25, OTHER ASSETS {continued)

After resjucing taxes and elminating statutory gng geners; reserves as previously presefited, the
remaqing balence out oF the net income may be distributed to the sherenoiders. Oniv the dividends from
tne corrent statulory moome may be geciared:

The iagal reverves may be distributed with the approvat of the Aanual Generat Meatag of Sharehoiders,
bt they shall be subgect to 16% taxatior al the distnbution. time..

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The nature of the relationship with relatea parties for those related parties with whish the Bank ronciuded
sagnificant transacl:ans or registered sigrifcant batsnces as a2t Decamber 31 sheren preserted,

Barniveld Enterrises Limited is the parent hank. Thi related parties presented beiow include inainly the
focal management.

The man relared parties of the ;ﬁ?bup are @s follows:

Name Participation _ Country
s

lnanmis Vardinogrannis ~ natural person L0 Groece

Gem Force Investments Limited 100 Greses

‘Barmveld Eaterprises Limited 99.69 Cvpius

2018
Current accounts with' _
banks - ) o ) 80,648
Placements with barks 180,352,638
Customers’ loans . 299 2:280 731 : B . 13.537,117
Total agsets ; - 171,970 403
Liabilities _

Current accounts wilh

Dapagits of hanks " R g
LCustomers' deposits L,131,479 2502, 780 _ _ [B52,070

Total ifabilities 1,131,479 2,602,780 e 1,881,123

MBE way a memer 6F Laiki Group, Duning the analyzed period, the Laski Group was under tquidation,

under the contretof o designated recaiver

in 2018, 1he majority sharebolder of the Bank became Baimiveld Enternrises Limited with 58 Arch.
Makarios I, Iris Tower, B ﬂﬁm{ 1U7S, Nicosia, Cyprus.

Thus, by Letter no. 18906 / 18 08.2017, Barnvel Enterprises Limitad notifled the Natwonal Bark of
Romania its intention to become a shareholder of Marfin Bank (Remaiia) SA, with 2 99.535052%
shaeholding in the bank, based on the provisions of Article 25 paregraph 3 of Government Emergency
Order po. 99/2006 un creddt institutions and capitat adequacy, as amended and supplemented by Law no.
227/2007, as subsetuently amanded and supplamented.
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26. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Subsequently, by Letter no. FG / 235 / 12.03.2018, the Central Bank informed the purchaser's
representatiyve Inat it does not oppose Batmiveld Epterprses Limtted's mtention to hoid a diect
participation of 99 535D052% m the share capital of Marfin Bank (Romana) 3A.

Subsequently, oy Letter no. 393 7 26.07 2018, the credit Institulon sutmitted to the Natiotal Bank of
Romarses - the Supervision Department the documents for reglstiahion &t the Trade Registry of the few
sharehiglder of Marfin Bank Romanie SA, namely Barveld Fnterprises Limited

2047 Management _ Ke n the Group
Currgnt accounts with , .
banks - 27'3‘!?,232
Facaments with banks e . - o
Customers’ loans : 2320 2BIgE2Y _ ke 159,844 H24
Total ansets 7,320 2,829,823 - 161,761,026
Liabilities

Cyrvert gccounts with N
BEIRS ' - - - 525,689
Deposits of banks : — - 5L,808,156
Customers’ deposits 1,015,503 2,311,960 - 2,905,083
Totat Habilities 015503 2,311,960 - 55,238,928

AR 2017, MBR was member of Latks Group, which was under iquidation, under the contot of a designated
receiver. The Lake Group had its structere. Marfin Leasing Romania A, interqationai Bank of Greece and

CRRiE Nova ?"_mne;iv *fm;h‘r_i__g‘s SRE.
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_ MARFIN BANK ROMANIA SA
_ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOT TME YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(all amaunts are exprossed In BON, unless otherwisc stated)

—

27. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Taxation

The Romanian tak system suffered multiple aherations ovar theelasi years ang now ig i the phase of
adjusting to the Eurcpean Union Jutisdiction. Therefore, there ara st diffizrent \terpretations of the tax
legistation. In certain situations, the tax authorities may trest differently certalin aspects, petforming the
aloulation of some addsbonat fees and taxes and of the related interest and defay penalties (ac the
present time the penaities esteblished acrording the detay period, plus 0.01% per ody default merestl.
In.Romania, the fiscal vear remistns opened for tax verification for 3 years. The Bank’s management
cons:gers tnat the tax habilities included 1 these financial statements are adeguate. '

Transter price

Yhie Romanan 12y legislation includes the "market vatue” principle, Sccording 1o wiich the trades
betvieen the refated partied must be performed at the market value The ‘ocal contributars pérforamng
transactions with the reiated parkies must deaw up and to put at the disposal of the Rormanamt tas
authores, at ther wriden regquest, Lire documentation file of the tranisfer prices. Faiure to present the
documentat:on file or the incomplete prosentstion of such may cause penaites Yor noncomphance;
addtionai w the content of the documentation file of the transfer prices, the tax authphties may mrerpret
‘the transacbions and crcumstances different from the management's intgrpratation, therefori, they may
ipose aodihional tax hahities resuited out of the adjustment of the Lransfer prices. Yha Bank’s
management cunsiders that the Bank wi not have any losses f a tax control shouid occur for the
assessment of the trarsfer prices. Neverthaiess, the impact of the different interpretations of the tax

-@dthorties may .not be reliably appratsed. It can be significant for the Bank s financal positior: andjor
gperations,

Tax risk

The Romansan tax system s wi the phase of consoligation and adjustment with the Eurgpean Umnn
legislation. However, there are sbi! different interpretiations of the tax legistation. In certain sitedtions,
the tox authorties may treat differently certarn aspects; performmg the caleulation of sorne additional
fees and Laxes and of the related interest and delay penaities. In Romama, the fiscal year remaims.
upened for tax verifcation for § yeprs. The Bank's managerent ronsiders that the tax habiities Includes
o Hhese fmancial statemants are adenuate and they are not awsre of any Circumstances whicn sy
tause signficam Jatu ity in this rEspect,

Losn commitments

The main purpose of these Instniments Is to ensure the availability of the funds to respond ta the
cUSlOmETs’ requirements, - ' '

The guarantees and standby letters of credit, which consttute an irravocabie assutance That the Bank will
make the payments 3 customer is not able to fulfill his labulhes towards & third'party, are exposed to
the same foan sk as the loans

The wmﬂ-wc@i ard documentary letters of credit ropresenting written commtments of the Bank for the
bereft of a customer and authorising 3 third garty to draw instalmensts an Bank within the firat of 2
stipuiated amaunt and within specific terms and congitions are guaranteed by the: reidted assets devvery

preserting acothngly 3 consideradie lower nsk than the direct joans.

The lcan extension coinmitrents represent unused segments losn extension authosivetions under the
form of foans, guaraites latters ur letters of credit, Regarding the credt risi redated to the expansion
romriritments of the toan, the Ban s potentiaity exposed to 8 toss equal with.the total unusey
tommitmans. . ' '

- the'loss, aithough difficult to be guantifigd is sigrificantly lower than -
thie total unused commitments, since the majarity of the expansion commtments of the loan are
cunditioned by the ebservance by the custormerns of carfain spectic credit standards. The Bark monitors
the credit maturities bacause, in general, the long term commitments presents a higner gegree of credit
risk than the short term aedt sommitments.

Nevertheiess, probatiie voluma of
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27. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

Loan commitments (continued).
THe cutstasdiig amounts are as Toliows”
2018 2017
Compmtments. i} favour of credit nsttutions - 4,672
Commitments in favour of the custamers
{irrevocabie unused credit Taciites) £7,10%,694 g 242,040
Guarantees for custoimers 27,646,840 16,318,9¢
Total _84,752534 25653668
Performance guarantees

Details regarding the letters of guaraintes on December 33, 2018 and Decomber 31, 2017 are prasented’
betow ' ‘ - ' '

2018 2017
‘Letters of trancial guarantee 12,671,561 5,105,297
Performarice:bond letters - 15,3“1 5,249 11_21-17355

o 5,840 15,316,956

7.8
In 2018 and 2017, the Bank had no pleggeo Tecurities.

In the (zase cortracts for tranches, where the Bank Is the lesses, the future mutimum lease payments
based on firm commtments under operating loase {rents} are as follows:

2048 2017
Less thary | year 8,250,804 2,540,225
Between 1 and S years. 15,602,684 17,808,766
Tverd vears. ._ . g@ﬁﬂ,%? gﬁlg._gra'
Tokal 30,4 Nﬁzﬂ 3&1&3,1&_?_

Uit the dute of approval of the financial statements, there wers i evants sybseayant 1o the balance
sheet dote
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Report of the Board of Administration
for the activity carried out in 2018

MARFIN BANK
(ROMANIA) S.A.

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION

Upon the activity carried out
during the Financial Year 2018

Marfin Bank (Romania) S.A., former Egnatia Bank (Romania) S.A., former BNP-Dresdner Bank (Romania)
S.A., Romanian legal entity, having the headquarters in 90-92 Emanoil Porumbaru Street, Bucharest,
district 1, Romania, registered with the Trade Registry under no. J40/4436/1998, having the unique
registration code RO 10556861, share capital RON 421,143,290, operating in accordance with Romanian
Banking Law and based on National Bank of Romania authorization serial C number 000001/17.07.1998,
registered at the National Bank of Romania Registry no. RB-P-JR-40-044 dated 18.02.1999.

Budget - 2018
In line with the revised Budget, the following levels of principal elements have been estimated for 2017:

Total assets - EUR 448 mil;
Customer loans (gross value) - EUR 260 mil;

Held to maturity instruments — EUR 90 mil;

[ R S S )

Customer deposits - EUR 380 mil.

Profit & Loss account:

Interest income - EUR 7.96 mil;
Commission income - EUR 0.76 mil;
FX earning - EUR 0.53 mil;
Operational costs - EUR 15.20 mil.

[ I R S

The Bank focuses on the following objectives:

a the limitation of losses due to the depreciation of the debtor’s quality by monitoring the loan
portfolio, which is a permanent process that includes two stages: the first stage is for the
prevention of the events which may cause risks and takes place before taking the decision of
financing potential clients, being followed by the credit risk monitoring stage which takes place
after the loan financing and until the full repayment;

a to speed up the selling of the repossessed assets;

a to increase the collections related to the non-performing portfolio.
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to detect and correct the occurred problems in due time;

the improvement and amendment of the Procedures of the Bank in due time according to the
legislation in force;

increase of the level of the professional qualification of our employees by participating at external
and internal training programs;

improving the IT System in order to minimize the risks of the Bank;
expand the cards products portfolio for both companies and private individuals and POS acquiring;
continue to expand the retail product “First House” for granting of housing loans;

focus on expanding the retail lending in local currency, as a strategy the bank will focus on medium
and high net individuals that are not so sensitive at current market fluctuation.

moderate lending expansion to new corporate customers with focus on financing of the current
activity of the companies; as a strategy the bank will focus on medium & large corporate
customers with solid financial statement that can sustain their business in the current market
conditions.

In order to have a balanced loan portfolio the bank currently focus on sectors related to real economy
such: food, services, trade with primary products, agriculture, energy, distribution, etc.

Q
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focus on expanding the corporate and especially SME lending in local currency and convert existing
exposure from foreign currency into local currency;

avoid investment loans in real estate project or in non-productive projects for corporate clients;
focus in co-financing the projects with EU Structural funds option for corporate and SME clients;
granting working capital credit lines addressed to SME’s with state guarantee;

increasing the turnover of our customers through our account - better monitoring of quality of
services;

improving the capital base and the prudential ratios;

attract new deposits from the customers that have funds availability;

Corporate Banking Division serves a wide range of clients, legal entities from all the sectors of the
economy.

The products and services provided to clients support a mutually beneficial relation, with the purpose of
contributing to the Bank’s profitability, and also to cover clients’ needs.

The main objectives of Corporate Banking for 2018 were the following:

offering support to the network selling channels for enlarging the corporate portfolio by attracting
new clients with acceptable risk and profitability;

monitoring constantly the market evolution in order to adjust the corporate financing to the clients’
needs and improve products offered to customers;

Improving the structuring, negotiation, execution and performance of loan facilities and
contributing to the minimization of losses from lending activity.

Retail Banking Division offers a variety of lending and savings products for individuals. Retail Banking
has developed a range of savings products in order to improve the Bank liquidity and attract financial
resources from the population.
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On the Retail segment, the bank focuses on the following types of loans:

. Real estate investment loans, mainly “Prima Casa” loans
° Consumer loans

° Credit cards

° Overdrafts

The main objectives of Retail Banking for 2018 were the following:

° improving the efficiency of the loan approval process by improving the automation of related
operations;

® continuous improvement of existing products, both loans and deposits, in order to adapt the offer
to the new market requirements and consumers;

® developing of creative savings products in order to diversify resources and increase the customers’
base;

° expanding client portfolio by attracting customers according to risk strategy;

° optimizing the cross-selling customer's portfolio.

Risk management

The risk management activity is a process focused on the analysis of the risk profile, in order to achieve a
balance between the level of undertaken risks and the profitability related thereto, in the purpose of
ensuring the development of the Bank'’s activity on solid grounds. In this way, the Bank’s capital will be
protected and the added value for shareholders will increase.

The main risks which the Bank is facing result from the performance of the banking activity on the
Romanian territory, as well as with foreign counterparties.

The most important financial risks to which the Banks is exposed are the credit risk, the operational risk,
the liquidity risk, the market risk and the reputation risk. The market risk includes the currency risk, the
interest risk and the price risk.

a) The credit risk

The Bank is exposed to the credit risk, namely to the risk of undergoing losses or not realizing the
estimated profits, as a consequence of the counterparty’s default in fulfilling its contractual obligations.
The credit risk source is not represented only by the classic credit activity, this occurring in any activity
which involves a counterparty risk. In this sense, the identification, assessment, management and control
of the credit risk are concerned both with the activities emphasized in the balance sheet and with those
off balance sheet, which are subject to this risk.

The credit risk is treated, managed and monitored differently, based on the nature of the counterparty to
which it is exposed: non-banking clients, respectively private individuals and legal entities (classic credit risk)
and credit institutions (the limitation of exposure towards other banks and the correspondent relations).

At the Bank’s level, the emphasis is placed on the degree of concentration of the portfolio function of
various factors, such as: a) for legal entities: activity sector, facility duration, facility type, country of
origin, company size, geographical area and b) for private individuals: product type and geographical
area as well as the interdependencies between such, the final objective being that of holding a diversified
credit portfolio, which allows the control and management of the undertaken risks and the avoidance of
the deterioration of its quality, due to the similarities between the composing elements.

In order to limit the counterparty risk to the level of placements or correspondent banking account with
other banks, the Bank establishes and monitors the compliance with the maximum limits of exposure for
each bank on the money market and foreign exchange markets, in correlation with the risk of such
counterparties, and also to the level of the Bank’s own funds.
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b) The operational risk

The operational risk - the risk of undertaking losses or of failing to realize the estimated profits, which
may be determined by internal factors (the inadequate development of certain internal activities, the
existence of an inadequate staff or systems, etc.) or of external factors (economic conditions, changes in
the bank environment, technological processes, etc.).

In order to manage operational risk, the Bank monitors the operational risk events by establishing Key
Risk Indicators and maintaining a Loss Database with the losses generated by these events.

At the same time, the management of the legal risk is considered component of the operational risk,
which occurs as a consequence of the failure to apply or of the incorrect application of the legal or
contractual obligations, which has a negative influence on the Bank’s operations or situation.

In order to manage legal risk, the bank monitors the litigations in which it is involved as plaintiff, as
defendant or as garnished third party.

¢) The liquidity risk

The liquidity risk is the risk of undergoing losses or of not realizing the estimated profits, which results
from the Bank’s impossibility to honor at any time the short term payment obligations, without this
involving costs or losses which cannot be borne by the Bank.

The structure of assets and liabilities was analyzed based on the period remaining until the contractual
due date. The Banks wants to keep a balance between the maturity dates of placements and the due
dates of the attracted sources. The essence of managing the liquidity risk means the certainty that the
Bank holds or may access liquid funds to be able to satisfy the operational needs in regular activity
conditions which needs additional sources of liquidities, but also in unpredictable situations.

d) The currency risk

The currency risk, the component of the market risk, is generated by miscorrelations between the Bank’s
receivables and commitments in a certain currency (represented in the Bank’s balance sheet and in
elements outside the balance sheet). The main currencies held by the Bank are EUR and USD.

e) The interest rate risk

The interest rate risk, component of the market risk, results from the GAP between the Bank'’s assets and
liabilities which carry interest and the spread between them per band and cumulative.

The sources of the interest risk are the miscorrelation between the re-pricing date of assets and liabilities
which carry interest, unfavorable evolutions in the shape and inclination level of the interest efficiency
curves (non-parallel evolutions of the efficiencies of the Bank's interests payable and to be collected), the
non-correlation of the evolutions between reference interests to which the Bank’s payable interests and
interests to be collected are added, as well as the options incorporated into the Bank’s products, options
which the clients may exert (the anticipated refunding of credits, the withdrawal before the due date of
term deposits).

In order to limit the interest risk at the level of the credit activity, the Bank generally practices for loans
variable interests, based on the Bank’s policy and based on certain reference interests on the market
(EURIBOR, LIBOR, and ROBOR). In order to limit the interest risk at the level of attracted sources, the
Bank practices for deposits fixed interests. Based on the amount of the deposit as well as the market
conditions, the Bank may negotiate the interest for such deposits.

f) The price risk

The price risk, component of the market risk, occurs from the market fluctuations of the price in the
movable valuables, goods and derived financial instruments.

The bank does not hold at the end of the financial year, a trading portfolio and consequently it is not
subject to the price risk.
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g) The reputation risk

The reputation risk, the risk of undergoing losses or of not realizing the estimated profits, as a
consequence of lack of trust in the Bank’s integrity.

The management of the reputation risk is concerned with the permanent insurance, based on reality, of a
positive image on the market with the clients, the other financial institutions in the system, the
shareholders, the State’s institutions, the supervision control, and the media.

Actual figures at the end of 2018, in comparison with ones for 2016 are presented below, underlying the
main items of assets and liabilities from the Balance sheet and Profit & Loss account:

Actual 2018 - Balance Sheet
Due from banks

The total due from banks amounted to RON 537.05 million representing 27% from the total assets and
has the following structure:

. Balances with National Bank of Romania amounted to RON 200.15 million, out of which the local
currency and foreign currency reached the level of RON 122.70 million and respectively EUR 16.61
million. Minimum Mandatory Reserves were: RON 59.96 million and EUR 14.83 million;

° Funds in the correspondent accounts amounted to RON 3.08 million, representing reserves at the
banks abroad.

o Placements represented RON 333.82 million, with local banks.
Allowances for expected loss are set up in accordance with IFRS and amount to RON 0.19 million.

Customer Loans

The loans granted to customers at a value net of provisions, including the related accruals, represent
41% from the total assets and amounted to RON 820.67 million, out of which:

a RON 495.63 million legal entities (60%)
a RON 325.04 million private individuals (40%)

Specific risk provisions are constituted as per the IFRS regulations, amounting to RON 44.41 million.

Fixed assets

The fixed assets amounted to RON 9.91 million, representing 0.5% from the total assets.
The bank’s Board of administration decided on using the straight line amortization method, during the life
spans specified in the legislation in force per each category.

The constructions with a net value of RON 2.67 million hold the main percentage (26.4%) from the total
of fixed assets and are represented by works carried out at the Bank’s headquarters and at the leasehold
improvements for the spaces rented for the activity of branches, an office building (for Deva Branch), as
well as a villa purchased for the Bank’s representatives. These expenses are capitalized and are
amortized over a period of 50 years for the purchased real estate and respectively, over the number of
years for the duration of rental contracts.

Due to banks

aQ RON 66.70 million representing mainly deposits from domestic banks and 4% of the total
deposits;
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Customer Deposits

Q RON 1,633.69 million (nominal value without accruals) represent liabilities to customers, and
96% of total bank’s deposits, out of which:

o RON 221.55 million - current accounts
o RON 1,412.14 million - deposits
SHARE CAPITAL
The Bank’s share capital registered at Trade Registry, amounting to RON 421.14 million and consists of

4,211,432,900 shares, with a face value amounting to RON 0.1 each, which grant legal rights to their
holders.

The adjustment for inflation in accordance with IAS 29 amounts to RON 36.17 million and the Bank’s
share capital presented in the Financial Statements amounting to RON 457.31 million.

Actual 2018 - Income statement
The total income for 2018 amounting to RON 109.91 million, out of which:

RON 56.14 million - interest income received;
RON 3.55 million - income from commissions;

RON 2.08 million - net profit from exchange operations;
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RON 48.14 million - other extraordinary income.

The total expenses related to the income realized in 2018 amounted to RON 99.41 million, out of which
the expenses from bank’s operations are RON 31.20 million, are as follows:

QO RON 30.39 million - interest expenses paid;

O RON 0.81 million - commissions expenses;

The net interest income is RON 25.76 miIIioh.
The net commission income is RON 2.74 million.

The operating costs amounting to RON 134.42 million have the following structure:

QO RON 28.92 million expenses with the staff members;
aQ RON 102.32 million represent administrative expenses;

Q RON 3.18 million expenses with the depreciation and revaluation of fixed assets;
As at 31.12.2018, the Bank registered a net profit of RON 10.5 million.
Other information

The number of branches/agencies is 30 as at the end of 2018, following the closure of Focsani and Vaslui
branches in May 2018 (28 branches and 2 agencies).

The number of employees of the bank was 259, out of which 142 employees in branches/agencies and
117 employees in Head Office.
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For the end of 2018, the Bank has registered the following financial performance indicators presented
comparable with 2017:

Ratios/ Reporting data Dec-18 Dec-17
Own funds RON RON
Oown funds Tier 1 281,047,369 | 130,953,966
Total own funds 281,047,369 | 314,952,881
Capital adequacy ratios

Capital adequacy ratio Tier 1 26.16% 14.60%
Total capital adequacy ratio 26.16% 35.12%
Debt-to-Equity ratio 13.72% 6.60%
Liquidity ratios

Liquidity ratio 3.40 3.75
Quick ratio 50.95% 47.15%
Liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) 417.63% 201.91%
Profitability ratios

Return on Asssets (ROA) 0.53% 0.29%
Return on Equity (ROE) 3.62% 4.06%
Total expenses to total revenues 90.11% 162.39%
Ratios on the quality of the assets

Non-performing loans ratio 6.64% 9.13%
Impaired receivables/Total credits 11.83% 14.30%
Other ratios

Granted loans/attracted deposits 50.23% 55.93%
Total debt/Total equity 5.88 13.03

The obligations to social insurances and to the State budget were paid entirely and within the terms
established by the regulations in force.

The evaluation of assets and liabilities expressed in currency is made at the exchange rates on the
currency market, communicated by the National Bank of Romania, on the last working day of the month.

The realization of the obligations stipulated by the law regarding the organizing and fair and to date
accountancy is in compliance with the accounting principles (prudence, permanence of methods,
continuity of activity, independence of the financial year, intangibility of the opening balance sheet, non-
compensation).

The book keeping records are kept in Romanian and in the national currency. The accountancy of
operations performed in currency is kept both in national currency and in foreign currency. The book
keeping records are made based on documents prepared legally, chronologically and systematically. Any
patrimonial operation is written down, when it is made, in a document which constitutes the base of book
keeping records, thus acquiring the capacity of supporting document.

The internal control system is organized as a separate activity within the bank being composed by the
following: risk administration department, compliance department and internal control department,
having as purpose the application of procedures and of internal norms, and the compliance with the legal
banking norms in force.
The exchange rates as at 31.12.2018 were the following:

O RON/EUR - 4,6639

QO RON/USD - 4,0736
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Proposals

As a result of activity performed during the financial year 2018, the Management of Marfin Bank
(Romania) SA request for approval to the General Shareholders’ Meeting:

. Report of the Board of Administration regarding the development and activities of Marfin Bank
(Romania) SA and its financial position for the year ended December 31, 2018;

. Discharge for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Cleovoulos Alexandrou
Chairman of the Board of Administration

by:
Empowered person
THEODOR CORNEL STANESCU

In accordance with the decision of the Board of Administration of Marfin Bank (Romania) S.A.
of April 17, 2019
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